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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEVE R

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITESE

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman and chief executive officer) Bk (EEFITHEE)

Ms. Chen Zhuo Foi 3 4+

Mr. Liang Bing REFHE

Mr. Long Weimin BEARLE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS FHITES

Mr. Wei Zhe B A

Ms. Wu Qimin BTt

Mr. Lam Yiu Por® RREE SRy S A 1)

Mr. Zheng Dong B[ S A

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE BYFYITES

DIRECTORS

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis®? FERELED

Mr. Yuan Boyin %\?TE@E%E

Mr. Wu Haibing RBESESE

Mr. Zhang Weilun RMERITE

AUDIT COMMITTEE BEREES

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis (Chairman) FERELE(EE)

Mr. Zhang Weilun SRAEfm ST

Mr. Yuan Boyin i‘i’?TEIﬁEf'EE

Mr. Wu Haibing RERESE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEES

Mr. Zhang Weilun (Chairman) RMEfRELE(ZE)

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis FEREL

Mr. Yuan Boyin %?TEI@E?EE

Mr. Wu Haibing RBEFESE

Ms. Chen Zhuo PR+

NOMINATION COMMITTEE REEZRS

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman) Bl (/)

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis FEIRLAE

Mr. Yuan Boyin ﬁTEﬁEf‘EE

Mr. Wu Haibing RERESE

Mr. Zhang Weilun SRAEfR ST

Notes: FeE

(1) Mr. Lam has tendered his resignation with effect from (1) #MEAEDIZPES - H2017F5 A4HBED -
4 May 2017.

(2] Mr. Lee has tendered his resignation with effect from 5 (2) Z&AEEIRHER - B2017E7A5HEER
July 2017.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NRIER

INVESTOR RELATIONS

Email: ir@zahomegroup.com

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants

COMPLIANCE ADVISER
Dakin Capital Limited

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Bank of Communication Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Branch
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Codan Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
Cricket Square

Hutchins Drive

P.0. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai

Hong Kong
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

EEHE

DEAR SHAREHOLDER:

Zhong Ao Home Group Limited (the “Company”],
together with its subsidiaries, (the “Group”) was
successfully listed (the “Listing”) on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) on 25 November 2015 and its
astounding development momentum has left the
industry in awe.

In 2016, the Group successfully acquired 70% of
equity interest in Eastern Harbour Engineering
Management Limited and 70% of equity interest in
Zhejiang Yongcheng Property Management Company
Limited in the capital market, thereby expanding
its business presence in China from 28 cities in
2015 to 39 cities this year. It was contracted to
manage a total of 455 residential properties and
non-residential premises such as commercial or
government buildings with a total contracted gross
floor area ("GFA”) of 60.0 million square meters
(“sq.m.”). This represented an increase of 77.5%
compared to the total contracted GFA of 33.8 million
sq.m. as of 31 December 2015. In relation to the
delivered GFA of 44.6 million sq.m. in 2016, the
increase represented a growth of 100.9% compared
to the delivered GFA of 22.2 million sq.m. as of 31
December 2015.

Furthermore, in 2016, the Group was ranked
eighth in terms of overall strength among property
management enterprises in China, and was a top
10 property management enterprises in terms of
brand value in China. Such accolade reflects the
recognition and acknowledge of the Group’s overall
strength by the industry and society.

In 2016, the Group achieved outstanding results in
the field of property management.

HEHHRR

FRIREEERAR(IAAF ) EREMERA
(TARER)R2015F 11 A25BRIN A BEBHA XS AT
BRARIERLEM(TET]) HARBERODESE
REBHEE -

2016F A+ REBKNBBEATS @ DRIMERE
BAETIRREEARNAT0%ZIEE NI KK DES
BERRFT0% A - FAREEAEEB2015FE
EFE28EHTHRERNFHIVENT - STHNERE
H4s5BFEDELIFFEDE(WMEBASIBFET) -
BANETEAELER((EEAE]) AOOEEF K
(I FEFAK]D) - B2015F12 A3 BNBANEEZER
B33.8A BT KIEIMTT.5%  BE2016FE DXL
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SBEE22288F 5K - #51100.9% °
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREHmE

BOOSTING BUSINESS GROWTH
WITH QUALITY SERVICES AND
ACQUISITIONS OF PROPERTY
MANAGEMENT COMPANIES

Property management in China traditionally
focuses on care and maintenance of residence,
complementary facilities and surroundings as
well as the upkeep of environment and order in
the community. The Group has been adamant in
its commitment of service quality and catered for
customers’ needs since its establishment in 2005.
Adopting the service approach of “prioritizing
services, mobile management, movable services”,
the Group divides service communities into a
region by unit of residence and moves the customer
service center to the frontline with a dedicated
butler. Instead of reacting passively at our office,
the Group actively engages with property owners
and understand their needs to allocate resources to
meet their requirements swiftly.

Looking forward, other than identifying potential
acquisition targets and boosting business growth
with acquisitions of property management
companies, the Group will rely on word-of-mouth
and recognition of the Group’'s service quality in
the industry and society to actively acquire new
property management contracts through sale
assistance services. Business expansion will also be
achieved by liaising with owners’ associations of the
communities.

In attracting new customers, the Group will
selectively assess opportunities in economically
developed regions with high population, such as
provincial capital, second-tier and third-tier cities
and other regions surrounding the locations of
properties currently under the management of the
Group, to maximize the economies of scale.
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020 PLATFORM BUSINESS

In 2016, the Group allocated enormous resources
to the development of 020 business and incurred
significant costs and expenses, such as selling,
marketing, promotion and distribution expense, in
its promotion to expand the customer base of the
Group. In order to mitigate the loss attributable
to the development of the 020 business, the
Group enters into a technical services agreement
and outsources the maintenance and operation
services of the Group’s 020 platform to Hangzhou
Chuangnian Network Technology Company Limited.
The Group believes that it is an appropriate measure
for the Group in achieving this objective. The Group
strives for the benefits of all stakeholder and strike
a balance among profitability, growth and building
customer base for the 020 platform.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend my
sincere thanks to every shareholder and business
partner for their constant support and trust of the
Group, and also to every employee for their hard
work and contribution to the Group over last year. In
the coming year, the Group will continue its active
expansion of business and enhance its property
management service quality, so as to bring a better,
more enjoyable and more satisfying experience for
home life to residents. With the continuous efforts
of the Group, | believe that the Group will bring good
returns to its shareholders in the long term.

Liu Jian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 755 i 2

BZ12B31BLEEZ

Results performance for the year

ended 31 December RERR 2016 2015
Revenue (RMB’000) W (ARETT) 635,146 420,155
Gross profit (RMB'000) EMAEEFT) 156,738 140,088
(Loss)profit for the year attributable ~ RNRE#HAE AELFE(BE)

to owners of the Company (RMB'000]  FiE(A R For) (6,383) 10,911
Adjusted net profit for the year!" & KR R R

(RMB’000) (AR®TT) 72,779 80,744
Gross profit margin (%) EFIE(%) 24.7% 33.3%
Net (loss]profit margin (%) (4548 W& (%) (0.5)% 2.5%
Adjusted net profit margin (%) KRR (%) 11.5% 19.2%
Basic (loss)earnings per share (RMB)  SRRER(EE)BF(ARKT) (0.008) 0.019
Final dividend per share (HK$) BRARERECET) - 0.025
Special dividend per share (HK$) BREFRIRE (ET) - 0.020

Note:

(1]

(2)

Adjusted net profit for the year is derived by adding
share-based payment expenses of RMB16.0 million
(2015: RMB19.9 million), legal and professional fees
for acquisition of property management companies
of RMB9.8 million (2015: nil), listing expenses of
nil (2015: RMB35.9 million], change in fair value
of financial liabilities designated as at fair value
through profit or loss of nil (2015: RMB6.3 million)
and excluding the net loss of RMB50.3 million (2015:
RMB8.0 million) incurred for the community 020
platform during the year.

This non-GAAP financial data is a supplemental
financial measure that is not required by, or presented
in accordance with, HKFRSs and is therefore referred
to as a “non-GAAP” financial measure. It is not a
measurement of the Group’s financial performance
under HKFRSs and should not be considered as an
alternative to profit from operations or any other
performance measures derived in accordance with
HKFRSs or as an alternative to cash flows from
operating activities or as a measure of the Group’s
liquidity.

GEE

(1)

(2)

ERAFECAZESABENABROERAIARE
16.0B B L (2015%F : ARK19.9HE L) - WHEWME
EBNBIZAERNBEEBERAARKEISHEL(2015F :
) P T(2015F : ARMISIOBET)  EBE
BEAFEFABESNECHABEAFEEEHZT(2015F ¢
AREEGIEBT) KT RFAFILRO20FEEALY
EBEEFHEARKS03EEIL(2015F : ARKSOEE
JL) °

ERFFARETRAMBEE - BEEHBMERERR
ERENBERMBIE MR EVBREELZ
7 MRS [PEARERAN M BHEE - WX ERIETR
B EREENHAEEBBEREANTE - TERRZ
EEPBMELSHOEEMSH B EMEMES
AENER ABRAEEEHAERSRENER - =X
BRAKERBDESWE -
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

IBRE
Revenue Gross profit and gross profit margin
Wz EFNRER=E
(RMB million) (RMB million/%)
(ARBEER) (ARBBETT/%)
33.4% 33.3%
635 o \\\\\\\ﬁf%
o6 157
420 140
361 -2 121
48 66
293 352 559
2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016
Property management M 020 business income
services 020U A
Y3 E R R
Sale assistance B Other services and
services sales of goods
e HipfR# RHEE M
Adjusted net profit for the year and Profit (loss) attributable to owners of
adjusted net profit margin the company
PR F AR R A BEAR =R RARHEBEAEMLFE (H1R)
(RMB million/%) (RMB million)
(AR EET/%) (ARBEER)
19.2%
16.6%
11.5%
56.0
80.7
72.8
59.9
10.9
2014 2015 2016
2014 2015 2016
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BmE
Total assets Total equity
(RMB million) (RMB million)
(AR¥EEBTR) (ARBEER)
1101.1
710.8 501.7
450.1
279.0
95.6
2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016
Total Contracted GFA Average price of property management service
BMENEBEEEERE MEEEREFIHER
(million sq. m.) (RMB/sq.m./month)
(BBFIK) 0.0 (ARM 7K/ B)
15.4
31.4 338
12.3 11.6 44.6
1.77 1.81 1.76
19.1 22.2
2014 2015 2016 2014 2015 2016
Delivered GFA Undelivered GFA Average price per revenue-bearing GFA'
B RS AR Gt E R R EEEN THER
Note: PET

1. Itis calculated as a weighted average of all the prices 1. ZREMHBEFERDEEREHNELNTHAOEERERER
and fees specified on the contracts that are generating BiNETHESE  BETEREEESNERE -
revenue as of the end of each relevant year, excludes
management fees for parking lots.

10 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016




;".;' .

b ‘j‘ ENVIRONMENTAL,
# % SOCIAL AND
" GOVERNANCE
REPORT

IREE - o=

K& A

]]IT I




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRIE - g MERWRE

In 2016, the Group was ranked eighth in terms
of overall strength among property management
enterprise in China, and was a top 10 property
management enterprise in terms of brand value in
China. Zhong Ao Home Group Limited ("Zhong Ao
Home"”) is one of the leading independent property
management companies in China. Our excellent
service quality forms the foundation of our success.
One of the keys to our business success is to
incorporate sustainable social and environmental
development into our business strategies
throughout our daily operations.

We care about the environment and society
because we believe in the idea of “home”. Home, to
some, provides warmth and comfort; to others, it
represents a sense of security and protection. At the
very least, home is a place that we treasure and care
about, as well as a sanctuary that we always strive
to maintain. At Zhong Ao Home, we see “home” not
only as an apartment or house that we stay at, but
also as a place where we work, the community that
we interact with and the environment that we all live
in. This is why we strive to extend the idea of “home”
within and outside the Group, through our operation
and business, to maintain and to protect the “home”
that we all live in.

Apart from complying with all relevant laws and
regulations, we strive to minimize and manage risks
identified for continuous improvement. To do this
efficiently and effectively, integrated management
system for quality, environment protection and
occupational health and safety is adopted across
our properties and is certified externally. We are
committed to providing a better home for our
employees, customers and community.

This is the first Environmental, Social & Governance
("ESG") Report detailing the material ESG
issues faced and tackled by the Company and
its subsidiaries in various locations, including
Hong Kong, Guangdong, Shanghai and Hangzhou,
during the reporting year from 1 January 2016 to
31 December 2016. The ESG Report was prepared
according to Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities set out by the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Stock Exchange”),
with reference to the General Disclosures only.
The Group may consider disclosing information
regarding Key Performance Indicators in future.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Contact
For any comments on this ESG Report, please feel free

to contact us through email at irdzahomegroup.com.

Our approach to spreading the idea of "HOME" can
be summarized in 4 core areas:

H

RIZ - g RERRE

HRARE HERESRENEMER
Zir@Qzahomegroup.comB4& F 1] °

" RA %éaﬁﬂ

54 [HOME B 28 77 $t A Bl /&3 AR O 88 -

M =

I— Operate in
Greener

|_ High-quality

Services Environment
=i E R BIRRNEE
RS

H - HIGH QUALITY SERVICES

With the goal to ensure every family feels
better, happier and more satisfying, we strive to
provide excellent services through our property
management services, butler services and 020
platform. The Group is committed to upholding
excellence in its service quality in each and every
part of the services - not only because we care about
customers’ home experience, but also because we
recognize the responsibility to our customers, to
offer reliable and outstanding services.

Our properties have implemented a quality
management system which is certified with the
international 1ISO9001 standard. To maintain our
service standard, quality control is integrated into
our daily activities, such as safety management,
greening, equipment operation and maintenance,
within each of our properties. Regular inspection and
internal audit is also conducted.

Motivated |_

Emphasis on

V;Iorkplace community
IR LI BRHE
B

REINERSRG PRI ELTH - $Z KimE B
T 5B EBNE SRR - ERRGL020F
E*TETWEEHW% ° $§%@jﬂ&%ﬁlﬁ%i-%ﬁﬁﬁ’ﬂ

RRBEER  AREFMRERETFPNRERR - BX
PREMBEEERTPREHAERLENRT -

e

B EETEBRRISO001IRER BN MEER R
Ao REFRBKTY - EBEYR - mEEEEEA
AREE IR eER &t RIBEFEIEE
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RIZ - g RER®RE

Safeguarding Our Customers

Home symbolizes security and privacy. At Zhong Ao
Home, we build trust with our customers through
protecting their lives and properties, and strike to
provide them with a feel at home experience.

We protect our customers’ safety by providing
comprehensive security and fire measures at all our
properties. Our security guards are well assessed
and trained to ensure they have the awareness,
skills and knowledge to deal with dangerous and
emergency situations. In addition, guidelines are
set on managing and restricting visitors, as well as
objects going in and out of properties; for example,
checking the identity and keeping records of visitors,
as well as prohibiting any explosive or toxic objects
from entering the properties. We have a team to
manage the fire safety and adequate fire safety
equipment which is checked regularly to make
sure that they are functioning and complying with
standards. For other risks such as objects being
thrown from height, traffic accidents, water and
electricity suspension, and gas leakage, emergency
plans were developed to ensure residents’ safety and
avoid causing inconvenience.

Apart from our residents, we recognize the
importance of privacy of our customers who use
the online Aidaojia mobile application platform. We
are committed to protecting the personal data of
our clients through establishing a secure data and
information system. Confidentiality agreement is
included in the employment contract of our staff,
stating employees’ responsibility in protecting
the intellectual property, including customers’
information. Employees are not allowed to disclose
any business information to external parties or the
media and must abide by the Company’s Information
Security System.

Providing Quality Products

Our 020 platform provides a convenient shopping
experience for our customers and residents. Since
the Group engages in services provision, we do
not produce products ourselves. In other words, a
bulk of the products are purchased from external
suppliers, thus managing the product quality is
crucial to our operation.

14 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

In all of the procurement process, we have set
up detailed procedures for staff to follow when
selecting and assessing suppliers for our services.
Starting from the first stage of choosing suppliers,
we always pay extra attention to make sure our
suppliers comply with local laws and regulations
and abide by our quality standards. Suppliers
have to provide legal permits for operation and
certifications on their product quality and safety - for
example, 1IS09001, HACCP Food Safety and Quality
Management System for food providers.

We also set up corresponding policies to prevent
any acts of bribery and corruption between our
employees and our suppliers, so as to ensure a fair
and just procurement process, as well as to maintain
the quality of our services.

Approach to perishable goods

Through our 020 platform, customers can order a
broad range of products, including fruits and other
perishable goods. Any defects or problems in these
products can possibly lead to health and safety
issues for our customers. As a responsible service
provider, Hangzhou Yidao Information Technology
Company Limited ("Hangzhou Yidao”) always put
customers’ health and safety at top priority. To avoid
such risks from materializing, it has implemented
an extensive quality assurance process for such
products.

BE R REARS
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BE R REAES

Through the 3 layers of quality assurance, Hangzhou
Yidao makes sure its products comply with all local
health and safety regulations, so as to strengthen
consumers and clients’ confidence in its services.

MMNEBA=ERERERREEMNT S PIAMEZ
BRL2ER  SHEEREPHERBEAED °

Assess quality of reference sample

SEBERSNRE

Quality checking at source of supply

HERERERE

Quality control of products received at storage

REFRBERNBE

g

Outstanding Living Environment

We care about the living environment of our
residents and believe greening can provide a healthy
and comfortable environment for our residents,
tenants and the community. We have greening
across our properties with regular maintenance and
improvement.

We are also aware that renovation at our properties
may affect our residents, to minimize the impact and
maintaining the living quality of our residents’ daily
life. Guidelines are set up to control dust generation
and transporting construction waste. Noise is
mitigated through regular inspection and restricting
renovating hours.

Listening to Our Customers

Customer satisfaction is the key to success.
While we take necessary precautions and conduct
internal inspection to maintain our service quality,
we recognize unexpected issues may occur. We
make every effort to understand our customers. A
comprehensive communication system is in place
to ensure that information is effectively received,
transferred and processed. Various communication
channels, including service hotline, email, Wechat
and opinion boxes throughout the property areas,
are set up.

ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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We also conduct regular surveys, telephone
interviews and visits to understand customers’
level of satisfaction with our services and
products. To identify gaps and seek opportunities
for improvement, we have set up procedures
to deal with and prevent products and services
that do not meet the specified standards, as well
as mechanisms for dealing with opinions and
complaints from customers.

O - OPERATE IN A GREEN ENVIRONMENT

There is a saying that goes, “"We do not inherit the
earth from our ancestors, we have borrowed it from
our children”. Be it our ancestors or children, this
quote highlights the importance of environmental
sustainability, as it represents our responsibility
to our future generation in maintaining a clean and
safe environment. In fact, if we take a broader look,
in a sense, we are all essentially living in the same
environment and the earth is a common home for
all. It is our duty to protect this common home from
pollution and exhaustion, so that our children can
live in a sustainable environment.
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BE R REAES

We are committed to reducing emissions and
minimizing negative environmental impacts
through the implementation of the environmental
management system ("EMS”] across our properties.
Our EMS is certified with the international standard
1SO14001.

e Conduct compliance assessment to ensure
relevant international and local regulations are
met;

e |dentify potential environmental risks in our
business operation and set up action plants to
mitigate the risk;

e Monitor regularly to ensure continuous
improvement.

Optimized Use of Resources

To reduce electricity and water use across our
properties, operational management manual
is developed. The metering system across our
properties enables us to monitor the energy and
water consumption regularly for analysis, and
identify any abnormal usage for prompt action.
Training on measurement and statistics, saving
approach and technological transformation
measures are provided to employees regularly.
Various energy-saving measures, including
installation of LED lighting and energy efficient
water pumps, have been gradually adopted across
our properties. This not only saves on energy costs,
but also reduces our carbon emissions.

In our offices, we encourage employees to take the
responsibility of conserving energy and water by
constantly inculcate their awareness, for example,
reminders are posted in various areas:

e Switch off lighting and air conditioning when
leaving office

e Turn off computers and monitors when not in
use

e Recycle paper and use double sided-printing/
photocopying

18 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED
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We also purchased office equipment and appliances
such as air-conditioners with energy efficient label.

Waste Management

We take the issue of waste seriously, not only to
lessen the burden to the environmental, but to bring
a better living environment for our residents.

Hazardous waste such as paints and pesticides
must be stored at specified points for collection
and handled by qualified waste handlers. Resident
waste is collected regularly by our staff at dedicated
collection points. We have also placed recycle bins
across our properties and post signs to encourage
sorting and recycling practices.
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M - MOTIVATED WORKPLACE

Home is a place where you feel safe in, where you
are able to grow personally. At Zhong Ao Home, we
hope to extend the idea of "home” to our workplace
by providing employee a safe and healthy working
environment, as well as a fair workplace with
a prospective career. We also understand that
motivation comes from job satisfaction - the two are
closely linked, one influencing the other. Thus, we
aspire to maintain a working environment, where
values are continuously created for our employees
and where employees’ efforts and achievements
are recognized and appreciated, through putting
emphasis on our employees’ development and work-
life balance.

Ultimately, we hope to build a close-knit work family
at Zhong Ao Home, making Zhong Ao Home a second
home for our employees.

Occupational Health and Safety

As a responsible employer, we understand the
importance of ensuring the safety at our workplace,
and protecting the health and well-being of our
employees. Therefore, like other parts of our
operation, we have established an Occupational
Health and Safety ("OHS”) management system
which is certified with OHSAS18001.
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Our management system has a clear and detailed
procedure on conducting health and safety
assessment at our workplace: to identify potential
risks and in turn to implement corresponding control
measures, and to prevent such accidents from
happening. Safety checks are conducted regularly to
ensure safety measures are properly implemented
and to detect additional risks or hazards for
rectification and continuous improvement.
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We believe that “hardware” and “software” are
equally important in creating a healthy and safe
working environment. In terms of “hardware”,
we always make sure safety equipment provided
is sufficient for our employees, especially those
involved in maintenance and other relatively high-
risk positions. To ensure our employees have the
“software”, all new employees must complete safety
training and assessment before on-board. Additional
OHS training and fire drills are also conducted
regularly.
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BE R REAES

Employment and Human Rights

Upholding our responsibilities as an employer,
we comply with all local laws and regulations on
employment, including working hours, rest periods
and salary. We do not tolerate any human rights
violation at our workplace, and no child labor can
be hired in our companies. We also recognize the
values of integrity and equality, and put stress
on equal opportunity in our employment process,
where recruitment is based on personal merits and
performance of the applicants.

Training and Development
Opportunities

Each and every one of our employees is vital to our
Company’s operation. Not only do we appreciate
the efforts and hard work our staff constantly
put into our business, but we also want to create
values for our employees through regular training
and development opportunities, so that they can
grow with the Company, as well as gaining extra
knowledge about their fields.

We have a standardized procedure to develop,
implement and continual improve our employee
training plan. Internally, we organize training for
different categories of employees, covering various
topics such as financial management, legal issues
and technical knowledge. We also encourage
employees to attend externally training for
professional skills development.
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g )
e Formulate annual training programmes
and budget
SRR B R
M%RE

e Set up procedures for
promotional training, results
assessments, etc.
HIRTERAE A

\ REERSEF

r

ACTION
118

e Evaluate current training
programmes
R IR RRIZET B

e Implement corresponding
adjustments

EitAEAE

Work-Llife Balance

We understand that works can be stressful and
demanding at times. While we provide competitive
remuneration and benefits to our staff, we
recognize it is important to maintain a healthy and
balanced working environment for our employees
by promoting work-life balance. Throughout the
year, we have organized birthday parties, as well as
trips and travels for our staff to get to know each
other better and foster a close relationship between
employees.
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e Conduct surveys on
demandsfortrammgs
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e Complete training records
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e Assess quality of training
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e Conduct assessments on

employees after training
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E - EMPHASIS ON COMMUNITY

We believe that “home” is not confined by space;
rather, it extends to the community that we live in
and the people that we interact with every day. Home
is not only the space that we stay at, but it is also the
community that we engage with. At Zhong Ao Home,
we understand this concept particularly well, as we
strive to provide our customers with home services,
and a community experience. With our emphasis on
community values, we do want to be a responsible
citizen in the community, and more importantly, give
back to the society through community engagement
and investment.

With our emphasis on community experience, we
are committed to contributing to the communities
we operate in. While managing a single building or
property is straight-forward, offering a community
experience is a lot more complex, as it involves
different participants with various interests.
Therefore, we see it as a two-way process. On one
hand, by organizing regular social and community-
level activities for our residents, we hope to engage
the community and to know their needs. On the
other hand, we also contribute to the society through
donations and other community services.

Engage
the community

BB E

To ensure the effectiveness of our community
activities, we ask for feedback and opinions from
participants and residents in the community, to see
if there are any areas we can improve on, mistakes
that we can avoid next time. Through prompt
evaluations of the activities, we hope to incorporate
opinions from the community into our plans for
the following years, so as to better engage the
community.
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Engage the Community

We want to build a “residential community” at
our properties where our property owners can be
connected with each other, creating a harmony living
environment and enhancing neighborhood watch.
Over the year, we host a range of events, including
outings, sports competition and celebrations during
festivals, such as the Chinese New Year, Mid-
Autumn Festival, Halloween and Christmas.

The month of learning from Lei Feng

To carry forward the spirit of Lei Feng, who is an icon
of selfless and modest person in China, we organized
volunteer service activities at various locations of
our properties in March 2016.

Different organizations were engaged to provide
volunteer services to our community residents. The
diversity of services offerings, including haircut,
electric appliance repairing and medical services,
attracted many residents from children to elderly.

These activities have strengthened the relationship
with our residents, and advocated a positive attitude
to life and stimulated the spirit of dedication
generation after generation.
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RIZ - g RER®RE

Mid-Autumn Festival activities

Mid-Autumn Festival is the festival of reunion for
families and friends. To enjoy the festival with our
residents, we organized activities such as carnivals
and art shows in different locations, featuring with
performance, games and lucky draws. Through
these events we have built a closer relationship
with our residents and created a warm feeling of
community.

Contribute to the Society

As a responsible organization, we hope to use our
resources and advantages to promote philanthropy
and improve the environment. We continuously
organize events in which our properties operate,
and encourage our employees, property owners and
other parties to join us.
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Donations to poor children

To ignite a spark of hope for poor children who live in
the mountain areas, we organized donation activities
across our properties to raise the public concern.
The activities were a great success, many of our
employees and property owners joined us to donate
money, school supplies, sports equipment

Tree planting

To promote the public awareness of nature
conservation and encourage people to take part in
greening, we have been engaged with our property
owners to participate in planting seedlings with their
children, and a total of 100 seedlings were planted.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading independent property
management company in China. In 2016, the
Group was rated among the Best 10 of property
management enterprises in China in terms of the
overall strength and brand value by China Real
Estate Association* (FBEHEXE), Shanghai
E-house China R&D Institute* (b/85/FEFHENIE
Ft) and China Real Estate Appraisal Centre* (FF[E]
FEiERIFEH L. Also, the Group has been named
The Most Potential Listed Company (REEH A
7)) in China Financial Market Listed Company Award
2016 (FEIEE R AL As of 31 December
2016, the Group had a total contracted gross floor
area ("GFA”) of 60.0 million sq. m. where it was
contracted to manage 455 properties across 39 cities
in China.

The Group has four main business lines:

Property management business line

Under this business line, the Group primarily
provides property developers and property owners
with a broad range of property management services
to mainly residential properties, and commercial
and government buildings. Services provided by
the Group include standard property management
services and ancillary services.

Sale assistance business line

Under this business line, the Group provides
property developers with cleaning, security and
maintenance of their model homes and sales centers
and general assistance to facilitate the sales process
of the properties.

* The English name is for identification purpose only

28 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

£ R
ARERPEFLEINEERRF K016 - &
SERTRARGELRE  LEFERBETERK

TEFHENFRLFASTENEEECEEAED
KmigEE+E - Wi REER2016FHERE -
MEERERHEFRKAEN LT AF - R2016F
12A318 - AREMNBANEEEE((ZEEED S
60.0B&EF 7K« BRTAE R B39 EM T HLE5TEY
)

REBBATHIREBREBAR -

ESFEES T

RZEBRT  AEETEAMEERDRETIRMH
BZHMEBEERRY - KN A/EEME  BRARRK
T - ARERUNOREEREFENEERRE K
FLE R

{5 $H SR T AR

REEBRT  ARBANEERMEMTBENR
HERLMER  RERRE - UREHE—RHEN
(R B E B -




Community Online to Offline (“020”)
platform

Under this business line, the Group offers a broad
range of services and products to its residents,
as well as enhancement to its existing property
management services through its 020 platform. For
example, residents would be able to enjoy special
discounts and hassle-free in their orders placed with
our affiliated suppliers via the Group’s 020 platform.

Other services and sales of goods

This business line primarily consists of the provision
of consulting services, engineering and catering
services, and the sales of engineering spare parts.

PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES

As of 31 December 2016, the Group had expanded
its presence to 39 cities in China where it was
contracted to manage a total of 455 residential
properties and non-residential premises such
as commercial or government buildings with an
aggregate contracted GFA of 60.0 million square
meters (“sq.m.”). This represented an increase of
77.5% compared to the aggregate contracted GFA
of 33.8 million sq.m. as of 31 December 2015. In
relation to the delivered GFA of 44.6 million sq.m. in
2016, the increase represented a growth of 100.9%
compared to the delivered GFA of 22.2 million sgq.m.
as of 31 December 2015.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHEE T wm B DT

HEZLERET(T020])FE

REEBET > AREFEBE020FaMEFEHRE
R RER  URFAEREMEETERRY - Hlan
FEPMEBAEE20F B MB B HER T~ =
B BAZARRIEERERENBEYER -

Hitnfr R EEKm
REBREEOEREEARY  TRERERRS
AR GHE TRTHH -

MEEERSK

R2016F 128318 + REERNEBHREF B39 @R
W AT EIBA LMSEEEMERIFEEME(IE
BARBFET)  BANEEREAEAO0EETS
K(TERAK]) - 82015F 12 A3 BHNAANEIERE
MHE33.8E BT 7 KEMNT7.5% - BE2016FERH
BEAMmMELLCEETHK B2015F12A3MHMER
EEmME22.28EF HK  #BHN100.9% °

TREREEERAET 29

2016 F3§




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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In order to meet the Group's business objectives
after listed in late 2015, we strategically accelerated
business growth to strengthen its market position
in the fragmented property management market in
mainland China through acquisitions. In February
2016, the Group successfully acquired 70% of
equity interest in Eastern Harbour Engineering
Management Limited ("Eastern Harbour”) which is
engaged in the provision of property management
services in Shanghai. In addition, the Group
successfully acquired 70% of equity interest
in Zhejiang Yongcheng Property management
Company Limited ("Yongcheng”) at a consideration
of RMB210.0 million in October 2016. Yongcheng has
266 projects and properties with a total contracted
GFA of approximately 21.6 million sq.m. which
represented 36% of the Group’s total contracted GFA
as of 31 December 2016. Yongcheng's properties
under management are mainly located in the prime
business districts of Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province,
and covered by convenient transportation networks.
The Board believes that this acquisition will be able
to enlarge the Group’s portfolio of properties under
management and its revenue source.

GEOGRAPHIC PRESENCE

The Group will continue to strategically select
markets to enter into, focus on those with more
developed economies and comparatively high
per capita GDP. Once the Group has established
presence in a new city, it seeks to expand its
business within the same city or neighboring cities
with a view to maximizing its economies of scale.

The table below sets forth the revenue breakdown
of different geographic areas where the Group has
established presence for the years indicated.
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2016 2015

20165 20154

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARET T

Eastern and Central China FEH LED 380,557 221,371
Southern China R 201,219 179,447
Northern China b 53,370 19,337
Total 1Bzt 635,146 420,155
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The map below illustrates the cities in which
properties the Group was contracted to manage
were located and number of projects in each city as
of 31 December 2016.

FER R ER sl =37
01 Chizhou M (3) 15 Taizhou &N (1) Cenxi 2% (2) 35 Baotou B% (2)
02 Chongging EE (1) 16 Wenzhou )&/ (2) Foshan 1L (18) 36 Beijing 3t (1)
03 Chuzhou J%JM (9) 17 Wuxi #£485 (13) Guangzhou E /M (5) 37 Dalian X (1)
04 Hangzhou #/M (33) 18 Xuancheng E ¥ (3) Guilin #EAK (1) 38 Eérduosi SEEZ T (1)
05 Huaian JEZ (1) 19 Yangzhou 5 M (1) Haikou /&0 (2) 39 Langfang B85 (1)
06 Huzhou J#M (12) 20 Zhenjiang $E)T (1) 27 Jiangmen ;TF9 (1)
07 Jiaxing 3= (3) 21 Zhoushan £ (1) 28 Nanning % (19)
08 Nanchang & (1) 29 Qingyuan B (2)
09 Nantong 8 (7) 30 Sanya =iz (é)
10 Ningbo Z)f (252) 31 Wenchang X & (1)
11 Quzhou &/ (2) 32 Zhaoqing 2 (2)
12 Shanghai /& (10) 33 Zhongshan AL (3)
13 Shaoxing ZAE (21) 34 Zhuhai 28 (1)
14 Suzhou &M (9)

Eastern and Central China

Note: Numbers in parentheses represent the number of

contracted projects.

Southern China

BiEE - SRR B TIRATARB B -
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The table below sets forth the delivered contracted
GFA and the number of properties under
management as of the dates indicated.

TREINATERZERNEHNEERBEREEDN
MEHE -

As of 31 December 2016
A2016F12H31H

As of 31 December 2015
7201512 H31H

Sq. m. in Sg. m.in
thousands No. thousands No.
TR 5K £ =] FERHK #H

Residential properties FEYE

Eastern and Central China! TR LEEHN 27,160 201 12,168 74
Southern China®? FEPO 9,897 45 8,534 40
Northern China® LB 744 3 1,240 5
Subtotal /INET 37,801 249 21,942 119
Non-residential properties EFEYFE 6,794 124 272 4
Total @t 44,595 373 22,214 123

As of 31 December 2016, the Group’'s contracted
GFA of undelivered properties amounted to
approximately 15.4 million sq.m. (2015: 11.6 million
sq.m.)

Notes:

(1) Including Chizhou, Chongging, Chuzhou, Hangzhou,
Huaian, Huzhou, Jiaxing, Nanchang, Nantong,
Ningbo, Quzhou, Shanghai, Shaoxing, Suzhou,
Taizhou, Wenzhou, Wuxi, Xuancheng, Yangzhou,
Zhenjiang and Zhoushan.

(2) Including Cenxi, Foshan, Guangzhou, Guilin, Haikou,
Jiangmen, Nanning, Qingyuan, Sanya, Wenchang,
Zhaoqing, Zhongshan and Zhuhai.

(3)  Including Baotou, Beijing, Dalian, Eérduosi and
Langfang.
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The Group will continue to expand its business
through obtaining new service engagements
and acquisition of other property management
companies. The table below indicates the movement
of the total contracted GFA and the number of
properties the Group was contracted to manage
during the year.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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AEEGEEFIHREZEMEBEOYXEER
A MHEER - TRBIAFRNBANERZER
BERARETNEENYERBNES -

As of 31 December 2016
R20165%12H31H

As of 31 December 2015
720154 12H31H

Sq. m. in Sg. m.in
thousands No. thousands No.
FEEK A FEFHK #A
As of beginning of period R A7) 33,815 167 31,389 149
New engagements!” Fi =l 5,289 23 3,967 26
Acquisitions g 22,291 274 - -
Terminations!? D (1,400) (9) (1,541) (8)
As of end of period EAR 59,995 455 33,815 167
Notes: PEE
(1) In relation to properties the Group manages, (1] SAKEMRERENDENS  FEEFTEREDERERN

new engagements primarily include service
engagements for new constructions developed by
property developers and to a lesser extent, service
engagements for residential properties replacing
their existing property management companies.

(2)  Including the contracted GFA and the number of
properties the Group ceased to manage, which were
primarily due to non-renewal of certain property
management contracts and mutual termination prior
to expiration for commercial reasons.

HEMMFAEERBABNORBRE M SB2BEEY
EEHRRNAYEERRRNRBEE -

2) BEAKETBEENMESNEERERRAREE =
BERTEEETHEERE SN RENE R HNERATE
B IEZ AR
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SALE ASSISTANCE SERVICES

The Group provides property developers with
cleaning, security and maintenance of their
model homes and sales centers and assists in
facilitating the sale process of the properties. The
sale assistance service contracts generally have a
duration of 6 to 18 months and could be terminated
prior to the expiration date if all display units have
been sold out. The Group provided sale assistance
services to 72 and 81 properties in 2016 and 2015,
respectively. The Group can enter into new property
management contracts with most of the property
developers via this sales channel by demonstrating
the expertise and providing quality sales assistance
services.

OTHER SERVICES AND SALES OF
GOODS

The Group provides installation, repairing and
maintenance services primarily to the elevators
of the properties under management. Engineering
spare parts can be sold separately to other elevator
servicing companies. Also, the Group operates
canteens in the government buildings and provides
catering services there. In relation to consulting
services, the Group provides consultation and advice
to property developers on various aspects of their
operations, including the general structure, lift or
road planning of the properties which may affect the
quality of the property management services that the
residents receive subsequently.
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COMMUNITY 020 PLATFORM

Since the launch of the community 020 platform
(“Aidaojia”) by the Group in June 2015, the
application has experienced rapid development in
2016.

As of 31 December 2016, the Aidaojia mobile
application of the Group covered approximately 4,700
residential properties with approximately 476,000
registered users. The number of orders processed
(including both promotional and non-promotional
orders]) for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
approximately 1,028,000.

PROSPECTS AND FUTURE PLANS

The Group will continue to maintain its own
advantage as an independent property management
company and compete with counterparts in the
market by its high quality service and operational
efficiency. The Group will actively establish stable
partnership with leading property developers in
all regions and explore potential projects under
development. The Group will strive to develop new
business relationships from the existing customer
base and own network in order to provide strong
organic growth to the Group. The Group targets
to expand its portfolio of customers by pursuing
properties which have owners’ association recently
established. Furthermore, when right opportunities
arise, the Group will accelerate its expansion of
business scope and coverage in China by means of
acquisitions.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHEE T wm B AT

Owing to the significant resources commitment by
the Group on the development of the 020 business
during the year, the Group has incurred significant
costs and expenses (such as selling, marketing,
promotion and distribution expenses] in developing
and promoting this business in order to enlarge the
customer base of the Group.

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
6 April 2017, in order to save on maintenance and
operational costs, the Company, Mr. Luo Tao (former
chief executive of the 020 business) and Hangzhou
Chuangnian Network Technology Co., Ltd* ("CNT")
have entered into the technical services agreement
on 6 April 2017 (the “Technical Services Agreement”)
under which CNT will provide maintenance and
operation services to the Group's Aidaojia 020
platform at a monthly fee of RMB100,000.

This measure is to mitigate the loss attributable
to the development of the 020 business. To this
end, the entering into of the Technical Services
Agreement and the outsourcing of the maintenance
and operation services of the Group’s 020 platform
to CNT is an appropriate measure for the Group in
achieving this objective. The Directors are of the view
that the Technical Services Agreement was entered
into under normal commercial terms and that the
terms are fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

* The English name is for identification purpose only

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REVIEW
Revenue

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group recorded revenue of RMB635.1 million,
representing an increase of 51.2% over 2015.
Increase in the Group’s revenue was mainly due
to the growth in property management services,
other service and sales of goods, together with the
revenue generated from the 020 platform. Revenue
from the three business lines for the year ended 31
December 2016 were RMB559.4 million, RMB11.8
million and RMB8.3 million, comparing to RMB351.7
million, RMBO0.3 million and RMB2.0 million in
2015, represented increases of RMB207.7 million,
RMB11.4 million and RMBé6.3 million, or 59.1%,
3,334.1% and 317.0%, respectively. Other services
and sales of goods became a major line of business
during the year with a revenue growth from RMBO0.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
RMB11.8 million in 2016 after the acquisition of
Yongcheng.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Breakdown of Revenue by business line

EHEE T wm B DT

REXGEDNWREHHA

For the year ended
31 December
BZ12A3MBLEE

2016 2015 Change
20165 20165 &
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB'000 %
ARBTRT AR®TT AR®BTR %
Property management services  #13%%& ARTE 559,372 351,693 207,679 59.1
Sale assistance services 5 88 IR 75 55,731 66,137 (10,406) (15.7)
Other services and sales of goods H AR &

HEE M 11,779 343 11,436 3,334.1

Revenue from community 020  #t[®020F &
Platform g 8,264 1,982 6,282 317.0
635,146 420,155 214,991 51.2

Property management services YIEEE R

Revenue from property management services
increased by RMB207.7 million or 59.1% over 2015
primarily due to (i) organic growth in the Group’s
existing property management services business
as a result of increase in the delivered contracted
GFA by 3.5 million sq.m.; and (ii) additional revenue
attributable to the delivered contracted GFA of
18.9 million sq.m. bringing in the Group through
new acquisitions namely Eastern Harbour and
Yongcheng.

Sales assistance services

Revenue from the sale assistance services business
line for the year ended 31 December 2016 was
RMB55.7 million, comparing to RMB66.1 million in
2015, representing a decrease of RMB10.4 million,
or 15.7%. The decrease in revenue from the sales
assistance service business line was due to the
decrease in the number of projects from 81 in 2015
to 72 in 2016 and the decrease in average revenue
of each project from approximately RMB817,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately
RMB774,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016.

YT IR RIEFTSRZEER2015FEIMARK207.7688
TLH59.1% c TERABNEX A HEEEEE N
3S5EEFAK  UBAEBREMEETEREESA
R R)EBFTWE RS BB RKKAELAER
RELZALRBEEME8.9E B F HKNFEIMNIE -

125 8% AR 75

HZE2016F 1283 BIEFE - BEREEBEMEBK
HAARESSTAEBIL B2016FMARK66IEE
TR AREEN10.4E B IT15.7% W8RG ZEIS LR AT
B A TIRATE R 88 m20155811ER 2 Z=2016
F72E - UREEEEB FHREHBZE2015F12831
BIEFEHARES17,0007TH L EHE2016F12 731
HIEFELHARET74,0000T °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Other services and sales of goods

Revenue from other services and sales of goods
during the year ended 31 December 2016 was
RMB11.8 million (2015: RMBO0.3 million]. This
business line primarily consists of the provision
of consulting services, engineering and catering
services, and the sales of engineering spare parts.
The increase in revenue of this business line was
mainly due to revenue received or receivable from
Yongcheng which has been newly acquired during
the year.

Community 020 Platform

Revenue from the community 020 platform for
the year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB8.3
million, comparing to RMB2.0 million in 2015,
represented an increase of RMB6.3 million or
317.0%. This revenue was mainly generated from
the provision of community e-commerce services
including high-frequency commodities consuming
and delivering daily living services as well as offline
merchant services for residents through the Group’s
community 020 platform.

Cost of Sales and Services

The Group’s cost of sales and services for property
management and sales assistance services
primarily comprise [(i] sub-contracting costs,
representing the expenses paid to sub-contractors
for various services under the property management
and sales assistance business lines; (ii) staff
costs; (iii) depreciation expenses associated with
equipment and property used in providing services;
and (iv] others, primarily representing raw material
costs, travelling expenses and communication
expenses.

38 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

HiRBEREEER
REZE2016F12A31HLEFE - EMRBEREEER
W B ARKE1B8EEL(2015F : ARKIIES
T0) o WEBKFETERIEREFARY - ITERESRR
% AREETIRTIHMN - IhEBGR WG MY E
TR B R F R FTUREE Z kAR R B sk FE I 2 Wi 2 o

1+ E020F &

HZE2016F12A31HIEFE - tE020F A 15l
BARESIAET  B2015FEMARK2.08ETIE N
TARKECIABEILHI17.0% c ZRBZTERBAEF
REMEETFEHERE  BREBAEENLE020
FEURBEREREEMREAEEERE  UEE
TEPRE °

$HE R IR KA
AEBETHMEEERDEREOEE RRBEKAE
SEFENDBRAGERMEEE L HEESE N2 E
RIS T o e memEs) i) B TR : (i) R R
BEAMRERDEEBOTEM S + RlivVIEM(E
BIEFRERKA - ZRAT RBAFAS) °




Cost of sales and services for the property
management and sales assistance business lines
increased by 63.8% from RMB275.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2015 to approximately
RMB450.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2016. The increase was primarily due to the growth
of business and the corresponding increase in the
staff costs and sub-contracting costs. The increase
in staff costs was attributable to (i) increase in the
number of employees that the Group employed
directly; and (ii) increase in the average salary of the
Group's employees. The increase in sub-contracting
costs was attributable to the expansion of the
Group's business.

Cost of sales and services for community 020
platform for the year ended 31 December 2016
was RMB21.1 million (2015: RMB4.2 million],
which primarily comprised (i) the cost of daily
necessities sold; (ii) expenses including personnel
cost and expenses attributable to buying, receiving,
inspecting and warehousing inventories, picking,
packaging, and preparing customer orders for
delivery; and [iii) rental expenses of leased
warehouses, delivery and pickup stations.

Costs of other services and sales of goods for the
year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB6.5 million
(2015: RMBO0.6 million), which primarily consisted of
(i) salaries cost of the technicians in the provision of
elevator engineering services; (ii) costs of the spare
parts sold; and (iii) operating costs in running the
catering services in 2016 whereas the costs were
relating to consulting services in 2015.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EHEE T wm B AT

Gross Profit (Loss) and Gross
Profit(Loss) Margin
The tables below sets forth the Group's gross profit/

(loss) and gross profit/(loss] margins by business
line for the years indicated:

ER(ER)REN(ER)R

TRBIISEBRAF R EERLBRES TR, (£
18)REF,(ER)% :

For the year ended 31 December
BZ12A3MALFE

2016 2015

20164 20154
% of % of
RMB’000 revenue RMB’'000 revenue
AR® T HKE% ARETT 15 U 38 %
Property management services ¥ &2 AR 139,451 24.9 112,564 32.0
Sale assistance services 10 #H AR 75 24,790 44.5 30,050 45.4

Other services and H AR K

sales of goods HEE M 5,329 45.2 (265) (77.3)
Community 020 platform #HE020F & (12,832) (155.3) (2,261) (114.1)
Total Bzt 156,738 24.7 140,088 33.3

The Group’s gross profit for the year ended 31
December 2016 was RMB156.7 million, comparing to
RMB140.1 million in 2015, represented an increase
of RMB16.7 million, or 11.9%. The Group's overall
gross profit margin decreased from 33.3% for the
year ended 31 December 2015 to 24.7% in 2016. The
decrease in the Group's overall gross profit margin
was primarily due to (i] the substantial increase in
gross loss incurred in the community 020 platform
by RMB10.6 million in 2016, [ii] increase in staff costs
paid to the property management service employees;
and (iii] relatively lower gross profit margin of
properties managed in Yongcheng.
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Other Gains and Losses

The Group's other losses for the year ended 31
December 2016 was RMB2.2 million, comparing to
RMBA4.0 million in 2015, represented a decrease in a
net other losses of RMB1.8 million, or 45.0%. Other
gains and losses in 2016 primarily comprised of
two items: i) net exchange gain of RMB12.1 million
as a result of drop in Renminbi exchange rate over
2016; and ii) allowance for doubtful debts on trade
receivables of RMB13.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2016.

Administrative Expenses

The Group's administrative expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2016 was RMB99.7 million,
comparing to RMB51.0 million in 2015, which
represented an increase of RMB48.7 million, or
95.5%. The increase was primarily attributable to the
increase in (i) administrative expenses of RMB19.9
million in the operation of community 020 platform
in 2016; (ii) increase in Directors’ emoluments of
RMB5.4 million; (iii) absorption of administrative
expenses of Eastern Harbour and Yongcheng
amounting to RMB8.5 million after consolidating to
the Group this year; and (iv) expansion of the Group's
business scale.

Other Expenses

The Group's other expenses for the year ended 31
December 2016 was RMB9.8 million (2015: nil).
The expenses was attributable to the legal and
professional fees for new acquisitions.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group’s selling and distribution expenses for the
year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB29.5 million,
comparing to RMB7.6 million in 2015, represented
an increase of RMB21.9 million and primarily due
to increase in the Group’s business development,
marketing and promotion expenses of RMB19.9
million incurred for the 020 operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Finance Costs

The Group’s finance costs increased from RMB1.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2015 to
RMB4.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2016. The increase was primarily due to increase
in (i) interest expense of RMB1.0 million for bank
borrowings and [(ii) imputed interest expenses on
consideration payable and share based payments of
RMB1.1 million and RMB1.0 million, respectively.

Share-based Payment Expenses

The Group recognised share-based payment
expenses of RMB16.0 million (2015: RMB19.9
million) for the year ended 31 December 2016.
Decrease in the share-based payment expense was
primarily due to fewer employees remained eligible
for exercising the Pre-IPO share options during the
year.

Income Tax Expenses

The Group’s income tax expense for the year ended
31 December 2016 was RMB27.6 million, comparing
to RMB24.8 million in 2015, represented an increase
of RMB2.8 million, or 11.3%. The Group’s effective
tax rate increased from 70.0% for the year ended 31
December 2015 to 113.8% in 2016 since the losses in
the 020 business incurred during the year were not
utilised for tax purposes.

Net (loss) profit and Adjusted Net
Profit for the Year

For the year ended 31 December 2016, as a result
of the cumulative effect of the above factors, the
Group’s net loss was RMB3.4 million and its net loss
margin was 0.5%.

Our adjusted net profit was derived from our net
profit (loss) for both years by adding share-based
payment expenses, legal and professional fees for
acquisition of property management companies,
change in fair value of financial liabilities designated
as at FVTPL, listing expenses and excluding the
net loss incurred for the community 020 platform.
As these cost items are either non-recurring, non-
cash spending or incurred from a separate business
line, the Group believes that separate analysis of
the impacts of these cost items adds clarity to the
constituent part of the Group's results of operations
and provides additional useful information for
investors to assess the operating performance of the
Group’s core business. The adjusted net profit is an
unaudited figure.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The following table reconciles our adjusted net profit <35 & I 7 £ B A B 7R 48 9 89 & 58 22 40 F1 B2 B R 2 1R
for the year presented to the profit under HKFRSs for 1R 35354 B 75 3R &5 Y= Bl B 2 33 A1) A 3 BE -
the years indicated:

For the year ended 31 December

BZEZ12ANBLEE

2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARBTT

(Loss) profit for the year RIBE BV B mEEL 28]
under HKFRS FR (B1R) B (3,352) 10,613
Add: b
Net loss incurred for the 020 F A EAREBEFHE
020 platform 50,266 7,979
Share-based payment expenses A& A7 5 R =2 16,028 19,928
Legal and professional fees WEEM R E IR N mIHER N
for acquisition of property EXEH
management companies 9,837 -
Change in fair value of financial EERBATE ABED
liabilities designated as at FVTPL THEENDTEEY — 6,343
Listing expenses FmRx = 35,881
Adjusted net profit for the year B ERNAR 72,779 80,744
Deferred Taxation R IE

As of 31 December 2016 and 2015, the deferred tax 720164 %2015 128318 » FiERIECHBEEETY
asset recognised was mainly attributable to the FEBRARBERES R AARBILEETLRARE
allowance of doubtful debt of RMB16.4 million and 9.9B/&T °

RMB9.9 million, respectively.
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and
Capital Structure

The Group maintains a strong and healthy financial
position. The Group's principal sources of funds
to finance the working capital, capital expenditure
and other capital requirements were internally
generated by cash flows and bank loans. As of 31
December 2016, net working capital (calculated as
current assets less current liabilities) was RMB212.3
million which represented a decrease of RMB209.4
million from RMB421.7 million as of 31 December
2015 primarily due to the considerations paid for
new acquisitions during the year. The current ratios
(calculated as current assets/current liabilities) are
1.5 times and 3.1 times as of 31 December 2016 and
31 December 2015 respectively.

As of 31 December 2016, the Group had bank
borrowings denominated in RMB of RMB25.3 million
(2015: RMB29.6 million], among which RMB2.3
million in 2016 was secured by the investment
properties of the Group and RMB20.0 million
was secured by the Group’'s bank deposit as of
31 December 2015. Bank borrowings of RMB25.3
million as of 31 December 2016 were fixed-rate,
whereas the balance of RMB29.6 million represented
variable-rate borrowings as of 31 December 2015.
In addition, the Group had an unsecured bank
borrowing amounting to RMB103.6 million (2015: nil)
which was variable-rate and denominated in HK$ as
of 31 December 2016.

The Group principally focused on the operation in the
PRC. Except for the cash, bank deposits and bank
borrowings denominated in foreign currencies, the
Group was not subject to any other material risk
directly relating to the foreign exchange fluctuation.
For the year ended 31 December 2016, despite
the depreciation of RMB against USD and HKD,
the Directors expected any fluctuation of the RMB
exchange rate would not materially and adversely
affect the operations of the Group. The management
will continue to monitor foreign currency exchange
exposure and will take prudent measures to
minimize the currency translation risk.
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Gearing Ratio

The gearing ratio is defined as total borrowings net
of pledged bank deposits and bank balances and
cash divided by total equity. As of 31 December 2016,
the Group was in a strong financial position with a
net cash position amounting to RMB313.5 million
(2015: RMB482.3 million). Accordingly, no gearing
ratio is presented.

Pledge of Assets

As of 31 December 2015, restricted bank deposits
in the amount of RMB62.8 million were pledged to
guarantee the drawdown of loans by the Group in
order to transfer the Group’s cash from offshore to
onshore entities. Pledge of the deposits has been
released in September 2016 due to the repayment
of bank borrowings. Accordingly, no bank deposit
has been pledged to financial institutions as of 31
December 2016.

At 31 December 2016, investment properties of
RMB14.4 million (2015: nil) were pledged to secure
certain banking facilities granted to the Group.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as of
31 December 2016.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION
POLICIES

As of 31 December 2016, the Group had
approximately 6,700 (2015: 1,500) employees. In
order to enhance the morale and productivity of
employees, employees are remunerated based
on their performance, experience and prevailing
industry practices. Compensation policies and
packages of management staff and functional heads
are being reviewed on a yearly basis. In addition
to basic salary, performance related salary may
also be awarded to employees based on internal
performance evaluation. Moreover, the Company
adopted a share option scheme in April 2015 which
allows the Directors to grant share options to,
among other persons, Directors and employees of
the Group in order to retain elite personnel to stay
with the Group and to provide incentives for their
contribution to the Group. As of 31 December 2016,
the Group granted an aggregate of 80,000,000 (2015:
80,000,000) share options to certain Directors and
employees of the Group.
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The Group also invests in continuing education and
training programmes for management staff and
other employees with a view to upgrading their skills
and knowledge. These training courses comprise
internal courses run by the management of the
Group and external courses provided by professional
trainers and range from technical training for
butlers to financial and administrative trainings for
management staff.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES OR
ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the
Group had no material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries or associates during the year ended 31
December 2016.

At 31 December 2016, the Group has no specific plan
for major investment or acquisition for major capital
assets or other businesses. However, the Group will
continue to identify new opportunities for business
development.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS

On 25 November 2015, the Company issued
200,000,000 new shares of nominal value of HK$0.01
each in connection with the listing of its shares on
the Stock Exchange (the “IPO”). The net proceeds
after deducting the underwriting commission and
issuing expenses arising from the IPO amounted to
HK$289.1 million (equivalent to RMB238.2 million).

Up to 31 December 2016, RMB58.2 million has
been utilised for the development of the 020
platform and RMB118.9 million has been utilized
in the acquisitions of Eastern Harbour and
Yongcheng. RMBO0.7 million has been utilized for
the implementation of training and recruitment
programs. The remaining net proceeds of RMB60.4
million were deposited with certain licensed
financial institutions as of 31 December 2016.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND
UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results and business
operations may be affected by a number of risks
and uncertainties, some of which are inherent to the
Group’s business and some from external sources.

Industry Risk

The China residential property management industry
is highly competitive and fragmented. Competition
may intensify as the Group’'s competitors expand
their product or service offerings into or as new
competitors enter the Group’s existing or new
markets. If the Group does not compete successfully
against existing and new competitors, the Group
may not be able to renew its existing contracts upon
expiration or fail to win the bid for new projects.

In the Group’s 020 business, the Group faces
intense competition in the market for customers,
merchants and suppliers, and the Group expects
competition to continue to intensify in the future. In
particular, the Group may encounter more intense
competition from developers with full-fledged
property management services capacity when the
Group seeks to extend the Group’'s 020 business
into properties managed by them or explore
opportunities in markets where they have strong
influence since they may already have their own 020
platform.

Increased competition in the property management
industry and the 020 industry may result in reduced
pricing for the Group’s services and a decrease in the
Group's market share.

Business Risk

The Group constantly faces the challenge of
responding promptly to market changes within
the industry sectors it operates in. Any failure to
interpret market trends properly and adapt its
strategy to such changes accordingly may have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s financial
condition, results, and business operations.
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Financial Risk

In the course of its business activities, the Group is
exposed to various financial risks, including market,
liquidity and credit risks.

The Group’s earnings and financial position may
be adversely affected by movements in foreign
exchange rates and interest rate. In particular,
any depreciation in the Group's bank balances
denominated in foreign currency may affect its
net profit. The Group will closely monitor the
relative foreign exchange positions of its assets
and liabilities and allocate its holdings of different
currencies accordingly in order to minimise foreign
currency risk.

The Group may also be subject to liquidity risk if it
is unable to obtain adequate funding to finance its
operations. In the management of liquidity risk, the
Group’s management monitors and maintains a level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group's operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group is also subject to exposure to credit
risk from its customers. However, the Group had
no concentration of credit risk in respect of trade
receivables, with exposure spread over a number
of customers, who are residents and property
developers in the communities managed by the
Group.

48 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

B F5 B

EXBRBNBRET  AKEEEZEMBER - £
Bh5 - RBEEREERR

RE B BN B AR & X B SN I R R R
BONTMEE - LER  WAKEAIMNEFHERRTT
REHRIE NEFEHAN  AKREREYEREE
=N BENERENENR  HESEEARAENTRE
% UREREINERR -

HABERBEANESBNELE A RETF A EHER
RBECAR - EEARBESRRE  AEENEE
EERL@FEEERARRANRE MRS FE YK
FoABAAKENEE  BEREAENPNTE o

AEETHEREETFHEERR - AT - AEME
VEREESRUKAEREEESETRAR  AREES
RBROBRZE2EF  BERAKEMEELROE
FRYFEERRRA -




DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

DIRECTORS

MR. LIU JIAN
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Liu Jian, aged 49, is the chairman, president and
the chief executive officer of the Company and was
appointed as an executive Director of the Company
on 5 January 2015. Being one of the first members
of the Group, Mr. Liu founded Guangdong Zhong Ao
Property Management Company Limited ("Zhong
Ao Property”) with Ms. Chen Zhuo in September
2005. Mr. Liu was appointed as the sole director
of Zhong Ao Property in September 2005 and has
been primarily responsible for overall operation
and management, strategic planning and business
development. Mr. Liu plays a key role in the Group’s
business development and has led its business
expansion from Guangdong province to other parts
of China. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Liu worked
at Guilin Park Hotel Co., Ltd. FEMEEHIER/EBR A F)
from May 1990 to August 1994 and his last position
held was manager. From September 1994 to March
1999, he worked at Guilin Royal Gardens Hotel Co.,
Ltd. (EM#0E/EHR AR and his last position
held was manager. From 1999 to December 2003,
Mr. Liu served as general manager of Guangzhou
Olympic Garden Property Co. Ltd. (E/NEHMITTEIE
E#3 2 7)) and from February 2004 to June 2005,
as general manager of Nanguo Aoyuan Property
Company (FAEIRE®ZE 2 7A]), both companies
being subsidiaries of Guangdong Yabo Property
Service Company Limited (ERBEEMERBEBR
‘A7) ("Guangdong Yabo”). Mr. Liu graduated from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology (Z
f 12 T K] with a bachelor’'s degree in economics
in 1988. In 2008, Mr. Liu attained a master’'s degree
in business administration from Asia International
Open University (Macau).
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MS. CHEN ZHUO
Executive director and vice president

Ms. Chen Zhuo, aged 39, is a vice president of the
Company and was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 5 January 2015. Ms. Chen joined
the Group as vice president when Zhong Ao Property
was established in September 2005. As a founder
and a member of the core management team of
the Group, she has been primarily responsible
for overall operation and management, strategic
planning and business development. Ms. Chen
served as deputy general manager of Guangdong
Yabo from August 2002 to March 2005. Ms. Chen
received a college degree from Sun Yat-sen
University (FFILAZ) in 1999, majoring in business
management. Ms. Chen obtained the qualification of
a property management manager in 2000 from the
Ministry of Construction of the PRC.

MR. LIANG BING
Executive director and vice president

Mr. Liang Bing, aged 45, is a vice president of the
Company and was appointed as an executive director
of the Company on 5 January 2015. Mr. Liang joined
the Group as vice president in September 2005. As a
member of the Group’s core management team, he
has been primarily responsible for overall operation
and management, strategic planning and business
development. Mr. Liang served as deputy general
manager of Guangdong Yabo from May 2002 to June
2005. Mr. Liang graduated and attained a bachelor’s
degree in environmental engineering from Hunan
University (8 X2) located in Hunan, the PRC in
July 1996. He obtained the qualification as a general
agent in June 1997 from Administration of Industry
and Commerce of Guangzhou Municipality (/N T
FEITTERE 2 /@), He later obtained a master’s degree
in business administration for senior management
from Sun Yat-sen University (1 1LK22) in 2013.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

MR. LONG WEIMIN
Executive director and vice president

Mr. Long Weimin, aged 54, is a vice president of
the Company and was appointed as an executive
director of the Company on 5 January 2015. Mr. Long
joined the Group as vice president in June2008. As a
member of the Group’s core management team, he
has been primarily responsible for overall operation
and management, strategic planning and business
development. Mr. Long has 14 years of experience in
the hospitality industry. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Long served as a deputy general manager at
Guangxi Nanning Fenghuang Lodge (EFiF 2 E EE
#8) from November 2001 to January 2004, as a deputy
general manager at Purui Hotspring Hotel (& I# 8 &
JJE) from 2003 to 2007 and as a general manager at
Luoyang Mudou International Hotel Co. Ltd. ((%F5
SHEBBIRR BRJE B BR A &) from 2007 to 2008. Mr. Long
graduated and attained adiploma from Guangxi
Radio and TV University (BEFAEEERAZ) in 1982,

MR. WEI ZHE
Non-executive Director

Mr. Wei Zhe, aged 46, joined the Company and
was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company on 17 April 2015. Mr. Wei has over
20 years of experience in both investment and
operational management in China. Prior to joining
the Group, Mr. Wei served as corporate finance
manager at Coopers & Lybrand (now part of
PricewaterhouseCoopers) from 1995 to 1998 and as
the head of investment banking at Orient Securities
Company Limited from 1998 to 2000. Mr. Wei was a
vice chairman, from 2002 to 2006, and a consultant,
from 2007 to 2011, of China Chain Store & Franchise
Association. From 2003 to 2006, Mr. Wei was also
the chief representative for Kingfisher’s China
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sourcing office, Kingfisher Asia Limited. Mr. Wei
joined Alibaba Group and served as senior vice
president of the B2B Division, from November 2006
to January2007, and president of the B2B Division
and executive vice-president of Alibaba Group, from
February 2007 to February 2011. He was an executive
director and chief executive officer of Alibaba.com
Limited, a leading worldwide B2B e-commerce
company listed on the Stock Exchange in 2007, from
October 2007 to February 2011. He was voted as one
of “China’s Best CEOs” by FinanceAsia magazine
in2010. He founded Vision Knight Capital, a private
equity investment fund in June 2011 and served
as a founding partner and the Chairman. Mr. Wei
graduated from Shanghai International Studies
University with a bachelor’s degreein international
business management in July 1993. He also
completed the corporate finance program at London
Business School in June 1998.

Mr. Wei was a non-executive director of HSBC
Bank (China) Company Limited from April 2007 to
February 2011 and The Hongkong and Shanghai
Banking Corporation Limited from January2008
to February 2011. He was an independent non-
executive director of PCCW Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 00008), from November 2011 to May
2012 and was re-designated as a non-executive
director in May2012. He is currently a non-executive
director of PCCW Limited. Mr Wei is also a non-
executive director of JNBY Design Limited, and an
independent non-executive director of Zall Group
Ltd., which are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited. He is also an independent director
of Leju Holdings Limited which is listed on the New
York Stock Exchange and Shanghai M&G Stationery
Inc. which is listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange.

MS. WU QIMIN
Non-executive Director

Ms. Wu Qimin, aged 46, joined the Company and
was appointed as a non-executive director of the
Company on 17 April 2015. Ms. Wu joined E-house
Capital (%/E&7) in 2008 and currently serves as
co-president of Jupai Holdings Limited (NYSE: JP)
and president of E-house Capital. Ms. Wu graduated
from Shanghai Institute of Urban Construction (&
YW T2 PT) with a bachelor’'s degree in civil
engineering in 1992. She later obtained a master’s
degree in construction economics and management
from Tongji University (EEAZ) in 1999.
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MR. LAMYIU POR
Non-executive Director

Mr. Lam Yiu Por, aged 40, joined the Company
and was appointed as a non-executive director
of the Company on 17 April 2015. Mr. Lam has
more than 17 years of experience in finance and
accounting. Mr. Lam is currently serving as the
vice president and chief financial officer of L'sea
Resources International Holdings Limited (F)8%&
TREIBIZERR BBR A F]) (listed company on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 00195). Mr. Lam graduated
from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a
bachelor’s degree in accountancy in November 1997.
He is also a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants, a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, a chartered financial analyst
of the Chartered Financial Analyst Institute and an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and The Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and Administrators.

Mr. Lam is currently an independent non-executive
director of Denox Environment & Technology
Holdings Limited (listed company on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1452}, an independent non-
executive director of JNBY Design Limited (listed
company on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 03306)
and an independent non-executive director of China
Tontine Wines Group Limited (listed company on
the Stock Exchange, stock code: 00389). He was
an independent non-executive director of Yat Sing
Holdings Limited (BB IZEARBFR A F)(listed company
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 03708) during the
period of December 2014 to March 2016 and was an
independent non-executive director of GR Properties
Limited (BI8iEBR AR (listed company on the
Stock Exchange, stock code: 00108), during the
period of June 2012 to February 2014.
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MR. ZHENG DONG
Non-executive Director

Mr. Zheng Dong, aged 51, joined the Company
and was appointed as a non-executive director of
the Company on 5 January 2017. Mr. Zheng has
over 20 years of experience in sales and property
development. From May 2011 to March 2016, Mr.
Zheng was the managing director of Yixing Hongli
Oriental Tourism Real Estate Development Company
Limited (EEDRV RS IREMERZER DA,
From April 2007 to March 2011, Mr. Zheng was the
director and general manager of Jiangsu Zhong
Tang Real Estate Company Limited (TEHPEE %
BBR/AE]). From October 1996 to March 2007, Mr.
Zheng held various management positions at China
Sports Industry Group Company Limited (FFE8E 2
SERMBERAE]. Mr. Zheng held sales position
in a number of other companies between 1988 and
1997. Mr. Zheng graduated from Liaoning University
with a bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1988,
and obtained a master’'s degree in Economics from
Liaoning University in 1996 and a master’s degree in
Project Management from University of Management
& Technology in 2005.

MR. LEE KWOK TUNG LOUIS
Independent non-executive director

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis, aged 49, joined the
Company and was appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in November
2015. Mr. Lee has gained over 24 years of experience
with unlisted groups, listed groups and professional
firms in finance, accounting and auditing since
1993. Mr. Lee graduated from Macquarie University,
Australia with a bachelor’s degree in Economics
in April 1993. Mr. Lee has been a certified public
accountant of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since October 1999 and a
certified practicing accountant of the CPA Australia
since June 1996.

Mr. Lee is currently an independent non-executive
director of CGN Mining Company Limited, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 01164) and an independent non-
executive director of Winto Group (Holdings) Limited,
a company listed on the Growth Enterprise Market of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 08238).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

MR. ZHANG WEILUN
Independent non-executive director

Mr. Zhang Weilun, aged 44, joined the Company and
was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 5 November 2015. Prior
to joining the Group, he worked as an assistant
project manager and project manager at Shimizu
Corporation UEKEZHZKA £4t) from June 1996
to November 1997 and from December 1997 to
May 1998 respectively. During 1999 to 2004, he
successively served as a general manager of Nanguo
Olympic Garden (FERIBEAMIC T IEE), a president,
vice-chairman and director of Wuhan Chengcheng
Cultural Investment Group Co., Ltd. (EZ#BASC
LI EEEA B BR AT (later changed to Wuhan
Aoyuan City Development Co., Ltd. (% B EH H 2
[RHZA B MR 2 R]) and then Wuhan Wanhong Group
Co., Ltd. (BUE&EBEERM AR AF)) (stock code:
600681), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, an executive vice president and a director
of Aoyuan Group Limited (REEEBRAE]). Mr.
Zhang has been the chairman and general manager
of Guangzhou Willsun Real Estate Co., Ltd. [[EM 4
HREEAMR AT since 2005. Mr. Zhang graduated
from Wuhan University of Hydraulic and Electrical
Engineering (EVZ7KF|E 1K E) with a bachelor’s
degree in civil engineering in 1993.

MR. YUAN BOYIN
Independent non-executive director

Mr. Yuan Boyin, aged 52, joined the Company and
was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 5 November 2015. Prior
to joining the Group, from July 1997 to October
2000, Mr. Yuan served as the managing director of
China Resources Supermarket (Suzhou] Co., Ltd.
(FEBHBEATS (&I ) BMRAF). From November
2000 to May 2007, he was employed by B&Q (China)
Investment Co., Ltd. (A& /E (FE)ZREHBR A A
and held management positions of vice president
of operations, vice president of buying, executive
vice president of commercial and executive vice
president of B2B business. From June 2007 to
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August 2011, he was employed by China Vanke Co.,
Ltd. (BRI ZE B B MR 27l and his last position
held was group executive vice president. From
August 2011 to December 2012, he served as the
president of Red Star Macalline Group Corporation
Ltd. (AL E2XHEXREEBEKRHGFRQF). From
January 2013 to August 2013, he served as the chief
executive officer of Shanghai Red Star Macalline
Investment Co., Ltd. (L/BAT2 XS FEREBRAQF).
He has been holding the post of the CEO of Shanghai
Brillia Business Management Consulting Co.,Ltd.
(EBmatxERFRAER AT )since September
2013 till now and the Chairman of Shanghai Yuntai
Investment Co.,Ltd. (E/BEAEREERAFTNEER)
since June 2015 till now. Mr. Yuan graduated from
Fudan University (18 B X2) with a bachelor’s degree
in Science in 1985. He later obtained a master’s
degree in engineering from Tsinghua University
(& # KX 2 )in 1987. Mr. Yuan was a director and
an executive chairman of Scintronix Corporation
Ltd., a company which was listed on the Singapore
Exchange, from November 2013 to February 2014.

MR. WU HAIBING
Independent non-executive director

Mr. Wu Haibing, aged 44, joined the Company and
was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of the Company on 5 November 2015. Mr.
Wu has over 15 years of experience in finance. Mr.
Wu worked for PricewaterhouseCoopers in the
United States from May 2000 to February 2006. He
later worked as a senior manager in the assurance
department of PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhong
Tian CPAs Limited Company from February 2006 to
November 2007. Since October 2007, he has been
serving as the chief financial officer of Plateno
Hotels Group (formerly known as 7 Days Group
Holdings Limited). Mr. Wu graduated from Shanghai
Jiao Tong University (/838K 2) with a bachelor’s
degree in economics in July 1994 and received a
master’'s degree in business administration from
Michigan State University in May 2000. Mr. Wu is
currently an independent non-executive director of
Acron Intenation Inc., a company listed on the New
York Stock Exchange (NYSE: ATV)
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

MR. CHAN KONG
Vice president

Mr. Chan Kong, aged 68, joined the Group as a vice
president in April 2008. Prior to joining the Group,
he served as an executive housekeeper at Guilin
Riverside Resort, China (& %2 & #8) from February
1987 to February 1988. From February 1988 to
January 2002, Mr. Chan worked with Macau CTS
Hotel Management (International) Limited (& F9
IR (BB ) HIEE IR AR AA]). He joined as a project
coordinator in 1988 and was later assigned by a
secondment to Hotel Universal Guilin in the capacity
of an executive housekeeper. He was subsequently
promoted and served as general manager of Hotel
Universal Guilin and general manager of Hotel
Metropole, Macau (2P &0E)E) and Xi'an Eastern
Haojing Hotel (78 & & 75 & % )& J5 ). From 2003 to
2004, he served as a manager at Man Wah Dongguan

Hotel (RZEXEAXEE).

MR. LEUNG WAI SHUN WILSON
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Leung Wai Shun Wilson joined the Group in
November 2016 and has been appointed as the
chief financial officer since then. He is primarily
responsible for the financial reporting, investor
relations and corporate finance of the Group. He
has over 20 years of experience in the field of
auditing, accounting and finance. Mr. Leung held
various senior positions in different organisations,
including in an international accounting firm
and listed companies in Hong Kong. During the
period from March 2012 to October 2014, Mr.
Leung was appointed as the Director of Yueshou
Environmental Holdings Limited (stock code: 1191)
who subsequently assumed the role of Finance
Director during his tenure there. During the period
from October 2015 to November 2016, Mr. Leung
served as the Company Secretary of another listed
company in Hong Kong prior to joining the Group.
Mr. Leung is currently a fellow member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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MS. XIANG YAN
Sale Director

Ms. Xiang Yan, aged 31, joined the Group in October
2005. She is Sales Director of the Group. Ms. Xiang
graduated from Jinan University (BF AX2) and
obtained a diploma in property management.

MR. YU HO MING
Financial Controller and Company Secretary

Mr. Yu Ho Ming, aged 39, has been appointed as
the financial controller and company secretary
of the Company on 10 April 2015. He is primarily
responsible for accounting, financial management
and company secretarial matters of the Group.
Mr. Yu has over 14 years of experience in auditing,
advisory accounting and financial management. Mr.
Yu is a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. He obtained his honours diploma
in accounting from Hong Kong Shue Yan College
(currently known as Hong Kong Shue Yan University)
and he was awarded a Master of Finance from Curtin
University.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The board ("Board”] of directors (“Directors”] of
the Company is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report for the year ended 31 December
2016.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining and
upholding high standards of corporate governance of
the Company to ensure that formal and transparent
procedures are in place to protect and maximise
the interests of the shareholders of the Company
(“Shareholders”).

The Company has adopted the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing
the Listing of the Securities (“Listing Rules”) on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited ("Stock
Exchange”) as its code of corporate governance.

In the opinion of the Directors, for the year ended 31
December 2016, the Company applied and complied
with all the code provisions of the CG Code except for
code provision A.2.1 and explained with considered
reasons for such deviation.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers ("Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for
Directors in their dealings in Company’s securities.
Having made specific enquiry to all Directors, all the
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the
required standard of dealings as set out in the Model
Code for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and
control of the Group and oversees the Group’s
businesses.

The Board is also responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties as set out below:

To develop and review the Company’s policies
and practices on corporate governance;

J To review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management;

. To review and monitor the Company’s policies
and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements;

. To develop, review and monitor the code
of conduct applicable to Directors and
employees; and

. To review the Company’s compliance with
the GC Code and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

(i) Board composition

The Board currently comprises a combination
of four executive directors, four non-executive
directors and four independent non-executive
directors. There is a strong independent
element on the Board, to ensure the
independence and objectivity of the Board's
decision making process as well as the
thoroughness and impartiality of the Board’s
oversight of the management.

The Board possesses, both as individual
Directors and collectively, appropriate
experience, competencies and personal
qualities, including professionalism and
integrity, to discharge its responsibilities
adequately and effectively. In addition, the
Board collectively has adequate knowledge
and expertise relevant to each of the material
business activities that the Company pursues
and the associated risks in order to ensure
effective governance and oversight.
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(ii)

Members of the Board, who come from a
variety of different backgrounds, have a
diverse range of business, professional
expertise. Biographical details of the
Directors are set out in the section “Directors
and Senior Management Profile” in this
Annual Report.

The Board members have no relationship
(including financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships) with each
other.

Throughout the year ended 31 December
2016, the Board consisted of the following
Directors:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jian [Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer]

Ms. Chen Zhuo

Mr. Liang Bing

Mr. Long Weimin

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wei Zhe

Ms. Wu Qimin

Mr. Lam Yiu Por

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis

Mr. Zhang Weilun

Mr. Yuan Boyin

Mr. Wu Haibing

Board meetings

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
eleven board meetings were held. Prior
notices convening the board meetings were
despatched to the Directors setting out the
matters to be discussed. At the meetings,
the Directors were provided with the relevant
documents to be discussed and approved. The
company secretary is responsible for keeping
minutes for the board meetings.

(i)
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(iii)

(iv)

YN
ERME

Responsibilities of the Board and
management

The executive directors, with the assistance
from the senior management, form the
core management team of the Company.
The executive directors have the overall
responsibility for formulating the business
strategies and development plan of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
the "Group”) and the senior management
personnel are responsible for supervising and
executing the plans of the Group.

Independence of independent
non-executive directors

In compliance with Rule 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and
3.10A of the Listing Rules, the Company has
appointed four independent non-executive
directors. The Board considers that all
independent non-executive directors have
appropriate and sufficient diversity, industry
or finance experience and qualifications to
carry out their duties so as to protect the
interests of the Shareholders. One of the
independent non- executive directors, Mr.
Lee Kwok Tung Louis has over 24 years
of experience with unlisted groups, listed
groups and professional firms in finance,
accounting and auditing since1993. Mr. Lee is
a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
a certified practicing accountant of the CPA
Australia.

Prior to their respective appointment, each of
the independent non-executive directors has
submitted a written statement to the Stock
Exchange confirming their independence and
has undertaken to inform the Stock Exchange
as soon as practicable if there is any
subsequent change of circumstances which
may affect their independence. In addition,
the Company has also received a written
confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive directors in respect of their
independence. Based on such confirmations,
the Board considers that all independent non-
executive directors are independent.

(iii)

(iv)
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(v)

Induction for Director and
continuous professional
development

Each newly appointed Director is provided
with necessary induction and information to
ensure that he has a proper understanding
of the Company’s operations and businesses
as well as his responsibilities under relevant
status, laws, rules and regulations. The
Company also provides Directors with regular
updates on latest development and changes in
the Listing Rules and other relevant legal and
regulatory requirements from time to time.
The Directors are also provided with regular
updates on the Company’'s performance,
position and prospects to enable the Board as
a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.

Directors are encouraged to participate in
continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills. The company secretary of the Company
has from time to time updated and provided
written training materials relating to the
roles, functions and duties of a Director.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

Chairman and chief executive officer are two key
aspects of the management of a company. Chairman
is responsible for providing leadership for the board
and management of the board while chief executive
officer is responsible for day-to-day management
of business. Clear division of these responsibilities
should be in place to ensure a balance power and
authority. The code provision A.2.1 of CG Code
which provides that the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

During the year, Mr. Liu Jian is the chairman
and chief executive officer of the Company. This
constitutes a deviation from the code provision A.2.1
of CG Code.
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The Company consider that having Mr. Liu acting
as both the chairman and chief executive officer
will provide a strong and consistent leadership to
the Group and allow for more effective strategic
planning and management of the Group. Further
in view of Mr. Liu's experience in the industry,
personal profile and role in the Group and historical
development of the Group, the Group considers it is
to the benefit of the Group in the business prospects
that Mr. Liu continues to act as both the chairman
and chief executive officer after the Listing.
Therefore, the Company currently has no intention
to separate the functions of chairman and chief
executive officer.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors have been appointed for an initial
term of three years renewable automatically until
terminated by not less than one month’s notice for
non-executive directors or three months’ notice
for independent non-executive directors in writing
served by either the Company or the respective
Director. All Directors shall be subject to retirement
by rotation and re-election at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the
articles of association of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Audit committee

The Company has established an audit committee
on 5 November 2015 with written terms of reference
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rule
and the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report as set out in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules. The audit committee consists
of four members, namely Mr. Lee Kwok Tung
Louis, Mr. Zhang Weilun, Mr. Yuan Boyin and Mr.
Wu Haibing, all being independent non-executive
directors. Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis is the chairman
of the audit committee and is the independent non-
executive director with the appropriate professional
qualifications. The primary duties of the audit
committee are to review and supervise the financial
reporting process and internal control system of the
Group, oversee the audit process and perform other
duties and responsibilities as assigned by the Board.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, two audit
committee meetings where held with 100% attending
by all audit committees members. At the meetings,
the members of audit committee principally
reviewed and discussed with the external auditor of
the Company about the Group’s annual results and
audited consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015, the interim review
scope and process for the Group’'s result for the six
months ended 30 June 2016, the interim results for
the six months ended 30 June 2016 and audit scope
and process for the Group's annual results for the
year ended 31 December 2016 and discussed with
the management about the effectiveness of the risk
management and assessment, financial reporting
process and internal control system, respectively.

Remuneration committee

The Company has established a remuneration
committee on 5 November 2016 with written terms of
reference in compliance with Rule 3.25 of the Listing
Rules and the Corporate Governance Code and
Corporate Governance Report as set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The remuneration committee
has five members, namely Mr. Zhang Weilun, Mr.
Lee Kwok Tung Louis, Mr. Yuan Boyin, Mr. Wu
Haibing and Ms. Chen Zhuo. Mr. Zhang Weilun is
the chairman of the remuneration committee. The
primary duties of the remuneration committee are
to establish and review the policy and structure
of the remuneration for the Directors and senior
management and approve recommendations on
management remuneration.

The remuneration committee meets to determine
the policy for the remuneration of Directors and
assess the performance of executive directors
and approving the terms of executive directors’
service contracts. In determining the remuneration
for Directors, the remuneration committee takes
into consideration factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and the desirability
of performance- based remuneration.
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During the year ended 31 December 2016, three
remuneration committee meetings were held and
the individual attendance of each director is set out
below:

HZE2016F12A31BIEFE RITZXFNEEST
& BESEEMEREELSEOT

Number of

Name 28 meeting attended
HESERH™

Mr. Zhang Weilun (Chairman) RiEmEE(EE) 3/3
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis FEIR A 3/3
Mr. Yuan Boyin RI{AREE 3/3
Mr. Wu Haibing REBEEE 2/3
Ms. Chen Zhuo PREEZ + 2/3

Nomination committee

The Company has established a nomination
committee on 5 November 2015 with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The
nomination committee has five members, namely
Mr. Liu Jian, Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis, Mr. Zhang
Weilun, Mr. Yuan Boyin and Mr. Wu Haibing. Mr. Liu
is the chairman of the nomination committee. The
primary duties of the nomination committee are to
review the structure, size and composition of the
Board and to make recommendations to the Board
on the appointment of Directors of the Company.

The nomination committee meets to discuss the
procedures and criteria which should be adopted
by them in nominating candidates for directorship
and agreed that such criteria should include
the candidates’ professional background, their
experiences and their past track record with other
listed companies (if any).

During the year ended 31 December 2016, one
nomination committee meeting was held with 100%
attendance by nomination committee’s number.
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DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE RECORDS
AT MEETINGS

The attendance records of each Director at various
meetings held during the year ended 31 December
2016 are set out in the table below:
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EENERNHFTE

TREWNSEENEHE2016F12A31B IELEERNETT
BHESHENTEH

Board
meeting AGM EGM
EEE
23 BRREFAE BRRESIXE
Executive directors HTESE
Mr. Liu Jian [Chairman and Bk (FEHF
Chief Executive Officer) TTE A ) 5/11 11 11
Ms. Chen Zhuo [ =Rogun 8/11 1/1 11
Mr. Liang Bing RESYE 6/11 1/1 1/1
Mr. Long Weimin ERESE 6/11 1/1 1/1
Non-executive directors FHITES
Mr. Wei Zhe HHTE 9/11 1/1 1/1
Ms. Wu Qimin Rzt 5/11 11 11
Mr. Lam Yiu Por RBEE R ST 11/11 11 11
Independent non-executive BYFHTES
directors
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis TR E 8/11 Al 11
Mr. Zhang Weilun SR 4t fm 9 A 8/11 11 11
Mr. Yuan Boyin =IARTE 9/11 11 11
Mr. Wu Haibing RBEESE 8/11 0/1 1/1
AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION VRN &

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the total
fees paid/payable in respect of audit and non-audit
services provided to the Group by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu are set out below:

BE20166F 12831 A LLFE - SRH - MERy &3
B3 A5 SR IR G R SRR BB o B
BEERIIMT -

RMB'000
AREFIT
Audit service ZERE
Audit of the annual consolidated financial statements ERFESEEVBHRE 1,550
Non-audit service IR BRI
Interim review of financial results for HZE20165F6A308 1ENEA 2
the six months ended 30 June 2016 WIS S AR R 900
Major transaction for acquisition of subsidiaries WM B ARz EERS 4,900
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Directors’ and auditor’s
responsibilities on the financial
statements

The Directors acknowledge that it is their
responsibility to prepare the accounts of the Group
and other disclosures required under the Listing
Rules and the management will provide information
and explanation to the Board to enable it to make
an informed assessment of the financial and other
Board decisions.

A statement by the Company’'s independent
external auditor, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, about
their reporting responsibilities is included in the
“Independent Auditor's Report” in this Annual
Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary supports the chairman,
Board and Board committees by developing good
corporate governance practices and procedures.
The Company Secretary of the Company was an
employee of the Company and the Company did not
engage an external service provider as its company
secretary. The Company Secretary took no less than
15 hours of the relevant professional training during
the year ended 31 December 2016.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is accountable for overseeing the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing its effectiveness, while the management
and other personnel are responsible for
implementing and maintaining the internal controls
systems that covers governance, compliance, risk
management, financial and operational controls
to safeguard the Group’'s assets and stakeholders’
interests. The system is designed to manage rather
than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable, and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement
or loss.
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During the financial year-ended 31 December 2016,
the Company has identified, evaluated and managed
significant risks via the following process:

e reviewing the organizational objectives;

e assessing the risk management philosophy to
determine the risk tolerant level of the Group;
and

e performing an entity-level risk assessment.

The Group adopted the standards set out in the
Model Code and received confirmation from all
directors that they have complied with the Model
Code throughout the period under review.

A. Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems Review:

To review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems
of the Group and to resolve (if any) material
internal control defects of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
adopted a COSO Enterprise Risk Management —
Integrated Framework (2004) which is issued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
(“C0S0”) of The Treadway Commission to
perform the risk assessment (the “Review”)
on the Group for the year ended 31 December
2016. The Review is designed to enhance the
risk management of the Group through a holistic
and integrated framework so that all material
risks faced by the Group are identified and
appropriately managed to:

(i) promote consistent risk identification,
measurement, reporting and mitigation;

(ii) set a common risk language to avoid any
conflicting terminology or confusion in risk
reporting;
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(iii) develop and communicate policies on risk
management and controls aligned with the
business strategy; and

(iv)] enhance reporting to provide transparency
of risks across the Group.

During the Review, the Company conducted the
following procedures:

- interviewing with department head and
management to identify the risks over the
Company business units;

- quantifying the risks by financial data and
market searches; and

- prioritizing the identified risks as high,
medium and low risk.

The Company will perform the ongoing
assessment to update the entity-level risk
factors and report to the Board on a regular
basis.

B. Group Risk Report:

In 2016, the Company conducted an annual
Group-wide review based on the Group's
Enterprise Risk Management Framework
to assess the risks relevant to the existing
businesses of the Group. The Group Risk Report
for 2016 was compiled to cover: (i) the top risks
of the Group; and [ii] associated action plans
and controls designed to mitigate the top risks,
where applicable, at appropriate levels.
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C. Internal Audit Function

During the financial year-ended 31 December
2016, the Company has an internal audit
department which consists of 2 employees
to monitor the daily operations of the Group.
Besides, the Company also appointed an
internal control advisor (the “IC Advisor”] to
perform internal audit for the Group during the
financial year ended 31 December 2016. The
IC Advisor reported to the Audit Committee
and to the Company’'s management. Based
on the Company’s risk assessment results,
the IC Advisor recommended a three-year
internal audit plan to the management which
was endorsed by the Board and the Audit
Committee. The IC Advisor conducted its
internal audit review activities according to
the endorsed internal audit plan during the
financial year ended 31 December 2016. The IC
Advisor reported the internal audit findings and
recommendations to both the Audit Committee
and the management of the Group. The
management of the Group agreed on the internal
audit findings and adopted the recommendations
by the IC Advisor accordingly.

. Management’s confirmation on risk
management

Based on the risk management mechanism and
internal audit review activities mentioned in the
aforementioned paragraphs, the management
of the Group had provided a confirmation to the
Board that the Group had maintained an effective
risk management mechanism and internal
control system during the financial year-ended
31 December 2016.

The Board and the Audit Committee, continue
to evaluate the adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff in the
Group's accounting and financial reporting
and internal audit functions, as well as that
function’s training programs and budget.
Based on its annual review, the Board and
the Audit Committee are not aware of any
material deficiencies in the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control for the year
ended 31 December 31 2016 and consider them
effective and adequate.
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SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general
meeting (“EGM”) and putting forward
proposals at EGM

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Article of Association of
the Company, any one or more shareholders holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of the requisition the Board fail to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board
shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.

Procedures for directing
shareholders’ enquiries to the Board

The annual report and the Company’s website
provide the contact details of the Company.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries
and concerns to the Board in writing. Shareholders
may also make enquiries with the Board at the
general meetings of the Company.

Procedures for putting forward
proposals at general meetings by
shareholders

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to
put forward proposals at the general meeting under
the Cayman Islands Company Laws or the Articles
of Association of the Company. Shareholders may
follow the procedures set out in the preceding
paragraph to convene an EGM for any business
specified in such written requisition.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continue to maintaining a high level of
transparency in communicating with shareholders
and investors through diversified communication
channels, including (i) printed copies of corporate
communications (including but not limited to
annual reports, interim reports, notice of meetings,
circulars and proxy forms) required under the
Listing Rules, and shareholders can choose to
receive such documents using electronic means
through the Company’s website (www.gdzawy.

com]; (ii) the annual general meeting provides a
forum for shareholders to raise questions with the
Board: (iii) the Company’'s website contains the

announcements, latest data and information of the
Group, so that the shareholders and investors can
access and inspect the information of the Company
in a timely manner; (iv) analyse briefings are
arranged from time to time to update shareholders
and investors on the Group's performance.

The Company has not made any changes to
the Company’'s Memorandum and Articles of
Associations on or after the Listing Date. A latest
version of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles
of Association is also available on the website of the
Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EFRs

The Directors have pleasure in presenting its annual
report together with audited consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. Its subsidiaries are primarily engaged in
the provision of property management services
and property management consulting services.
Further discussion and analysis of these activities
as required by Schedule 5 to the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, including a fair review of
the business and a discussion of the principal risks
and uncertainties facing the Group, particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have
occurred since the end of the financial year 2016,
and an indication of likely future development in the
Group's business, can be found in the “Chairman’s
Statement”, “Management Discussion and Analysis”
and “Corporate Governance Report” sections of this
Annual Report. The above sections form part of this
report.

During the year, the Company has complied with
all the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the operations of the Group.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to reducing emissions
and minimizing negative environmental impacts
through the implementation of the environmental
management system ("EMS”) across our properties.
The Group’s EMS is certified to the international
standard 1S014001. Apart from complying with all
relevant international and local regulations, the
Group regularly identify potential environmental
risks and strive for continuous improvement. The
key environmental concerns from the Group's
operations relate to resource use and waste
management. The Group have implemented
relevant initiatives, such as implementation of
metering systems to monitor the energy and
water consumption, installation of LED lighting
and energy efficient water pumps. The Group also
promote environmental protection awareness to its
employees and property owners through posting
reminders and providing recycle bins.
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For more details, please refer to the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” section.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH ITS
EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The Group has maintained a good relationship with
its employees, customers and suppliers:
Employees: Employees are the most valuable
asset for the Group. The Group
therefore strive to create a
motivated workplace by providing
employees a safe and healthy
working environment, and a fair
workplace with a prospective
career. The Group also emphasis on
its employees’ work-Llife balance,
and organized various activities
throughout the year.

Customers: The Group is committed to
upholding excellence in its service
quality in each and every part of the
services, and providing a feel-at-
home experience to build customer
connection. Various communication
channels are set up to listen to its
customers’ opinions.

The success of the Group highly
depends on the quality of products
and services obtained from them,
hence, the Group developed
procurement procedures to select
and assess its suppliers carefully.

Suppliers:

For more details, please refer to the “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” section.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income on page 97 of this annual report.

The Board do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year (2015: final dividend of HK2.5
cents per share and special dividend of HK2.0 cents
per share).
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the past five financial years is set out on
page 228.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the year in the
Group’'s property, plant and equipment are set out in
note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the
Company during the year are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Pursuant to the relevant laws of Cayman Islands,
distributable reserves of the Company as of 31
December 2016 amounted to RMB396.4 million
(2015: RMB426.0 million).

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of
this annual report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Liu Jian (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chen Zhuo

Mr. Liang Bing

Mr. Long Weiman

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wei Zhe

Ms. Wu Qimin

Mr. Lam Yiu Por

Mr. Zheng Dong (appointed on 5 January 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis
Mr. Zhang Weilun

Mr. Yuan Boyin

Mr. Wu Haibing
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Pursuant to Articles 83(3) of the Articls of
Association of the Company, Mr. Zheng Dong who
has been appointed by the Board shall hold office
until the annual general meeting and, being eligible,
will offer himself for re-election.

Pursuant to Articles 84 of the Articles of Association
of the Company, Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis, Mr.
Zhang Weilun, Mr. Yuan Boyin, Mr. Wu Haibing shall
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the directors has an unexpired service
contract with the Group which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one
year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under the Articles, the Company had a permitted
indemnity provision (as defined in section 469 of the
Companies Ordinance) in force for the benefit of the
Directors throughout the year 2016 and as at the
date of approval of this Directors’ report, pursuant
to which the Company shall indemnify any Director
against any liability, loss suffered and expenses
incurred by the Director in connection with any
legal proceedings in which he/she is involved by
reason of being a Director, except in any case where
the matter in respect of which indemnification is
sought was caused by the fraud or dishonesty of the
Directors. The Company has maintained insurance
cover for Directors” and officers’ liabilities in respect
of legal actions against the Directors arising out
of corporate activities. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis. During the year 2016,
no claims were made against the Director.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT

There were no contracts of significance in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company or any of
its subsidiaries and holding company was a party and
in which a Director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

STATUS OF INDEPENDENT NON-
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the
independent non-executive directors, a confirmation
of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). Based on such
confirmations, the Company still considers all of
the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As of 31 December 2016, the interests of the
Directors and their associates in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company or any associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance ("SFQ”), Chapter
571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 352 of
the SFO, or which otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers contained in the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

Long positions

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEEWE

EERRSITHRAEBRKRMS RAEKHG
Ry

R2016F12831H  EFEREBBARARA ST
AR EE (TR REBEANENEEF LB EKEG
([BHREBEED ) EXVER) RSB D AR
BEHF R EIENEI52EAFTE ML MATREEE © 3%
BIE EMBRAEH EMBETAEZTETEFIZNIZ
ETRIENGANE KBTS T ¢

"R

Interests in the shares and underlying shares of the RAATIRORBBRONERS
Company
(i) Long position in Shares i) BOOFHNEE
Approximate
Capacity in which Number of percentage
Name of Director interests were held shares of interest
BAER
EEnE BEERNEH BOEE Bo
Mr. Liu Jian Founder of discretionary trust, 435,820,000 54.85%
Interest in controlled corporation
Rzt FREFAIZA - I EE R
Mr. Wei Zhe Interest in controlled corporation 94,262,000@ 11.86%
HHTE RyEEBEER
Notes: e

(1) Dawngate Limited ("Dawngate”) holds 40% of
the issued share capital of Qichang International
Limited ("Qichang”) and is taken to be interested
in all the shares of Qichang and all the Shares of
the Company held by Qichang for the purposes
of Part XV of the SFO. The issued share capital of
Dawngate is held as to as to 15% by Mr. Liu and
85% by Hilton Assets (PTC] Limited as trustee of
the Liu Family Trust. Being the settlor of the Liu
Family Trust, Mr. Liu is taken to be interested in
all the Shares of the Company that the Liu Family
Trust is interested under Part XV of the SFO

(1) eEARAR(MEDBEREBRRERAR(KE]D
EBITIRARL%  RIFFES REEEGIEXVE - 8
EHEAERBEMERNDRREMBMEARARRN
RHEAEL - TBENBEBETRABRZ L EEH15%KH
Hilton Assets (PTC) Limited AZIRRiEEEAZ A
H15H85% o IRIBFHLIIEEMIEXVE - BlkEH
BRRFREELENEIA - HRANRKREETHS
BN AERRBRMD P HEEER -
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(2)

Central Oscar Holdings Limited (“Central Oscar”)
is held as to approximately 95.5% and 4.5% by
Vision Knight Capital (China) Fund II, L.P. and
Vision Knight Capital (China) Entrepreneur Fund
I, L.P. respectively, both of which are managed by
Vision Knight Capital (China) GP I, L.P. ("VKC"),
an exempted limited partnership registered under
the laws of the Cayman Islands, the general
partner of which is VKC (China) GP Il Ltd. VKC
(China) GP Il Ltd. is wholly-owned by VKC Cayman
Il Ltd. Both of VKC (China) GP Il Ltd and VKC
Cayman Il Ltd are limited companies incorporated
under the laws of the Cayman Islands. VKC
Cayman Il Ltd is owned as 50% by Mr. Wei Zhe
and 50% by Mr. Zhu Daming. Under the SFO, each
of VKC, VKC (China) GP Il Ltd, VKC Cayman Il
Ltd, Mr. Wei Zhe and Mr. Zhu Daming is deemed
to be interested in the 94,262,000 Shares of the
Company held by Central Oscar.

(i) Long position in underlying Shares

(2)

Central Oscar Holdings Limited ([ Central Oscar ])
2 Bl Vision Knight Capital (China) Fund I, L.P. &
Vision Knight Capital (China) Entrepreneur Fund II,
L.P.# 5B 4995.5% % 4.5% 1M & ¥ f Vision Knight
Capital [China) GP Il. L.P.( [VKC]) (RIRIEFEHSE
BEAMOEREERETAREE)ER  H—KRak
ABVKC (China) GP Il Ltd ° VKC (China) GP Il Ltd.Jy
FVKC Cayman Il Ltd. 2 & # 4 - VKC (China) GP Il Ltd
]VKC Cayman Il Ltd BiRER = B & AT M8
BMRAT ° VKC Cayman Il Ltd 7% 5¢ 4 A 50% 8%
# K FEZhu Daming % £ #E B 50% & 42 o IRIEE FH K HA
E1&H] - VKC * VKC (China) GP Il Ltd * VKC Cayman Il
Ltd ~ %1% 52 4 K Zhu Daming 5t 4 & #48 A7 Central
Oscarffi#794,262,000lX A R R BB 124 -

lii) HEARGPHEFE

Number of Approximate
Capacity in which underlying percentage
Name of Director interests were held Shares of interest
EEHRF BERERNSH HERGEE BOEZE I
Mr. Liu Jian Beneficial owner 1,809,000 0.23%
Rt E EmEEA
Ms. Chen Zhuo Beneficial owner 1,809,000 0.23%
PR 20 EnEAA
Mr. Liang Bing Beneficial owner 1,809,000 0.23%
RESA EmEEA
Mr. Long Weimin Beneficial owner 1,809,000 0.23%
EARLE EmEEA
Mr. Wei Zhe Beneficial owner 16,000,000 2.01%
HEEE EnEAA
Mr. Lam Yiu Por Beneficial owner 2,063,511 0.26%

FREEE R S A

BERBEEA
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Save as disclosed above, as of 31 December 2016,
none of the Directors nor their associates had any
interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares and debenture of the Company or any
associated corporations.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME OF THE
COMPANY

Pursuant to the written resolution of the
Shareholders passed on 20 April 2015, the Company
granted the Pre-IPO Share Option to 380 eligible
participants to subscribe for 80,000,000 shares as
incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
Group. Further details of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the share options granted are disclosed
in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Company was entered into
with any individual, firm or body corporate during the
year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the
Group's business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries or holding company was a party and in
which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
or at any time during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, no Directors had an interest in any
business which competes or may compete with the
business in which the Group is engaged.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

A deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-
Competition”) was entered into by Mr. Liu Jian,
Dawngate Limited and Qichang International Limited
(collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) in
favor of the Company on 5 November 2015, pursuant
to which each of the Controlling Shareholders
will not, and will procure any of its/his associates
and any company directly or indirectly controlled
by he/it (not include any member of the Group)
not to either on his/its own or in conjunction with
any body corporate, partnership, joint venture or
other contractual agreement, whether directly
or indirectly, whether for profit or not, carry on,
participate in, hold, engage in, acquire or operate, or
provide any form of assistance to any person, firm or
company (except members of the Group) to conduct
any business which, directly or indirectly, competes
or may compete with the business presently carried
on by the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
any other business that may be carried on by any
of them from time to time during the term of the
Deed of Noncompetition, in Hong Kong or China
and such other places as the Company or any of its
subsidiaries may conduct or carry on business from
time to time, including but not limited to provision
of property management services, residential
community 020 business and other related services.

The independent non-executive directors had
reviewed the status of compliance and confirmed
that the Controlling Shareholders have complied
with all the undertakings under the Deed of Non-
Competition for the year ended 31 December 2016.

82 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

EENHEFRBNES

FABEEFREANKREMESRBEARBEF KA
RERB R F B (LM R A (s

BRI R 5 TR

RlEfE  BEERARLREBRERER QA (HHE
[$ER%IRER ]) A2015F 11 ASH AR R B A AL
THFRE((TRFEE]) - B - SERBREBT
g U RFEEBE AR E TSI A E R
NEN T BIEAEEEAKERR) N EEIERIT
fEE - 4%  AENBBEMENHE  HEXME
R(EREGAEN ®IT 28 - B8 - #F - WE
AL IR AL BRI AT (AEBKE QR
BN EMERNER) - WETTEMEEEEE
RABHETAHE QRS METHER  NETE
FRFHE > AR AR ETRHB AR TRES SR
FEEAARSETAKEARAJETERESRKSE
EBHE M A ER M EBER ST AT EK
BENTMER  SEETENREDESERS
FEAE020 %% R EMABRR -

WY ENITESEEM A RN - WHERIERRER
HE2016F12A3MB I FERETIRFRZEE Y
Fr A A ©




SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As of 31 December 2016, the register of substantial
shareholders maintained by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO recorded that the following

FERR

entities, other than the Directors of the Company,
had an interest in the shares or underlying shares of

the Company as follows:
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R2016F12831H » RARIBEFHFLBEENE
IVFFENTERRLMIE U TERB(AQRE
ERRIN R AR AR D AR (D P HEE A T HER ¢

Long positions iy
Number of
Shares/ Approximate
Capacity and underlying percentage
Name of shareholder nature of interest Shares of interest
B 1%, 1EE8 AR
BEHE BB SORERME R AE Bok
Hilton Assets (PTC) Limited Trustee 435,820,000 54.85%
ZEEA
Dawngate Limited Interest in controlled corporation 435,820,000? 54.85%
BEBRRAEA S AE R
Qichang International Beneficial owner 435,820,000 54.85%
Limited EnlAA
RE B AR A A
Vision Knight Capital (China) Interest in controlled corporation 94,262,000% 11.86%
GP I, L.P. R EEE R
Central Oscar Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 94,262,000 11.86%
EmEEA
Decision Holdings Limited Beneficial owner 54,000,000 6.80%
EmEEA
Shanghai Hengji Assets I_rlterest in controlled corporation 54,000,000 6.80%
Management Center (L.P.) X AERER
LBEREEETRFR L
(BERE%%)
Briarwood Capital Investment manager 60,328,000 7.59%

Partners LP

REKE
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Notes:

(1]

The issued share capital of Dawngate is held as to 15%
by Mr. Liu and 85% by Hilton Assets (PTC] Limited as
trustee of the Liu Family Trust, a trust with Mr. Liu as
founder and established in accordance with the laws
of the Cayman Islands. The discretionary beneficiaries
of the Liu Family Trust include Mr. Liu and immediate
family members of Mr. Liu.

GEE

(1

JTBE M B 31T AN B 2 % £ 35 8 15% X i Hilton Assets
(PTC) Limited ABIKREEFEZFEAF DA% * 2155
BN ARBIGE WRIEFSEHSEREKY - BIRKEE
AHNEEIEARERLEEREERRE -

(2) Dawngate holds 40% of the issued share capital of (2] JEEZFBREEETHRANL% - HEFHKIEEHEXVED
Qichang and is taken to be interested in all shares M5 WRANMEMBMEARRRN THA R - 18
of the Company held by Qichang for the purposes BEBRARF - BRERARRLZIEAR AR DB AR E L
of Part XV of the SFO. Each of Suiya Investment T REEAERERREENZEREERAF @ FHARSE
Limited, Signgain Limited and Onsure Limited, being BEEITIRARE20% ©
the wholly-own investment holding company of Ms.
Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing and Mr. Long Weimin
respectively, holds 20% of the issued share capital of
Qichang

(3] Central Oscar is held as to approximately 95.5% and (3] Central Oscar® kI Vision Knight Capital (China) Fund II,
4.5% by Vision Knight Capital (China) Fund II, L.P. and L.P. % Vision Knight Capital (China) Entrepreneur Fund
Vision Knight Capital (China) Entrepreneur Fund I, I, LP. 3B #95.5% % 4.5% + MMEHHVKC(AIRERES
L.P. respectively, both of which are managed by VKC, HEZRAMONERECERETEREE)EE H—R
an exempted limited partnership registered under the A% ANBVKC (China) GP Il Ltd ° VKC (China) GP Il Ltd.Jy
laws of the Cayman Islands, the general partner of BHVKC Cayman Il Ltd. 2 & # 7% ° VKC (China) GP Il Ltd &2
which is VKC (China) GP Il Ltd. VKC (China) GP Il Ltd. VKC Cayman Il Ltd AR IER S8 S EZR2TMKXIHERA
is wholly-owned by VKC Cayman Il Ltd. Both of VKC &) © VKC Cayman |l Ltd B3 &7 #5 5t 4 % 5 50% % 4 J2 B Zhu
(China) GP Il Ltd and VKC Cayman Il Ltd are limited Daming 5t A #E B 50% A - RIKE % K E KM - VKC -
companies incorporated under the laws of the Cayman VKC (China) GP Il Ltd * VKC Cayman Il Ltd * & 54 K Zhu
Islands. VKC Cayman Il Ltd is owned as 50% by Mr. Damingt 4 S 11 A Central OscarfT1594,262,000 % &
Wei Zhe and 50% by Mr. Zhu Daming. Under the SFO, NGO P HEARER -
each of VKC, VKC (China) GP Il Ltd, VKC Cayman Il
Ltd, Mr. Wei Zhe and Mr. Zhu Daming is deemed to be
interested in the 94,262,000 Shares of the Company
held by Central Oscar.

(4) Decision Holdings is wholly-owned by Shanghai (4] Decision Holdingses F/BE¥EEERHRL([ERERE])

Hengji Assets Management Center (L.P.], a limited
partnership registered under PRC laws, the general
partner of which is Shanghai Yidejin Investment
Management Center (L.P.] ("Yidejin"], which is also
a limited partnership registered under PRC laws.
Yidejin is managed by Shanghai Yubo Investment
Management Company Limited (“Yubo”), a limited
company established in the PRC which is an indirect
subsidiary of E-House (China) Holdings Limited. Under
the SFO, each of Hengji, Yidejin and Yubo is deemed to
be interested in the 54,000,000 Shares of the Company
held by Decision Holdings Limited.

(BREFREZEAMOEREGE)2EHA H—REBA
ALESEEREEEPL(BRAR)([SEE] (AR
BRBEEZEEMOEREE) - HiEEd —HERBKIH
EREAAR LEENRATEARAR([EH])EE -
ZRARASHE(RE)ERBRARNEENERR - BIK
FHLEEGEN - BH - HES KBNS R AM Decision
Holdings Limitedfr#554,000,000 0% 7 2 B 1) R B 1 2 o
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group
did not enter into any connected transactions or
continuing connected transactions which need to be
disclosed in this annual report under Rule 14A.49
of the Listing Rules, and detail for other connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions
are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial
statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group’'s major suppliers are sub-contractors
providing relevant services for the Group's property
management and sales assistance business lines.
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group's
largest supplier accounted for approximately 20.7%
(2015: 55.7%]) of the Group’s total purchases, and
the Group’'s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 58.1% (2015: 71.9%) of the Group's
total purchases.

The major customers of our property management
business line include property developers, property
owners and property owners’ associations, while the
major customers of the sales assistance business
line include property developers. For the year ended
31 December 2016, the Group’s largest customer
accounted for approximately 5.8% (2015: 1.7%) of
the Group’s revenue, and the Group’s five largest
customers accounted for approximately 13.7% (2015:
5.1%) of the Group's revenue.

At all time during the year, none of the Directors,
their associates or any shareholders of the Company
which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital
had an interest in any of the five largest suppliers or
customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees based on
their performance, experience and prevailing market
rate.
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BE2016F12A3MBILFE - AEBEYN E|ET (IR
BERSGEFEMER S - ARBEETRBIE14AL9F
RAFHRARE  EtEEXFABEBEIFFIE
HINERE M MA M w44

FTERERREFRHER

NEBNWTEHREF AN EEMETERBHEES
BREBEREN S0 - BHE2016F12A3181EF
B ASENSAEEFRHAEEAREEL20.7%
(20154F : 55.7%) » M A B R ARG AN EE AR
B2 4958.1% (20154 : 71.9%) °

NEBYEECBELENTEZFBEMELRRER -
¥ REIHE  MHBEESENTIERFEEDE
KRR BE2016F12A31BIEFE  AEBEAR
PR E B U35 495.8% (20154  1.7%) » MAEET
ABPERNEBERZEL13.7% (20154 : 5.1%) °

REREMER - SEBEE  EBBALREEHAA
BEBERRNRBEBITIRAS% A EOEMALRARERE
AAREERRE P EAEMES -

B B R

AEEZRREENRE  KLRERTMEKTIEER
BN -
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The remuneration committee of the Company
reviews and makes recommendations to the Board
on terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and
other compensation payable to Directors and senior
management. Details of the remuneration of the
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2016
are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial
statements of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights
under the Company’s Articles of Association or the
laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on pro-rata basis to
existing shareholder.

REPURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR
SALE OF LISTED SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Company repurchased a total of 5,828,000 ordinary
shares on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) at an aggregate
consideration of approximately HKD6,958,000
(excluding expenses) for enhancing its per share
net asset value and earnings. All the repurchased
shares were subsequently cancelled. Details of the
repurchase of shares are summarized as follows:
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Purchase price per Share

BREEE

Number of
Shares Highest Lowest
repurchased HK$ HK$
B=E BRIKE
Date =p:i BERAEA BT BT
23 August 2016 2016F8H23H 154,000 1.13 1.1
24 August 2016 2016F8H24H 232,000 1.17 1.10
25 August 2016 20168 H25H 778,000 1.15 1.1
26 August 2016 2016F8H26H 148,000 1.12 1.1
30 August 2016 20168 A30H 30,000 1.13 1.13
31 August 2016 2016F8A31H 100,000 1.13 1.12
2 September 2016 2016F9H2H 320,000 1.16 1.1
5 September 2016 2016F9A5H 40,000 1.16 1.16
6 September 2016 2016F9H6H 60,000 1.18 1.18
7 September 2016 2016F9AH7H 308,000 1.19 1.15
8 September 2016 2016F 9 A8H 532,000 1.21 1.18
9 September 2016 2016F9H9H 116,000 1.23 1.21
12 September 2016 2016F9H12H 80,000 1.23 1.20
13 September 2016 2016F9H13H 128,000 1.23 1.22
14 September 2016 2016F9 148 762,000 1.27 1.20
15 September 2016 2016F9H15H 422,000 1.29 1.25
19 September 2016 2016F9H19H 260,000 1.28 1.23
20 September 2016 2016F9 H20H 258,000 1.25 1.23
21 September 2016 2016F9H21H 40,000 1.24 1.22
22 September 2016 2016F9 H22H 172,000 1.25 1.24
23 September 2016 20169 H23H 262,000 1.24 1.23
27 September 2016 2016F9H27H 120,000 1.20 1.18
29 September 2016 2016F9H29H 90,000 1.19 1.16
30 September 2016 201659 A30H 44,000 1.15 1.13
11 November 2016 2016F11A11H 40,000 1.18 1.18
14 November 2016 2016F 11 A14H 18,000 1.17 1.14
15 November 2016 20165118158 90,000 1.22 1.18
16 November 2016 20165118168 150,000 1.22 1.20
12 December 2016 20165128128 34,000 1.24 1.20
14 December 2016 20165128148 40,000 1.19 1.19

5,828,000

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company B FilifTiEEIN » HE2016F12A31HIEFE » &K
nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or RAIKETMFHEARHYERE - HEx(ELOAQG
redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company  {T{a] &%

during the year ended 31 December 2016.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EZgWE

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available
to the Company and within the knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained sufficient
public float during the year ended 31 December 2016
and up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2016 have been audited by
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu.

On behalf of the Board
Liu Jian
Chairman

Hong Kong, 28 March 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Deloitte

To The Shareholders Of Zhong Ao Home Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial
statements of Zhong Ao Home Group Limited
(the “Company”] and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 97 to
227, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2016, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2016, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing [("HKSAs") issued
by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

B AZBEN RS

=2

BPRIAXKRERRAFTRR
(REASHBHMALZBERAA])

=z
=

EECERINFENEITEEZENTAFTRIREBER
REIATHEHE BRI REWNBARIATEEE
B8] 2B AMBHRE - WA MBEHRRBIEN2016
FI2ANBZEAUBRAREEEZE LFE 24
AEEMEMEARER  SGAEGEHRNEAR
SRER  URGEVBRENNT - BEFESE
BERBE -

BERR HAVBHRREREFEGHMAS(E
BEREAE DEMZ(EEMBREERNEEY
BMELRDEEMA A MR T EEER20165F12
ABMBEMEEM BN LB EZ A ILFENGS M
RENMEGARSRE WD BREFE(RAED) A
WEREZSHE -

RREMR

EEEREEESFAMASRMNCEBEER)
(TEABTER ) ETE - BFRZFEREN
BEEARS [RBMABA SV BRRAENE
IO hEdL - REFEEAMASN (B S
BIESTADATER [SFRI)) - BEFBINERE X
EETTAFHEMCBREXERET - BFHE BF
PIERNET REEREREEHLRAESNENER
RELER -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
RV E Gl

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgment, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters

RRETER

Accounting for acquisition of subsidiaries

WEEHE AR 2 &5t ARR

We identified the accounting for acquisition of
subsidiaries as a key audit matter due to its significant
impact to the consolidated financial statements as a
whole and the involvement of significant judgements
made by the management of the Group in accordance
with the requirements of the relevant accounting
standards.
EERUBHBARZ G ARBRI RBEREZER
AREUGEMBERRERBREEARE  URFR
EEEERERBAMSHERIELEARAE -

During the year, the Group has entered into an
agreement with independent third parties to acquire
70% equity interest of Zhejiang Yongcheng Property
Management Company Limited and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Acquired Group”) at a
consideration of RMB210,000,000 (the “Acquisition”).
The Acquired Group is engaged in property
management services in the People’s Republic of
China.

FRN - BERECEE T E =7 R AR BT kK
MEEERERATREMBAR (5 [HEEER])Z
70% % - B/ ARY210,000,0007T([HEEE]) -
W B REE NP EARKNBEREYEEIRRE

s
#E

FARETER

MRBTFRASBRBEESNREHE - HAHM
FMBBRRNEARREENER - GLEHREES

B 4 A\
4 L

ETEHELEREHEBNER -

=)
)

HBRERMEEERSETRIEN - &

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ESEEFNTTHRARENSTANEELS N

Our procedures in relation to the accounting for
the Acquisition included:

BB EEARNEF B

Reviewing the terms of the agreement
entered by the Group with independent third
parties to assess the accounting treatments
for the Acquisition under the relevant
accounting standards;

BEREEE B E =T R 2 RRKAT
MIREAAE SRR NEER 2 @5t &E

Discussing with the management to
understand the key estimates adopted in
assessing the fair values of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed;
EERER AT AR ETURE R BRI A E
KA REZ A FEMRANERMG

Evaluating the Valuer's competence,
capabilities and objectivity and
understanding their scope of work;
AEEERMZ T B e REEERTRAET
(e
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Key audit matters

RREER

Accounting for acquisition of subsidiaries

UM B A Rl 2 5T ARR

In the application of the relevant accounting standards,
the management of the Group accounted for the
Acquisition as a business combination and assessed
the fair values of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition.
Significant judgements involved in the identification
and valuation of intangible assets acquired as part of
the Acquisition, including the identification of relevant
property management contracts and consideration of
other possible assets that could meet the definition
of intangible assets for recognition under applicable
accounting standards.

FERMEEETLERN  SEXEEERERRBERHRERE
BEFARLFEREEBHE RB 2B EE KA
EEABZATE - #IESKBEE-BOHMKREZ
BEEMRAMERERNAE  BEIFNEEVEE
BEA TEREMAIEZERSERNT N5 AR
REVEEEEZLECERE °

As disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management has identified
intangible assets in respect of property management
contracts at the acquisition date with a fair value of
RMB104,616,000 based on the valuations performed by
a firm of independent qualified professional valuer (the
“Valuer”) based on certain estimates, including growth
rates, discounts rates and expected future net cash
inflows generated from the expected service charges to
be earned less relevant costs to be incurred.

MR A M BB KRMTIHE - EREEHERNYE
EREHZEREENRBRBZ A TERBNASARK
104,616,0007C - Z A FEDRE—FBLSEREEM
B ([EERD 1T 2 (hEEETE - m ik ERD AR E T4
o BREERE AR R G WREUE) TR H AR A5 U B R
EEZAARXAEZARARKRRCREFHE -

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
RV E Gl

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ESEFTTHRARENSTANEELS R

e Obtaining an understanding of the
assessment made by the Valuer and the
management on the completeness of the
intangible assets identified by considering
the underlying current and prospective
income stream in the Acquired Group;

o THREEMMEEEMRDSHEIEBLEEZZE
PEFTIE L 2 APl - B At R ik BB 5 B 2 18 RE
B Al K R A TR

e Understanding the key estimates adopted
by the management in assessing the fair
value of the relevant property management
contracts classified as intangible assets,
including the growth rates, discount rates
and expected future net cash inflows
generated from the expected service
charges to be earned less relevant costs to
be incurred;

s THREEENTMENEA/ABINEEZMEBAME
BEANZ AFERARANBERAT - 81
R - BRI R T BRER 2 T8 H AR 745 W R
EX AR cERRRRSREF
7

e Evaluating the reasonableness of the
growth rates and expected future net cash
inflows with reference to the Acquired
Group’'s past historical performances,
our market knowledge and the economic
environment; and

o HMAEERXLEHARREAREFAZIAE
1 MBI EERERE BFEZ2MSHH
REBERERS2E &

e Involving our internal valuation experts
to evaluate the reasonableness of the
valuation techniques of intangible assets
and the discount rates applied by the
Valuer in the fair value measurements by
benchmarking them with the market data.

s ZRAFZFZNHTHER  UTBBEBBAE
% AR EAELERNREEMRAFE
FAETEANREZ S -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
RV E Gl

Key audit matters

RREER

Recoverability of trade receivables

B 5 & YRR RO AT Uk Bl 1

We identified the recoverability of trade receivables as
a key audit matter as they are quantitatively significant
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole
and significant management judgement is required
in assessing their impairment and determining the
allowance for doubtful debts.
FEECHESRYEGOAER K EEERN AERERER
AREBGAMBEHRREREEEXELNFTHERE
METREREERAELENEREHE -

As disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements, the management of the Group
determined the carrying amount of trade receivables
by considering the aging of trade receivables, the
credit profile including default or delay in payments,
settlement records and cash collection post year
end of the customers. As disclosed in note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements, the carrying amount
of trade receivables were RMB159,373,000, net of
allowance for doubtful debts of RMB45,950,000 as at
31 December 2016 and an allowance for doubtful debts
of RMB13,434,000 was recognised for the year end 31
December 2016.

HER A M BHRRMIHE  EEEEREZERESRE
WHRIEZ Rk EEESE (BREBRFTEENR) - F
FHENRHELFREURZEE - BT EHRKFHIA
ZHREE - BNARE M BRRWMT23HE - B FHRKK
HZ BREERARE159,373,0007T - EMRM20165F12
A31H 2 REREH ARKL5,950,000T R EREE2016
FI2ANB I FEER 2 RREE ARK13,434,000

ﬁo

How our audit addressed the key audit matters

ESEFTTHRARENSTANEELS R

Our procedures in relation to assessing the
recoverability of trade receivables included:
EEENTEESRUKEATRKETEZEFE
&

e Obtaining an understanding of the
judgments made by the management
in assessing the recoverability of trade
receivables and determining the allowance
for doubtful debts and discussing with
the management about the actions they
have taken to recover the long outstanding
balances of trade receivables;

o TEREEENTLESRUGIAZ AT EME K
EERRBERATIEL 2 #E - WEERE
RERKERHARENE ZREFIACRKRZ
TEE TR

e Evaluating the accuracy of aging analysis of
the trade receivables, on a sample basis, by
checking to the demand notes; and

o DAREEE  HERESHEANE  FAHEZE
WORTERR B 0 T 2 HEREE ¢ I

e Assessing the reasonableness of the
allowance for trade receivables with
reference to the aging of trade receivables,
their credit profile including default or delay
in payments, settlement records, and cash
collection post year end of the customers
with focus on long outstanding trade
receivables.

o FHAEZRUGKIEBHEZAIEN - NE SR
RIBZRE  HEREEL (BREERIITEN
R) - BPHENRELFRERERZAS
NEHRENESREFIERED -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the annual report,
but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that thereis a
material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements,
the directors are responsible for assessing the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
RV E Gl
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
RV E Gl

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the consolidated financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to
you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.
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Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the
directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
RV E Gl
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
RV E Gl

We communicate with those charged with
governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with
a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged
with governance, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the
independent auditor’s report is Woo King Wa.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

28 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND 0THER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

/\
IN=

:l\/

H b2 E W

7R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

2016 2015
20164 20154
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
P 5T ARET ARET T
Revenue Wz 7 635,146 420,155
Cost of sales and services $HE MARFSA AR (478,408) (280,067)
Gross profit EH 156,738 140,088
Other income EHA A 8 7,867 1,467
Other gains and losses E bz & B8 9 (2,171) (4,019)
Change in fair value of investment EEYER
properties NEHEES) 3,341 -
Change in fair value of financial BEAEATE
liabilities designated as at fair value ~ REF ABZEAE A
through profit or loss BENRTEEZD - (6,343)
Administrative expenses TTHRAX (99,675) (51,002)
Other expenses H sz (9,837) -
Selling and distribution expenses HE DA (29,450) (7,615)
Share of results of joint ventures FELBAE XSRS 2,148 243
Finance costs R IDWN 10 (4,705) (1,572)
Listing expenses FmRX - (35,881)
Profit before tax B B4 A1 A1) 24,256 35,366
Income tax expense FriSHif X 1M (27,608) (24,753)
(Loss) profit for the year FE(EE) N (3,352) 10,613
(Loss) profit for the year IATFATEIEER
attributable to: (E18)F)H «
- Owners of the Company —RREHEB A 13 (6,383) 10,911
- Non-controlling interests — BT 3,031 (298)
(3,352) 10,613
(Loss]) earnings per share (RMB) T (E8) &R
(AR¥ID)
- Basic —EK 15 (0.008) 0.019
- Diluted — s 15 (0.008) 0.019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Are ISR

At 31 December 2016 420165128311

2016 2015
20164 20154
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
B sE AR¥T ARBTT
Non-current Assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE - BB LK 16 38,159 22,007
Investment properties REYHE 17 139,660 -
Payments for acquisition of properties WEE¥IZE M5 18 27,952 59,504
Interests in joint ventures RELrENER 19 4,363 1,045
Goodwill Sk 20 89,183 41
Intangible assets W ARE 21 106,289 89
Deferred tax assets RIETIBE E 22 16,892 9,894
422,498 92,580
Current Assets RBEE
Inventories FE 748 -
Trade and other receivables B 5 K HAth fE W IR 23 232,187 106,134
Amount due from a related party fEUR — % BB 5 108 24 - 178
Amounts due from non-controlling JE BT BB R R FE P AR
shareholders of subsidiaries SN 25 693 -
Financial assets designated as at fair 5 & AR A FE A
value through profit or loss Bm([EATERA
("FVTPL") BEDNEREE 26 2,550 -
Pledged bank deposits EHEBRITIFH 27 - 62,834
Bank balances and cash RITEHRIRE 27 442,473 449,107
678,651 618,253
Current Liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables 2 5 R EAMERFRIE 28 368,793 154,695
Amount due to a joint venture BN —EALhERE 29 150 -
Amounts due to non-controlling FEASTBT BB R R FE P AR
shareholders of subsidiaries TN 30 12 -
Borrowings due within one year R—ERE|E N E 31 45,524 22,361
Tax liabilities HIAAE 51,840 19,485
466,319 196,541
Net Current Assets REBEEFRE 212,332 421,712
Total Assets less Current Liabilities #ZEERREERE 634,830 514,292
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AR B BRI

At 31 December 2016 720165128 31H

2016 2015
20165 2015%F
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt aE ARBT ARBTF T
Non-current Liabilities FRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities BRERIERE 22 29,312 -
Borrowings due after one year R—F &I EMER 31 83,424 7,279
Liabilities for cash-settled B e EERNRD
share-based payments NEEON=Kr 35(b) 12,411 5,276
Other long-term payable Hith REAFE S 5B 33 59,617 -
184,764 12,555
Net Assets HEFE 450,066 501,737
Capital and Reserves EXRRHE
Share capital i 34 6,549 6,594
Reserves s 379,229 494,894
Equity attributable to owners of the KARHEAA
Company JEAE RS 385,778 501,488
Non-controlling interests FEFERR = 45(b) 64,288 249
Total Equity ERmE 450,066 501,737

The consolidated financial statements on pages 97 S 97HEFE2027B 2 AU EHRERE R 201743 H28H
to 227 were approved and authorised for issue by the KEZSRBALKERR  WH NIESKEREE
Board of Directors on 28 March 2017 and are signed

on its behalf by:

Liu Jian Chen Zhuo
2l PR

Director Director
e e
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARREBDE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

Attributable to owners of the Company Non-controlling interests
ROTERARE b3
Share
Share Retained options
capital/ Capital Share  profits reserve Non-
Paid-in ~ Treasury Share redemption  Statutory Other ~ Special options  [accumulated ofa  controlling
capital ~ Shares premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  losses]  Sub-total subsidiary interests  Sub-total Total
REAAE -B
B/ e BR (& WEARN  HER

Eikr EREG BOER ROBR RER AMER RMBR AR &R N OBRERE  #8 M A
RMBOOD  RMBUDD  RMBOOD RMBODD  RMBODD RMBOOD RMBUDD RMBODD RMBOOD RMBUDD  RMBODD RMBON  RMBOD)  RMBON
ARETL ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARMTRL ARETR ARETL ARETR AR®TR ARETL ARETR ARETL

(note 2 notebl [notecl  [noted]
(ko) () (o (W)

At1 January 2015 H5EIR1A 10,000 - - - 5505 16,000 - - 0T % - 17 nr 9563
Profitloss| and toal ERfE(ERRAE

comprehensive income e (Fn )48

[expense]fgrtheyear - - - - - - - - 10,9” ‘“],9” - mal [298] 10‘613
Capitalisation ssue of shares SR &R

[note 3¢) (Ristas) 4945 - [6.949) - - - - - - - - - - -
Issue of newshares pursuant ~ RERFRERTHRG

tothe global offering (k34

[note 3] 1,649 -8 - - - - - - 309900 - - - 309900
Expenses incurred in comection - St/ TRAZ MRS

with issue of shares - - [31807) - - - - - - 380 - - - (31800
Reclassification of financial ~~ EXfA T BRATER

lablities designated as at HABRNERER

FVTPL (note 32 (1) - S ] - - - - - - 1989 - - - 1690
Deemed distribution to BiERRE AR

shareholders - - - - - - [10,000) - - [10000) - - - (10000)
Elimination upon Reorganisation 1\ EAF 413

(ot ) (i) (10,000 - - - - - oo - - - - - - -
Distribution noe 14 AR - - - - - - - - s ) - - - (o)
Recogniion ofequity-setfled  ETUEREER

share-based payments OLEN - - - - - - B TR B T 144 - W 14774
Capital contribution from BiEfEERE-FHE

shareholders of a subsidiary DARRMTE

upon deemed acquisition (F36))

[note 34l - B - - - B 19 - - 19 - [ 8 18
Further capitalcontribution M BATREEE

from shareholders of a

subsidiary - - - - - - 750 - - 750 - 0 %0 1,000
Deemed disposal ofa Riete-HHELT

subsidiary [note 37) (F&37) - - - - - - - - - - - ] ) (28l
At 31 December 2015 ROE12R3R 8,994 - 04N - 5500 14,000 9 16630 [06ed 501488 1k 105 AR INKY
(Loss] proft and otal En(BRENREE

comprehensive [expense) (Fhang

income for the year - - - - - - - - (633 [6363) SO X {1 B K 7]
Share repurchased and BELR A

canceled note 34 (i) ] S i - - - - (g 15599 - - - [55)
Sharerepurchased butnot  BEBEREERA

cancelled [note 34) (Hk3s) - B 39 - - - - o = (396) = - - (396)
Distributon noe 14 AR : S i - . - 2 c - (oot ; = - (3o
Aequiston of subsidiaries ~~ WEHELT

(note 3¢fa) (FEl)) - - - - - e > g = a OV S K
Contract toacquire emaining ~ SE—FHEBATLS

interests in a subsidiary ERetin)

[note 33] = = = = = - (8030 = - (8030l = = - (8030
Recognition of equity-setiled B4 EXEEY

share-based payments FFOIES - - - - - - -1 - e - 14482
Share option apsed BRIERE = 2 - - - - S = 163 - - - s
Transfer & = - o = 35 - - - (3¢5 - - - - -
Acquisition of additional nterest ~ FI3E SRR AYER

ina subsidiary from a non- RELAMENER

controlling-equity holder o - - - - - b - - b - (105 (105 (1ot
B3 Decer 01 HIBENANE B[ e 6 S WO DM B9 A W 195 QM B sos
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

The paid-in capital of the Group at 1 January 2015
comprised the fully paid registered capital of
Guangdong Zhong Ao Property Management Company
Limited ("Guangdong Zhong Ao”) of RMB10,000,000
and the issued share capital of Zhong Ao Holdings
Limited (“Zhong Ao Holdings”) of United States Dollars
("USD”) 1.

In accordance with the Articles of Association of the
subsidiaries established in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC"), those subsidiaries are required to
transfer 5% to 10% of the profit after taxation to the
statutory reserve until the reserve reaches 50% of the
registered capital. Transfer to reserve must be made
before the distribution of dividends to equity holders.
The statutory reserve can be used to make up for
previous years’ losses, expand the existing operations
or convert into additional capital of the subsidiaries,
but is non-distributable.

The amount represented the contribution from Mr. Liu
Jian, the controlling shareholder and director of the
Company, through transferring his 40% equity interest
in Guangdong Zhong Ao, a subsidiary of the Company,
to Mr. Long Weimin and Mr. Liang Bing, both are
directors of the Company and employees of Guangdong
Zhong Ao in 2011.

Special reserve mainly represents (i) a deemed
distribution amounting to RMB10,000,000, being
the registered capital of Guangdong Zhong Ao, to
its shareholders upon the acquisition of Guangdong
Zhong Ao by Guangzhou Suiya Information
Technology Company Limited ("Guangzhou Suiya”)
at a consideration of RMB10,000,000 during a
group reorganisation (the "Reorganisation”) of the
companies now comprising the Group for the purpose
of the initial listing of the shares of the Company on
the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "SEHK"); (ii) upon completion of the
Reorganisation, the fully paid registered capital of
Guangdong Zhong Ao amounting to RMB10,000,000
was transferred to special reserve; (iii) capital
contribution amounting to RMB258,000 by Mr. Liu
Jian and non-controlling shareholders for the
transfer of 75% and 25% equity interest in Guangzhou
Maiyue Information Technology Company Limited
("Guangzhou Maiyue”) to the Group in April 2015
through structured contracts at nil considerations,
detail sets out in note 36(b); (iv] Mr. Liu Jian and
non-controlling shareholders had made further
capital contribution to Guangzhou Maiyue amounting
to RMB750,000 and RMB250,000, respectively; (v)
the obligation in relation to the acquisition of the
remaining 30% equity interests in Zhejiang Yongcheng
Property Management Company Limited (“Zhejiang
Yongcheng”) amounting to RMB80,630,000, detail sets
out in note 33; and (vi] the group acquired additional
interests in Guangzhou Daojia Information Technology
Company Limited ("Guangzhou Daojia”) from a non-
controlling shareholder. The difference between the
consideration paid and the adjustment to the non-
controlling interests in Guangzhou Daojia amounting
to RMB4,000 was transferred to special reserve.

~ N/ gy
GAMNEDE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

GEE

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

RNEER2015F1A1BZEHERNBIERERTRAYETIES
BARI([ERFR]) 2B HEEMEARARY10,000,000T
R BREZERERARFRZER]DOBEITRA1ET([E

Tl -

RIEAEREARAFE ([ B ) pS e R R AR ER
AR ZEME A RIZARSIR R F B A5%E10%8E B 2K F
i BEZRBETMER%ALL - BEEFEECARN
DIRBLE TRERA ABIEN < XE RE BRI EF
EHEE BEXRAEERERREARMBENER - 1
TEFUAIK ©

FZYFEEANRERERFREE IR ER201NFEBRA
RAEENERTRESRAREERREEEERZHANA
REIMERRER D RAOBBREMIELE

BRFEEEZRNERFAXNANEEN AR RAR R KRG
REBBERIMBR AR ([HRAT]) ERE K LHimE
THEESEE(TEAD S  RENEEEERNEBRAA
(TEMNFRHE ) AR B AR 10,000,000 T W B E R BAS -
B E AR R AR D R A R #10,000,0007T (B & R B A 5
BAR) (R EATHKE  BRTFENHAZEMERARE
10,000,000 T 2 B = /e Rl 4  (iii) 20154F4 A - Bk A4
MOEZERBRRBBERIES OEEFE AR 258,0000T -
DRASEEREZ/NEREEREERAR(TEMNER])
75% N 25% & AE - FEIE R M 7E36(b) ¢ (iv) B 5T 4 K IEE
FEAR R E 5 Bl A E M B EEE AR 750,000 kAR
250,0007T ; (vIBAR U T E B R AR A 8 (DI
A1) 82 T 30% % i 2 B A AR E80,630,000T ¢ FEER
Mi5E33 ¢ Relvi) AL E R — B IEE AR AR R B BN B R 5 B8
BAERAR(TEMER])NEMERE - ERREEENER
fﬂéﬁ%%éﬁmﬁa%ﬁaﬁa’a%%’ﬁi/\ﬁm.oooﬁe@%%\;
RIS -
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CONSOLlDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
/\‘/\ Eﬁqﬂi//lb %%

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE2016&F 12331 L FE

2016 2015
20165 20154
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
tiks3 AR¥T T AREFTT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES LEEE
Profit before tax B 5% B A1) 24,256 35,366
Adjustments for: BA TN Z I E
Change in fair value of investment BREMENLFE
properties 23) (3,341) -
Depreciation of property, plant and eIV
equipment BB E 7,484 5,149
Amortisation of intangible assets A E 2,559 56
Allowance for doubtful debts on 2 WA
trade receivables REREE 13,434 13,785
Share of results of joint ventures EhEeE XA (2,148) (243)
Net exchange gain BEE 5, Wi o R (12,101) (9,732)
Share-based payment expenses of /NI SRR NN Eb
the Company 8,345 14,630
Share-based payment expenses of a —REE A TR
subsidiary X 7,683 5,298
Change in fair value of financial BE BB LTETA
liabilities designated as at FVTPL i=Entsploa i 3=K-{:0]
N EEE) — 6,343
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BER
and equipment HiEEE 105 25
Loss on deemed disposal of a BB &S — BB
subsidiary NAEE = 85
Bank interest income RITALE M A (3,655) (1,198)
Finance costs R IDWIN 4,705 1,572
Operating cash flows before EBESTHAM
movements in working capital RERPME 47,326 71,136
Decrease in inventories FERD 665 -
Decrease (increase) in trade and B 5 I E Ath e W R IE
other receivables (3B ) 4,660 (47,386)
Increase in trade and other payables & 5 K& Hfh B < 7
840 36,915 5,421
Decrease in amount due to a related &S — & @H 75 708
party L - (72)
Cash generated from operations RS ETSIRE 89,566 29,099
Income taxes paid (NEST (16,789) (30,020)
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) REEBHME(FA)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES FEE 72,777 (921)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
,\,\ fﬁiumiﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

2016 2015
20165 20154
NOTES RMB’000 RMB'000
Bt &E AR¥T T ARBTT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REZE
Acquisition of subsidiaries W s BT /& 2 7 36(a) (185,403) 341
Purchase of property, plant and BEWME  WENRE
equipment . (9,602) (6,763)
Acquisition of investment properties  YEERE M E (857) -
Payment for acquisition of properties  UEE¥ B3 (6,234) (8,839)
Purchase of financial assets classified BE DB AEAFE
as at FVTPL SEAERNEREE (2,500) -
Decrease (increase) in pledged bank B X TIFEZOR D
deposits () 62,834 (62,834)
Repayment from non-controlling B8 1 B EHE AR AR R
shareholders of subsidiaries B 17,271 -
Interest received 2B 3,655 1,198
Consideration received on & — AP B A BIUER
disposal of a subsidiary # (B 3,031 -
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEDE  WEK
plant and equipment BRI FT1S K1 286 705
Repayment from a related party — BB 178 822
Advance to a director MESELBHK - (33,066)
Repayment from directors BEEEN - 28,831
Deemed disposal of a subsidiary RIELE—HWBRE 37 - (118)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING RETEFARSTE
ACTIVITIES (117,341) (79,723)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BEEE
New bank borrowings raised MERITER 168,888 40,000
Repayments of bank borrowings ERRITER (101,639) (22,360)
Distribution paid 219k (31,051) (33,519)
Payment on repurchase of shares 2 O (% 15 BV 1T 3K (5,995) -
Repayments to non-controlling e P /&8 7~ B 3E 15 AR AR BR
shareholders of subsidiaries BN (5,918) -
Repayment to joint ventures MEEPEEN (2,700) -
Interest paid EATFLE (1,945) (1,450)
Acquisition of additional interest ina [ 3F{ER% A% 58 UK BE —
subsidiary from a non-controlling b8 A R sEIME =
shareholder o (101) -
Capital contribution from FIERERTE
non-controlling interests . = 250
Capital contribution from —FEMERARRETE
a shareholder of a subsidiary ) ) = 750
Net proceed from redeemable shares #1F D AIETE AIZA
initially classified as financial FEFFABmE R
liabilities designated as at FVTPL B &R A ERIAR 5 T
BRIEERE - 193,194
Issue of new shares upon initial BARRFRABERET
public offering FR D 309,900
Listing expense paid BT EmRX (31,807)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING BMEETHFEREFRE
ACTIVITIES 19,539 454,958
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE INCASH RE&RRLZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (R ) 8 hn 3 88 (25,025) 374,314
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes [EXRE &Mz & 18,391 9,175
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RENNRERRESE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR BY 449,107 65,618
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT RERNRERRESE
THE END OF THE YEAR, =Ly
represented by bank balances BVRITHE SRR IR &
and cash 442,473 449,107
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR e IS R M Rt

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE2016&F 12331 L FE

GENERAL

The Company was incorporated and registered
as an exempted company with limited liability in
the Cayman Islands under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law on 5 January 2015. The shares
of the Company have been listed on the Main
Board of the SEHK since 25 November 2015. The
addresses of the registered office and principal
place of business of the Company are disclosed
in the section headed “Corporate Information” of
the annual report.

The Company’'s immediate and ultimate
holding company is Qichang International
Limited ("Qichang”], a limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI”). The Company’s ultimate controlling
parties are Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr.
Liang Bing and Mr. Long Weimin who are also
the directors of the Company.

The principal activity of the Company is
investment holding. Its subsidiaries are
primarily engaged in the provision of
property management services and property
management consulting services.

The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi ("RMB”), which is also
the functional currency of the Company and the
subsidiaries.

—REH

ARFR2015F1 ASBIRBEHSHS R EDVEER
SREEMRILBL A —RERRERAF - &
NAIRHD B20155 11 25 BB EB BB T ER
E e ARBIEMMER N EELE MBI E
MAFR [ RBER]—F -

ARANEEREEER AT AMEBRKRAERA R
(TRED  ZRARA—RNRBELES ([RE
BEEE DEMKIINBERAR - AARMNHK
ERRRAKTAAAREENIELELE  REX

ARBNEBES/REER - AHE AR EE2R
ERMHMEEERE LY EEEHE AR -

RAEVBHREAARE(TARE D2 HEX
AR B AR ML EREARR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. BASIS OF PRESENTATION OF

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Prior to the Reorganisation, Guangdong Zhong
Ao and its subsidiaries are held by Mr. Liu
Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing and Mr.
Long Weimin. As part of the Reorganisation,
investment holding companies of Zhong Ao
Holdings, Zhong Ao Property Services (Hong
Kong) Limited ("Zhong Ao HK"), Guangzhou
Xuji Property Management Company Limited
("Guangzhou Xuji”) and Guangzhou Suiya, and
the Company were incorporated/established and
being inserted between the ultimate individual
equity owners and Guangdong Zhong Ao. Since
then, the Company became the holding company
of the companies now comprising the Group
on 15 April 2015. The Group comprising the
Company and its subsidiaries resulting from
the Reorganisation is regarded as a continuing
entity. All the entities comprising the Group were
under the ownership of Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen
Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing and Mr. Long Wemin, prior
to and after the Reorganisation.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2015 which include
the results, changes in equity and cash flows of
the companies comprising the Group have been
prepared as if the current group structure had
been in existence throughout the year ended
31 December 2015, or since their respective
dates of incorporation/establishment, where
is a shorter period, except for the subsidiaries
acquired by the Group and disposed of by the
Group during the year as disclosed in notes 36(b)
and 37 respectively, which are included in the
consolidated financial statements since the date
of acquisition or up to the date of disposal by the
Group.

iR e B R T A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

2.

BAMBREZHIEE

REMR  ERPRELEMBATARBZELLE - K
FLxt  REELEREARALERE - FREM
M — 88 - PRI - PERMERE(FE)BR
RE([FREFE])  BEMNEEYERBERAF
(TEMBED FEMNBHESHREZBRARIAL
AN BVEREM AL B - 9T A B AR AE BB A+
BANEERFEZE - IR - ARFN2015F4A
158 R/ B ATAR AR R BB R RIZR AR © /i
REMAME - BARBREKEAREKNANEE
WRRIFEER - REMEFNE - AXAEENMEA
BERMZELE REXLT  RERELERERRS
TR

NEBBZE2015F12A3NBIEFENGESEBRE
HEfzElER GKEeEREHREIGAEESRE
T (BREAKAEESARNES  EXEHRIE
ChRE)EERE BB EEERERREHE
2015 12 AN AL FE A ES A ML
MAH(AREE BE)E—EFE - HKHFE36(b)
RITHAHBIEBEARNEEMN A BEENATKRE R
ENHBRTRI AAREBRERSHEXNES
E B ALZREVBHRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire BTSRRI A
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

3. BRESHBHRE
&8 )

A=A

i

3. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG B ([ FBE 5 R
FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (THE “HKFRSs”)

The Group had applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong

AEERNAFECERERANATEEGTNAE
([BEEEAE )R 2BEMBEREELE

Kong Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") AR o
for the first time in the current year.
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral EEMEREER BEEEREERP
Accounts B145R
Amendmentsto  Accounting for BEUBHRELER WESEEBERNER
HKFRS 11 Acquisitions of Interests F1EUEETA) BRI

in Joint Operations

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative E et ERE 15 WETE
HKAS 1 (BRI A)
Amendments to Clarification of Acceptable EEeERE16 EREEESHEN
HKAS 16 and Methods of Depreciation FEREBEET i
HKAS 38 and Amortisation ERIIZE385%
(EFTA)
Amendments to Annual Improvements to EREHELER BFEMKREER20126E
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle CCHEN) 2014 FF AR F E ekt
Amendments to Equity method in separate ERAeHERE27 B BHREROERE
HKAS 27 Financial Statements g (fE5TA)
Amendments to Investment Entities: BTG EER KREEE : ERGAEARD
HKFRS 10, Applying the 1058 - #e
HKFRS 12 and Consolidation Exception g cy B R= =
HKAS 28 85125 &

The application of the new and revised HKFRSs

EBSENF
285%

RAFE R MERT BB U B IREERE A

in the current year has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial performance and
positions for the current and prior years and/or
on the disclosures set out in these consolidated

£ EAGE RBEEE Y BBRANAR, HB
RIS AN BRE 2 REL BEATE -

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e B R T A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

3. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG 3. EREBUBHREERN( FBMER

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “HKFRSS”) (continued)

The Group has not early applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued

HER ) #)

A=A

AEEILRIEREATHERMGERRELNES
T ELRNEAT A

but are not yet effective:

HKFRS ¢

HKFRS 15

HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 2

Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Amendments to
HKFRS 15

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKAS 7

Amendments to
HKAS 12

Amendments to
HKFRSs

Financial Instruments’

Revenue from Contracts
with Customers and the
related Amendments'’

Leases?

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions’

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS
4 Insurance Contracts’

Clarifications to HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts
with Customers’

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?®

Disclosure Initiative*

Recognition of
Deferred Tax Assets for
Unrealised Losses*
Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014-2016 Cycle®

ERTBHRELER TR
E957

ERMBHRELER RERFPAHVNRERE
F155 HEEERT A

BRI BHRE LR G
F165%

BRMBHRELER ROINRGzoERFTE
F2RUERTA)

BERFBMELER HEBHBHEREERELR
B (BT R) REEDERADBHE

HEEBFREMT A

BB BHRELER BEBRBY RS ER

F15UERTA) FIREREABRFALNZ
LN

BRI BHRELER HEEEEBENRNEE
F105E &% RNElZ BEERESIZEAS
BB ER
F28IUEFTA)

EBGTERETHR BETE
CHEN)

BB GRT AR R EIE 2 RERTE
F125 (IBETA) B E

BRI HRELER BB BHRELER2014FE
CHEN) 201 64F A BP0 4F & 2

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2018

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
a date to be determined

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2017 or 1 January 2018, as appropriate

1 RR2018F 1 A1E SR 2 A HRKFE AR

2 201941 A1 Bk 2 B FRA R FE B AR

S REFEHBR RN FERRER

C 0 R20M7F 1 AV A2 BB F AR AR

s 20171 A1H 201841 818 (AEA ) sk Z & BtA
W EEER AR

FREREEMARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
frRe B TSR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ 201651283 1A LEE

3. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
[THE “HKFRSS"] [continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new
requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9
was subsequently amended in 2010 to include
requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial liabilities and for
derecognition, and further amended in 2013
to include the new requirements for general
hedge accounting. Another revised version of
HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014 mainly to include
a) impairment requirements for financial assets
and b) limited amendments to the classification
and measurement requirements by introducing
‘fair value through other comprehensive income’
(FVTOCI) measurement category for certain
simple debt instruments.

. EREABVBHRELEN ([ FRHBR

HER ) #)

BERYBRESERNFEIF[ERMTA]

JA2009F MM ) B B I 15 & RIS 955K 5| A St
ERMEEDHERTENMENR - BRYBRESE
AIFIFERN2010FEHEFT AR EH TSR E
B BREFEARR IR ER - WH2013F
TEHE —FERI AR E —RE PSR ER - B
2014%F - BAEMBHEERNEIHRBRER] » £ &
BRa)aMEENREENR  kb)HRETHE
BEHETASIATEBEMEEKEE N TFEDIR]
RN B R EERNERER] -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

[continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 that are relevant
to the Group are:

e All recognised financial assets that are
within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement
are required to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within
a business model whose objective is to
collect the contractual cash flows, and
that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally
measured at amortised cost at the end
of subsequent accounting periods. Debt
instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual
terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, are measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments
and equity investments are measured at
their fair value at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in
the fair value of an equity investment (that is
not held for trading] in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments”

[continued)

e In relation to the impairment of financial
assets, HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit
loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit
loss model under HKAS 39. The expected
credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses
at the end of each reporting period to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred
before credit losses are recognised.

The management of the Group anticipate that the
application of HKFRS ¢ in the future may have a
material impact on amounts reported in respect
of the Group’s financial assets. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of
the effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group undertakes
a detailed review.

110 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016

3. FE

P =
=]

&

BEBUMEREERN([HFBHKER
28 ) )

BUBHREENEIR (€M TA ]

(%)

PEREEREMNS - BESSEREI9
ATMREELEERBRRAGERAR - BEY
BHRELEFIRRERBREEBERE G
8- EHEERRRARTEENSRENR
BIEREEFRMZEEMEEHENEHA
B ARBREERR B VAR A RN ES o
MEZ BABREEGEEHIRAEES

-

AEBMEEEEY  NARERE B BHHRE LR
FIRKERARENEREEMEBRNECHEE
REE - R EAREETIRESH - BEE
BEFEEVBEREEAEIR I TFE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers”

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single
comprehensive model for entities to use in
accounting for revenue arising from contracts
with customers. HKFRS 15 will supersede the
current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 “Revenue”, HKAS 11 “Construction
Contracts” and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective. The core principle
of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity
expects to be entitled in exchange for goods and
services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a
5-step approach to revenue recognition:

Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with
customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations
in the contract

e Step 3: Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the
performance obligations in the contract

e Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as] the
entity satisfies a performance obligation
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire BTSRRI A
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

3. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts
with Customers” (continued)

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue
when (or as) a performance obligation is
satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance
obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescriptive guidance has been added
in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 15.

In 2016, the HKICPA issued Clarifications to
HKFRS 15 in relation to the identification of
performance obligations, principal versus agent
consideration, as well as licensing application
guidance.

The management of the Group anticipates
that the application of HKFRS 15 in the future
may affect the amounts reported and related
disclosures. However, it is not practicable to
provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed
review.

Except for the above impact, the management of
the Group do not anticipate that the application
of above new standards and amendments
will have significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model
for the identification of lease arrangements
and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 will supersede HKAS 17
Leases and the related interpretations when it
becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service
contracts on the basis of whether an identified
assets is controlled by a customer. Distinctions
of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced
by a model where a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability have to be recognised
for all leases by lessees, except for short-term
leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured
at cost and subsequently measured at cost
(subject to certain exceptions) less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses, adjusted
for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at that date. Subsequently, the lease liability
is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications,
amongst others. For the classification of cash
flows, the Group currently presents upfront
prepaid lease payments as investing cash flows
in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and
those classified as investment properties while
other operating lease payments are presents as
operating cash flows. Under the HKFRS 16, lease
payments in relation to lease liability will be
allocated into a principal and an interest portion
which will be presented as financing cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
irE MG EmRRM R
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

3. APPLICATION OF HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(THE “HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases” (continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already
recognised an asset and a related finance lease
liability for finance lease arrangement and
prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands
where the Group is a lessee. The application
of HKFRS 16 may result in potential changes
in classification of these assets depending on
whether the Group presents right-of-use assets
separately or within the same line item at which
the corresponding underlying assets would be
presented if they were owned.

In contrast to lessee accounting, HKFRS
16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and
continues to require a lessor to classify a lease
either as an operating lease or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required
by HKFRS 16.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments
of RMB18,156,000 as disclosed in note 40. A
preliminary assessment indicated that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a
lease under HKFRS 16, and hence the Group
will recognise a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability in respect of all these
leases unless they qualify for low value or short-
term leases upon the application of HKFRS 16.
In addition, the application of new arrangements
may result changes in measurement,
presentation and disclosure as indicated above.
However, it is not practicable to provide a
reasonable estimate of the financial effect until
the directors complete a detailed review.

Except as mentioned above, the directors of the
Company do not anticipate that the application
of the HKFRSs issued but not yet effective,
will have a material effect on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated
financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (“CO").

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared on the historical cost basis
except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair value, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below. Historical
cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group
takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would
take those characteristics into account when
pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or
disclosure purpose in these consolidated
financial statements are determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS
2 “Share-based Payment”, and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are
not fair value, such as net realisable value in
HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE2016&F 12331 L FE

4.

aRE BRI

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purpose, fair
value measurement are categorised into Level 1,
2 and 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable
and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are
described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities that the entity can access
at the measurement date;

e Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

e Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for
the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out
below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and entities controlled by the Company
(including structured entities). Control is
achieved when the Company:

e has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns
from its involvement with the investee; and

e has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

The Company reassesses whether or not it
controls an investee if facts and circumstances
indicate that there are changes to one or more of
the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Company obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Company loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of
a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Company gains
controls until the date when the Company ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributable to
the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests. Total comprehensive
income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring
their accounting policies in line with those used
by other members of the Group.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income and expenses, and cash flows relating
to the transactions among the members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are
presented separately from the Group’s equity
therein.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire BTSRRI A
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERETTHE &)

POLICIES (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership
interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group's ownership interests
in existing subsidiaries that do not result in
the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group's interests and
the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling
interests are adjusted and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised
directly in equity and attributed to owners of the
Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
a gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss
and is calculated as the difference between
(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interests and (ii) the previous carrying
amount of the assets (including any goodwill),
and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-
controlling interests. All amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that subsidiary are accounted for
as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary
(i.e. reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs]. The fair
value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition
for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 or,
when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of
an investment in an associate or a joint venture.

mEEE &)
AEEBRBEHBAR 2 BEERER S8

AEBERREMBARMEEEaLRZE  EY
BEYAREERELZEME QR MG - HIA
BERXPHAR - AREZ S RIFTRER 2 RE
B TURHE - ARBREERHE QR 2 B R
2 BEEY o JFFRARAE R P R 2 SRR BT AN B AT AR
BzAFEZEANEAEZR  HERNERERY
BERARBEAA

EAREERELE —RME QB MIEGIER - Kk
BENBEER - Xz 2 WRE Q- FEEEAR
Bikam N TE 2R i) 8 A R R AR JEE R
aMEE(BRIABE) RBBEZANEREELZ
BHZEAE - 2RI B QAN A2 WS
HRNEHLR  SRBINASEDBERHEZN
BARMNBBEEXEBEARNEN S BEESR
FEBAEREBYBRELRE, NS —
RIIRR) - RAREEDIEE ARATNEB R RIRE
MEMEENAFE  EREFTBGTERIFEIY
RAEERARSRI RV TERHRFE - (il
BRIVNPEINBERRREGLELENREK
o

118 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business
is carried at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses and is presented separately
in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill
is allocated to each of the relevant cash-
generating units (or groups of cash-generating
units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill
has been allocated is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequent whenever there
is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the cash-generating unit to
which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit is less than the carrying amount
of the unit, the impairment loss is allocated first
to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the unit and then to the other assets
of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying
amount of each asset in the unit.

Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent periods.

On subsequent disposal of the relevant cash-
generating unit, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the
amount of profit or loss on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE2016&F 12331 L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERETTHEE »)

POLICIES (continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business
combination are recognised separately from
goodwill and are initially recognised at their fair
value at the acquisition date (which is regarded
as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible
assets with finite useful lives are carried at
costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation
for intangible assets with finite useful lives is
recognised on a straight-line basis over their
estimated useful lives (see the accounting
policy in respect of impairment on tangible and
intangible assets below).

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal,
or when no future economic benefits are
expected from use or disposal. Gains and losses
arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset, are recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised.

Interests in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby
the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require unanimous consent of
the parties sharing control.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Interests in joint ventures (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of joint
ventures are incorporated in these consolidated
financial statements using the equity method
of accounting. The financial statements of joint
ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions
and events in similar circumstances. Under
the equity method, an investments in a
joint venture are initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the
Group’'s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the joint venture.
When the Group’'s share of losses of a joint
venture exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint
venture (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate], the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to
the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on
behalf of the a joint venture.

An investment in a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on
which the investee becomes an associate or a
joint venture. On acquisition of the investment
in a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERETTHE &

POLICIES (continued)

Interests in joint ventures (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognise
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in a joint venture. When necessary,
the entire carrying amount of the investment
(including goodwill] is tested for impairment in
accordance with HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets
as a single asset by comparing its recoverable
amount (higher of value in use and fair value
less costs of disposal] with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part
of the carrying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment
subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity
method from the date when the investment
ceases to be an associate or a joint venture,
or when the investment (or a portion thereof)
is classified as held for sale. When the Group
retains an interest in the former joint venture
and the retained interest is a financial asset,
the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is
regarded as its fair value on initial recognition
in accordance with HKAS 39. The difference
between the carrying amount of the joint venture
at the date the equity method was discontinued,
and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of a partial
interest in the joint venture is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of
the joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts
for all amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in relation to that joint
venture on the same basis as would be required
if that joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if
a gain or loss previously recognised in other
comprehensive income by that joint venture
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the
disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the
Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to
profit or loss (as a reclassification adjustment)
when the equity method is discontinued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Interests in joint ventures (continued)

When a group entity transacts with a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or
contribution of assets], profits and losses
resulting from the transactions with the joint
venture are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of
interests in a joint venture that are not related to
the Group.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services,
or for administrative purposes are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at
cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property, plant and equipment
less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the
end of each reporting period, with the effect
of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Properties in the course of construction for
production, supply or administrative purposes
are carried at cost, less any recognised
impairment loss. Such properties are classified
to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from
the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss
arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERETTHEE »)

POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured
at cost, including any directly attributable
expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at their fair
values. Gains or losses arising from changes
in the fair value of investment properties are
included in profit or loss for the period in which
they arise.

Investment properties are derecognised upon
disposal or when the investment properties
are permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset] is included
in the profit or loss in the period in which the
item is derecognised.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases
whenever the terms of the lease transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the term of the relevant lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Leasing (continued)
Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building
elements, the Group assesses the classification
of each element as a finance or an operating
lease separately based on the assessment as to
whether substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear
that both elements are operating leases in
which case the entire lease is classified as an
operating lease.

Specifically, the minimum lease payments
(including any lump sum upfront payments) are
allocated between the land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair
values of the leasehold interests in the land
element and building element of the lease at the
inception of the lease.

When the lease payments cannot be allocated
reliably between the land and building elements,
the entire lease is generally classified as a
finance lease and accounted for as property,
plant and equipment.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable and
represents amounts receivable for services
provided in the normal course of business, net of
related taxes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE2016&F 12331 L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERETTHEE »)

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when the goods are delivered and titles
have passed, at which time all the following
conditions are satisfied:

e the Group has transferred to the buyer the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
the goods;

e the Group retains neither continuing
managerial involvement to the degree
usually associated with ownership nor
effective control over the goods sold;

e the amount of revenue can be measured
reliably;

e it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the transaction will flow to
the Group; and

e the costs incurred or to be incurred in
respect of the transaction can be measured
reliably.

Property management services

The Group charged property management fees
in respect of the property management services
on a lump sum basis and on a commission
basis. Revenue is recognised when services are
provided.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Property management services (continued)

On a lump sum basis, the Group are entitled
to retain the full amount of received property
management fees. By receiving such the
property management fees, the Group shall
bear expenses associated with, among others,
staff, cleaning, garbage disposal, gardening and
landscaping, security and general overheads
covering the common areas. During the term
of the contract, if the amount of property
management fees the Group collected is not
sufficient to cover all the expenses incurred,
the Group is not entitled to request the property
owners to pay the shortfall.

Accordingly, on a lump sum basis, the Group
recognises as revenue the full amount of
property management fees the Group charged
to the property owners and property developers
when services are provided, and recognises the
expenses as costs of services the Group incurred
in connection with performing our services.

On a commission basis, the Group is entitled
to only a pre-determined percentage of the
property management fees the property owners
and property developers are obligated to pay.
The remainder of the management fee is used
as property management working capital to
cover the property management expenses
associated with the property management work.
In the event of a surplus of working capital after
deducting the relevant property management
expenses, the surplus is generally rolled over
to the next annual period, and the balance is
added to receipts on behalf of residents on the
consolidated statement of financial position. In
the event of a shortfall of working capital to pay
for the relevant property management expenses,
the Group may need to make up for the shortfall
and pay on behalf of the community management
offices first, with a right to recovering from the
residents subsequently.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Property management services (continued)

On a commission basis, the Group essentially
acts as an agent of the property owners and
property developers and accordingly, the
Group only recognises as its revenue the pre-
determined percentage of property management
fees when services are provided.

Ancillary services income, consulting
services income, sale assistance services
income under lump sum basis, online

to offline business income, engineering
service income and catering services
income

Related services income are recognised when
related services are rendered.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is
recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the amount
of income can be measured reliably. Interest
income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset
to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing financial statements of each
individual group entity, transactions in
currencies other than the functional currency
of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
in the respective functional currency [i.e. the
currency of primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) at the rates
of exchange prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items that
are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are not translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement
of monetary items, and on the retranslation of
monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss
in the period in which they arise.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until
there is reasonable assurance that the Group
will comply with the conditions attaching to them
and that the grants will be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or
loss on a systematic basis over the periods in
which the Group recognises as expenses the
related costs for which the grants are intended
to compensate.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already
incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future
related costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they become receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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irE B R MR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE2016&F 12331 L FE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production
of qualifying assets, which are assets that
necessarily taken a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered services entitling
them to the contributions.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the
tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable
profit during the year. Taxable profit differs
from profit before tax as reported in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’'s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
each reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary
differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint
arrangements except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such
investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise
the benefits of the temporary differences and
they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable
future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERETTHE &)

POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws] that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and
assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities or deferred tax assets for investment
properties that are measured using the fair
value model, the carrying amounts of such
properties are presumed to be recovered
entirely through sale, unless the presumption
is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment property
over time, rather than through sale. If the
presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities
and deferred tax assets for such investment
properties are measured in accordance with the
above general principles set out in HKAS 12 [i.e.
based on the expected manner as to how the
properties will be recovered).

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit
or loss. Where current tax or deferred tax
arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost of inventories is
calculated using the first-in, first-out basis.
Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position when a group entity becomes
a party to the contractual provisions of the
instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are
initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities, other than those classified
as fair value through profit and loss, are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets
or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are generally
classified as loans and receivables. The
classification depends on the nature and
purpose of the financial assets and is
determined at the time of initial recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or
loss in the period in which they arise. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes
any dividend or interest earned on the financial
assets.
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4.

aRE BRI

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES /(continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset and of allocating interest income over the
periods. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts (including all fees paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts] through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other
receivables, amount due from a related party,
amounts due from non-controlling shareholders
of subsidiaries, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any
identified impairment losses (see accounting
policy on impairment loss on financial assets
below].

4, ERETTHEE &)

€RMTE &)
SREE (&)
[ 3ESS

BERMN XS E S RE E AR M B R HIE]
WD BEH B RARITE - EENREHSRBEER
EERMFR K (ER ) 858 B A A 5K R

REWRA(BREENRERERERNE - XHK
ARLAR Bt B sk i@ AR BB D O PR B ) 22 HE

REIRE B AR TR RREDFER KB ROHNE -

B TAMNHN SR ARE R R EEREZ -

ﬁm&ﬂgl&m

B R K e UK TR T [ RE X R B RE A5 R B R T A A B
METUEBENFNTESREE - VT ER
ER M EWRIE(BRE S R EMBWIA - B
BRAE T SR - RIS A RISFE AR R - B
MIRTERRIBITEHR LIRS ) ABBRFZEMEG
EREHBEER(RTXEREEREBEEBRZ
SETBOR )RR AN -

134 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets designated as at FVTPL

Financial assets designated as at FVTPL has two
subcategories, including financial assets held
for trading and those designated as at FVTPL on
initial recognition. A financial asset is classified
as held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling in the near term; or

e itisa partof a portfolio of identified financial
instruments that the Group manages
together and has are cent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset
held for trading may be designated as at FVTPL
upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

e the financial asset forms part of a group
of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented
risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset
or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.

iR e B R T A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

4, ERETTHEE &)

E@MTHE (&
SREE (&)
EELBEAFENANERZSREE

BEREATEFABRSZEREED RMERD
B BRBELHESREERNISERRIEER
BAVEFABRGSZEREE WS TIIBER
AlERMEED BARFIELE -

o WBZBEERTIEZHMNTRIHIHEE =X

e BRAEEEFEEREZAHESMIAAS
285 W B ERIRREHRERN G ETE
8k

BRIREE  BREHPTAZITETA -

WA THER  HEHESREENIZ ERE
R BE MU P HERR BT 35 TE R IR A HERT AR

o RIETEHB AR D A B 2 SR AR
HEZR—BIE %

s RERMEEBN—HEMEEXTRABRSD
MEEREBAGBHASZ D MREAE
BHIEzARERIIRERE  ZREEZLE
BB AR EAERETHE - BHR
D EM TR EERREPRH 2k

h

REE—HRXZERATETAZANZ
7 MAB G ENEIN 2 FFASER
AEN(EERBB) BERRAFERAR

z

1)

iy

Bk | ot
]:mH'
N}

o

FREREEMARAA

2016 F£3§




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire RN
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERETTHEE »)

POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Financial assets designated as at FVTPL
[continued)

Financial assets designated as at FVTPL are
measured at fair value, with changes in fair value
arising from remeasurement recognised directly
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
includes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial assets.

Impairment loss of financial assets

Loans and receivables are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each
reporting period. Loans and receivables are
impaired where there is objective evidence that,
as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the loans and
receivables, the estimated future cash flows
have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty;

e breach of contract, such as default or
delinquency in interest and principal
payments; or

e it becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or financial re-
organisation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment loss of financial assets [continued)

For certain categories of financial asset, such
as trade receivables, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are subsequently
assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio
of receivables could include the Group’'s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase
in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio and observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with
default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost,
the amount of the impairment loss recognised
is the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest rate.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is
reduced by the impairment loss directly for all
financial assets with the exception of trade and
other receivables, where the carrying amount
is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of
the allowance account are recognised in profit
or loss. When a trade and other receivable is
considered uncollectible, it is written off against
the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries
of amounts previously written off are credited to
profit or loss.

If, in @ subsequent period, the amount of
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment loss was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that
the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire BTSRRI A
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERETTHE &)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity Instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the group entities are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL
when the financial liabilities are either held
for trading or those designated as at FVTPL on
initial recognition.

A financial liability other than a financial liability
held for trading may be designated as a FVTPL
upon initial recognition if:

e such designation eliminates or significantly
reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise; or

e the financial liability forms part of a group
of financial assets or financial liabilities or
both, which is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with the Group’s documented
risk management or investment strategy,
and information about the grouping is
provided internally on that basis; or

e it forms part of a contract containing one or
more embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39
permits the entire combined contract (asset
or liability) to be designated as at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
[continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at
fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any interest paid on the financial
liabilities and is included in the other gains and
losses.

Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities, including trade and
other payables, amount due to a joint venture,
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders of
subsidiaries, borrowings and other long-term
payable are measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs
and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective
interest basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire BTSRRI A
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERETTHEE »)

POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)
Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only
when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the assets expire and when it substantially
transfers all the risks and rewards of the asset
to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Share-based payment transactions

Share-based payment transactions with
cash alternative

For a share-based payment transactions in
which the terms of the arrangement provide
the grantee with the choice of whether settling
in equity instruments of the Group or in cash
is in effect a compound financial instrument,
that included a debt component and an equity
component. The Group shall determine the
fair values of the debt and equity components
separately on grant date, and accounted for in
accordance with the requirements applying to
cash-settled and equity-settled share-based
payment transactions respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment transactions

[continued)

Cash-settled share-based payment
transactions

For cash-settled share-based payments, a
liability is recognised for the goods or services
acquired, measured initially at the fair value
of the liability. At the end of each reporting
period until the liability is settled, and at the
date of settlement, the fair value of the liability
is remeasured, with any change in fair value
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to directors and
eligible employees

The fair value of services received determined
by reference to the fair value of share options
granted at the date of grant is expensed on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period, with a
corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to ultimately vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised
in profit or loss such that the cumulative
expense reflects the revised estimate, with a
corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the
share options are forfeited after the vesting date
or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options
reserve will continue to be held in share options
reserve.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire BTSRRI A
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4, ERETTHEE »)

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible and
intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy
in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible
and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any.

When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, corporate
assets are also allocated to individual cash-
generating units, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of cash generating units
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and
intangible assets not yet available for use are
treated for impairment at least annually, and
whenever there is an indication that the asset
may be impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of tangible and
intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy
in respect of goodwill above)

[continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset for
which the estimates of future cash flows have
not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the
asset (or a cash-generating unit) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently
reverses, the carrying amount of the asset
is increased to the revised estimate of its
recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
irE MG EmRRM R
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. s TREMNEERR

UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting
policies, which are described in note 4, the
management of the Group is required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors
that are considered to be relevant. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation
uncertainty

The following is the key assumption concerning
the future, and other key source of estimation
uncertainty at the end of each reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year.

Acquisition-date fair value of identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in
business combination

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
assumed in business combination are measured
at fair value on acquisition date. The Group is
responsible in determining the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs for fair value
measurements. The valuation of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed in
business combination requires the Group to
estimate the future net cash flows expected to
arise from the identifiable assets and settle the
liabilities assumed and suitable growth rates
and discount rates used in calculating the fair
value. The total consideration, in relation to the
completed acquisition during the year ended 31
December 2016 was RMB222,566,000. Should
there be change in assumption or estimation,
the carrying amount of intangible assets and
goodwill may change.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY /(continued)

Key sources of estimation
uncertainty (continued)

Estimated impairment of trade receivables

The management of Group determined the
carrying amount of trade receivables by
considering the aging of trade receivables,
the credit profile including default or delay
in payments, settlement records and cash
collection post year end of the customers. The
amount of the allowance for doubtful debts is
measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the estimated future
cash flows based on the above consideration.
Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying
amounts of the Group's trade receivables are
RMB159,373,000 (2015:RMB71,213,000), net of
allowance for doubtful debts of RMB45,950,000
(2015: RMB39,576,000).

Estimated impairment of goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable
amount which is the higher of the value in use
and fair value less cost of disposal to sell of the
cash-generating units to which goodwill has
been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future
cash flows expected to arise from the cash-
generating unit based on five-year financial
budgets approved by management of the Group,
and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate
the present value. Key estimates involved in
the preparation of cash flow projections for
the period covered by the approved budgets
include the growth rates, discount rates applied
and forecast net cash inflows generated from
the expected service charges to be earned
less relevant costs to be incurred and working
capital requirements. Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected or there is
a downward revision of expected future cash
inflows due to unfavourable change in facts
and circumstances, a material impairment loss
may arise. The carrying amount of goodwill was
amounted to RMB89,183,000 (2015: RMB41,000).

fre AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

. AETTEEMENEERE (&)

EEFTREENEZRR (@)

g 2 BWREMEEHRE

TEEEREERBEHEBFACKREK - HEE
FEe(REHERSEREMNZK) BENEMNTDEEN
FREBERM RS  BEEBEIEYGIECRME -
REBENSEDNEERMERRBE LEEA
ZHEFTARKRREREZERENE - MNERRESRE
DRRTER] - ATREELEEARMERE - R20164F12
AR AEEEZERFEZREAEAARE
159,373,0007C (20154 : AR #71,213,0007T)
2B R E AR 45,950,0007T (20154 © A
R#39,576,0007T) °

BB N EEHRE

ErTEERONEAMGTESEEENREELS
UHA e SE(AFEREELRFERHEKA
PRESE)  FEFEAEER  AEEEEAS
EEEEMANTFHKEE  GBEHTBER
CELBNELENAKRRERENEEME R
LAGTEIRE - GROEMENBERZHRHNRS
REEASENEBMHAREEREER BFEAZM
WERNM GBI BHRRE W EEE 2R KA
FHEREELEZEHMERANEELESE K - HER
RIREREBH AL AAEERRENTFHE
g T ABHAKESRE - QIR HIREARIE
E5i8 - MENEREEAAKES9,183,0007T(2015
F 0 AR¥41,0000T)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire BTSRRI A
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

5. KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION 5. s THEEMNEEREFR &)

UNCERTAINTY /(continued)

Key sources of estimation
uncertainty (continued)

Estimated impairment of intangible assets

Determining whether intangible assets
are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount which is the higher of fair
value less cost of disposal and value in use of
the cash-generating units to which intangible
assets have been allocated. The value in use
calculation requires the Group to estimate the
future cash flows expected to arise from the
cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value.
Where the actual future cash flows are less
than expected, a material impairment loss may
arise. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying
amount of intangible assets net of accumulated
impairment loss was RMB106,289,000 (2015:
RMB89,000].

Fair value of completed investment properties

The Group’s completed investment properties
are stated at fair value based on the valuation
performed by a firm of independent professional
valuers. In determining the fair value, the
valuers have based on method of valuation
which take into account the market evidence
of transaction prices for similar properties in
the same location and conditions. In relying
on the valuation report, the management has
exercised its judgement and is satisfied that the
method of valuation is reflective of the current
market conditions. Should there be changes in
assumptions due to market conditions, the fair
value of the investment properties will change
in future. The carrying amounts of investment
properties are RMB139,660,000 (2015: nil).

I THEEENETERR &)

B EENMLEORE

ErEREAERADREREGTTWE SR (A
EREEENENBESEESMNNAFERBEK
ARERABEROESSE - TEERERN A%
EEGIReELENANEENAKRESRER
AEMIRE - DEHERE - WEBRRKRERED
RIEHER - RIRTgE IR E KR EEE « 2016412
AR BREEMNEREAEGIREFRERE)
B AR #106,289,00070 (20154 - AR 89,000
JL) °

BRTREMENAFE

AEBNERTIREMETHIRE LB EEERATE
TTRRBEARTFHETR - REERQFER - (HE
B IR A N A8 R B SR ) SR L) S Y AR S (B
MISRBEN[ED XL - RIKBHERSE €12
EBEFLTHE Y EMZEETAERRTIZR
e WIS EHBRERNE - REVMENRATFE
BRARERES - REVENFEAESARE
139,660,0007C(2015%F : #%)
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that
entities in the Group will be able to continue as
a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholders through the optimisation of the
debt and equity balance. The Group’'s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net
debts, which includes the borrowings, amount
due to a joint venture, amounts due to non-
controlling shareholders of subsidiaries [net of
pledged bank deposits and bank balances and
cash) and equity attributable to owners of the
Company comprising share capital and other
reserves.

The management of the Group reviews the
capital structure regularly. The Group considers
the cost of capital and the risks associated
with each class of capital, will balance its
overall capital structure through the payment
of dividends, new share issues and shares
repurchases as well as the issue of new debt or
the redemption of existing debt.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION

The segment information reported internally
was analysed on the basis of geographical zones
of services rendered in the PRC, representing
Southern Region, Eastern and Central Region
and Northern Region which is consistent with
the internal information that are regularly
reviewed by the management of the Group,
i.e. the chief operating decision maker, for
the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of performance. This is also the
basis of organisation in the Group, whereby the
management has chosen to organise the Group
by geography. No operating segments identified
by the chief operating decision maker have
been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group.

iR e B R T A
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6. EXEmMERE

AEBEREEAUBRAEEE T ERAFHEL
& RAREAE(EFRRANZHNFERRERS
KA - AEE 2 BRI EBEFEMER -

AEBZEARBRIZFEY - HBEER BN
—HAERERIER - BB R RFHERBR R
(MR ERRTERLBTERRA ) ALK
REHEEANEEED (BREBRAREMER) o

AEBERBEMRSEARE - AKEEERE
ARARBEEREREBORRE - X &EBIRMNK
B B BT R R AR BT A ER
BEBATFOERBER SRS -

Wi Kk 2 EER

MEBZ2 R D BRE R TD 3 i P BAR (AR A% #0332 [
Bt - BNEREME - EREFEFER NREILR
HREREBREEE (T ELERRE) RET
BRDB MR G EREHOAILER 20
TRARENEEER  BEECRILERTR
MBARE - NERAKENA T2HOME - =
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire BTSRRI A
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 7. KBERDHER &)

INFORMATION (continued)

e Southern Region includes the cities of
Guangzhou, Nanning, Sanya, Haikou,
Foshan, Zhongshan, Jiangmen, Qingyuan,
Zhaoqing, Guilin, Zhuhai, Wenchang and
Cenxi.

e Eastern and Central Region includes the
cities of Hangzhou, Suzhou, Chongqing,
Ningbo, Jiaxing, Nantong, Shaoxing, Quzhou,
Nanchang, Shanghai, Wuxi, Xuancheng,
Zhengjiang, Huzhou, Chuzhou, Yangzhou,
Chizhou, Wenzhou, Huai’an, Zhoushan, and
Taizhou.

e Northern Region includes the cities of
Baotou, Eérduosi, Dalian, Beijing and
Tianjin.

The accounting policies of the reportable
and operating segments are the same as the
Group’s accounting policies described in note
4. Segment result represents the profit earned
by each segment without allocation of central
administration costs, change in fair value of
investment properties, bank interest income,
change in fair value of financial liabilities
designated as at FVTPL, loss on deemed
disposal of a subsidiary, share of results of
joint ventures, net exchange gain, share-based
payment expenses, finance costs and listing
expenses. This is the measure reported to the
chief operating decision maker for the purposes
of resources allocation and assessment of
segment performance.

No analysis of segment assets and segment
liabilities is presented as these information are
not regularly provided to the chief operating
decision maker for review.

s FEEMEBEEMN BME =580
W~y TP BE  BE AR I8
NERZX -

o ERFEPHMEEEMM M BE - BR-
FE OBE AR -#mMN mE - LE B
8~ FI - ST RN OBRM BN B
BN ER - AU BN

o FIWREFEEHE SBZH - KE Rk
RAE °

ATEHRMEENBHNEARREAEEN ST
R(FHRMEL) AR - D EBEEIE S 5 BREEY F
B MRS ERRITEAAR - REYEQFEE
8 - RITHBWA - IBERBAFHEFABRZNE
RAEBENATEZE REHEWBARERE &
HAREMEES  EXREFE - RONRFAZ
MERAR ETRX - WIRETERNEE D E
RAFEMERTEIBLERRENGFENZE -

REJNDHEERDHEBEND T IANZEER
WIERRETEIBLERKEEH -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

ire R AR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

7. WERDEHER (&)

Segment revenue and results PR ERES
The following is an analysis of the Group's T RIREE R TFE2®m HEDNAEEHN KR
revenue and results by operating and reportable NEEEDHT o
segment.
Eastern
Southern and Central Northern
Region Region Region Total
ERESD
ERhE ih & EiihE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥BTT AR%MTrT AR%BTR AR¥T:R
Year ended HZE2016%12A8
31 December 2016 BMELFE
Segment revenue pan= LG 201,219 380,557 53,370 635,146
Segment results DEBHEE 41,603 37,186 4,472 83,261
Bank interest income RITHEHA 3,655
Net exchange gain b U T RE 12,101
Change in fair value of TEYED
investment properties NTEZE 3,341
Share-based payment RAERGS
expenses of the Company N (8,345)
Share-based payment )Nl gh)
expenses of a subsidiary A (7,683)
Share of results of joint EiEE &z
ventures E 2,148
Finance costs BT R AR (4,705)
Central administrative costs ~ H R7TEAKA (59,517)
Profit before tax FR A AT AR 24,256
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
VPN

aRE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (continued)

7. WERDEHER (&)

Segment revenue and results DR R EE (#)
[continued)
Eastern
Southern and Central Northern
Region Region Region Total
FERER
ErRiE HhfE Bl HBET
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AR®ETT ARBTT ARETET
Year ended HZE201551248
31 December 2015 JMBLEE
Segment revenue DU 179,447 221,371 19,337 420,155
Segment results DEPELE 49,611 54,575 4,275 108,461
Bank interest income RITFEHA 1,198
Net exchange gain B 5 % 5R 9,732
Change in fair value of HBERENTEE
financial liabilities ABHHERE
designated as at FVTPL [EGOVASRIEE ) (6,343)
Listing expenses WX (35,881)
Share-based payment AT
expenses of the Company X (14,630)
Share-based payment LoyENSIL ST
expenses of a subsidiary MRFAX (5,298)
Share of results of BhEEPEESR
joint ventures 243
Finance costs B TSR ZAR (1,572)
Loss on deemed disposal BIEHEWE AR
of a subsidiary BB (85)
Central administrative costs ~ FRITEA A (20,459)
Profit before tax R Bt AT AE 35,366
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fre B TSR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ 201651283 1A LEE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 7. WE RS HER &)
INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenue and results DEMFERELE (4
[continued)
The Group’s operations are mainly in property NEBEETTAYESTRER  HIEEL &5+
management business, sale assistance Bl TSR EMER - PREUMIRERENE D
business, online to offline business and other TANEB U R EE AT B

business. The following table provides an
analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
based on types of business:

Property Sale Online
management  assistance to offline Other
business business business business Total
LIES L3 Hitr
EEER [iEES S BTEK % st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR ARMTR AR®Tx

(note a) (note b)
(k) (FizED)
Year ended 220165
31 December 2016 12ANALEE
Segment revenue AEE 559,372 55,731 8,264 11,779 635,146
Segment results DEEE 104,943 23,472 (50,274) 5,120 83,261
Property Sale Online
management  assistance to offline Other
business business business business Total
ES B3
EHER [iEES S BTER Hin %% @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT AR%ETRT ARETRT
(note a (note b)
(Mzta) (FzED)
Year ended 220155
31 December 2015 12BNALEE
Segment revenue AEE 351,693 66,137 1,982 343 420,155
Segment results BT 87,918 29,109 (8,053) (513) 108,461
Notes: P T
(a) Property management business contains property a) MEEEREBBEFROBEFEOYEEIRRY - ZM
management services under lump sum basis, SHIFFENMEETERSE RERER

property management services under commission
basis and ancillary services.

(b] Other business contains consulting services, (b) EMEBBEHARY  TERY  ERRBREELT
engineering services, catering services and sales BEM -
of engineering spare parts.
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frRe B TSR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ 201651283 1A LEE

7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT 7. RERDEER (@)
INFORMATION /(continued)
Other segment information H b5 &R
Eastern
Southern and Central Northern
Region Region Region Total
ERER
EPHE & L E st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®Tr AR¥TRT AR%®Trx
Year ended HZE2016%F12A8
31 December 2016 NBALFE
Segment information FPADERERTE
included in the measure KD EBER
of segment results:
Depreciation of property, Y - BB REE
plant and equipment e 3,719 3,711 54 7,484
Amortisation of mE ERE
intangible assets - 2,559 - 2,559
Loss on disposal of property, HE®E - BER
plant and equipment RAEEE 19 86 - 105
Allowance for doubtful debts & 5 fEU A
on trade receivables RERBME 3,913 8,360 1,161 13,434
Year ended HZE2015%12A8
31 December 2015 JMTHLFEE
Segment information STADEEE S
included in the measure KD EBER
of segment results:
Depreciation of property, W - BB k&
plant and equipment e 3,654 1,410 185 5,149
Amortisation of | B EEE
intangible assets - 56 - 56
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE - MEX
plant and equipment RIEEE 25 - - 25
Allowance for doubtful debts & 5 fEUL A
on trade receivables REREAE 3,961 7,730 2,094 13,785
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7. REVENUE AND SEGMENT

INFORMATION (continued)

iR e B R T A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

7. WERDEHER (&)

Revenue from major services FERBWE
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Property management services income BRI MEETERBWA
under lump sum basis 513,102 320,837
Property management services income Bl fil Y X B IR AR U A
under commission basis 882 -
Sale assistance services income under B3 Il 175 35 AR 75 LA
lump sum basis (note a) (FFzEa) 55,731 66,137
Ancillary services income fic £ AR 5 A 45,388 30,856
Online to offline business income R ERIRTERA 8,264 1,982
Other services and sales of goods (note b) E R M IHEE R
(FF3ED) 11,779 343
635,146 420,155
Notes: MIEE -

(a] Such amounts represent property management
service income from property developers for their
sales centers.

(b) Such amounts represent income from consulting
services, engineering services, catering services
and sales of engineering spare parts.

Geographical information

The Group’s revenue from external customers is
derived solely from its operations and services
rendered in the PRC and non-current assets of
the Group are principally located in the PRC.

Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, there was no revenue from transactions
with a single external customer amounted to
10% or more of the Group’s total revenue.

(a) @BEARRLANEERFAUEBEETLZVEEERS
NG

(b) SEREXREFEARSE - TERE - KERMBERIEET
REMMA

i E & #

A O ER 2 5 A A A IS R 1 A PR B O TS
R HARE  MAEENIERSEET SRR
R o

FHREEFEFHNER

HZE2016F R2015F12 A3 B ILFE - #imEE
—INEFPRGAEEMNKRRERNEE ARG
10%8A £ ©
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AR B BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. Ht A
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR%T R ARBT T
Bank interest income RITH B YA 3,655 1,198
Unconditional government grants TG T A L 3,028 179

Rental income from KEDFENHES KA
investment properties 762 -
Others HAth 422 90
7,867 1,467
9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 9. Hthm K&

2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBT T

Allowance for doubtful debts B 5 W RIERR B E
on trade receivables (13,434) (13,785)

Loss on disposal of property, HEME - BE KK

plant and equipment [=Ei=! (105) (25)

Loss on deemed disposal of RIELEMBRAIERE
a subsidiary - (85)
Net exchange gain b X W e H 4R 12,101 9,732
Others HAh (733) 144

(2,171) (4,019)
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- % 2
ire R AR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

10.FINANCE COSTS 10. A F B A
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR%T ARBT T
Interest on borrowings BEERE 2,384 1,450
Imputed interest expense on BERNREmMHESED
consideration payable MEFXZ 1,088 -
Imputed interest expense on non-current  FLER 4 45 & A% {0 15 3R HE
liabilities for cash-settled share-based EWIFERDEETE
payments X 1,233 122
4,705 1,572
11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 1. PR &8 B X
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T ARBT T
Current tax: RVERRIA -
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") R PTG
(TEEmER ) 27,061 27,365
Deferred tax (note 22) IRIEFIE (M 5E22)
Current year REE 547 (2,612)
27,608 24,753

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been
made in the consolidated financial statements as
the income of the Group neither arises in nor is
derived from Hong Kong during both years.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise
Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
companies is 25%.

HAMEFEALARERELAEERNSREE
B RN E M WER T IE R IG B
1% o

REB(PEARAMBEEMGSRENEEME
BOE D) RAEEMERRBRIED) - PEARIR
25% M B R
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ire BTSRRI A
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) MN.FAEHRAX (&)

Deferred tax has not been provided for in the
consolidated financial statements in respect
of the tax effect of temporary differences
attributable to the accumulated undistributed
earnings of the subsidiaries of the Company
established in the PRC amounting to
RMB89,325,000 (2015: RMB23,488,000] as
the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

The income tax expense for the year can be
reconciled to the profit before tax as follows:

BRAMBHREARL KRR R RFBEK LB R A
25T AR D IREFI AR 89,325,000 (20154 -
AR#23,488,0000) FTEL SR EZEZNTHHTE
FHRIEER B RS - RA AN E BRI G R =
BEBORERE - B ERZE RN KR RER A R ok
@ °

FRAPTEHF AT LR AT RIS AR T -

2016 2015
2016%F 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBET T
Profit before tax B 75 B ) 24,256 35,366
Tax at the PRC EIT rate of 25% IR ERTER R
25%Et B HIBIIE 6,064 8,842
Tax effect of share of results of ElIEEaEMEEEN
joint ventures MR E (537) (61)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for  “NA] BLFEIE B H93035 89 59
tax purpose (note) X EBIEE 2 (M) 11,267 16,984
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARGBRANR G E
tax purpose (3,496) (2,619)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised RIERRIBEED
MR & 12,892 1,607
Tax effect of subsidiaries with HEEBEHRENNB AT
preferential tax rate MBS E (5) -
Utilisation of tax loss previously FABARERN
not recognised TRIEE 8B (509) -
Deferred tax on undistributed earnings PRI E A FIR 5K
of PRC subsidiaries B EEER IR 1,932 -
Income tax expense FriSfif X 27,608 24,753
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iR e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

11.INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) N.FFBHAX (@)

Notes: During the years ended 31 December Mzt .  EZE2016F K2015F12A318IEFE - AR
2015 and 2016, expenses not deductible MY T EQERBECEMEREE TSI
mainly included welfare and entertainment [R&| R R ENEER S « I8 E AR A FET AR
expenses exceeding the tax deduction limits HNLRABHRATFEED  RONZIFAIUAR
mainly under the EIT Law, change in fair il 5

value of financial liabilities designated as at
FVTPL, share-based payment expenses and
listing expenses.

12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 12.EE BETHAEREESEHMH
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments paid/payable to B/ ERARRZEERGZEITERAE (BEEK
the directors and the chief executive of the BARATESHMETEEETENES FIRERE
Company (including emoluments for the services STEYE ) B BN RIS T

as employees of the group entities prior to
becoming the directors of the Company) are as

follow:

2016 2015
20164 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Directors’ fee EEBe 5,304 1,075

Other emoluments At 57 A
— salaries and other benefits —¥e RNEMBEF 1,503 1,355
— discretionary bonus —BYIBIEAL 1,079 -
— contributions to retirement scheme —RORET B 3K 193 105
— share-based payments — RGBT 4,618 4,794

12,697 7,329
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AR B BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

1. - BeTHRAEREEFMH »)

[continued)

Contributions

Salaries to retirement
and other Discretionary benefit Share-based

Fee benefits bonus scheme payments Total

i RIER
He HingRH s FHEIER SR =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR®Tr ARETn AR¥Tr ARETz AR%T:n

Year ended HR20165F

31 December 2016 12ANBLEE
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Liu Jian ks 1,560 420 53 48 330 2,611
Ms. Chen Zhuo BEgT 520 360 53 49 330 1,312
Mr. Liang Bing REEE 520 360 53 48 330 1,31
Mr. Long Weimin ERREE 520 363 53 48 330 1,314
Non-executive directors FHTES
Mr. Wei Zhe FaEE 104 - - - 2,921 3,025
Ms. Wu Qimin REFRT 104 - - - - 104
Mr. Lam Yiu Por B R S & 1,352 - 867 - 377 2,596
Independent BUFHTES

non-executive directors
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis ZEERE 156 - - - - 156
Mr. Yuan Boyin Ak g v 156 - - - - 156
Mr. Wu Haibing SFIEE 156 - - - ~ 156
Mr. Zhang Weilun REmEL 156 - - = - 156

5,304 1,503 1,079 193 4,618 12,697
Year ended BZ20155F

31 December 2015 12ANALEE
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Liu Jian [note a) Bl o (fitita) 51 377 - 2 343 797
Ms. Chen Zhuo [note a) BRE 2L (fizra) 25 326 - 27 343 721
Mr. Liang Bing (note ) 254 (fiEa) 25 326 - 2 343 720
Mr. Long Weimin (note a) ERREE (M) 25 326 - 26 343 720
Non-executive directors FHTEE
Mr. Wei Zhe (note b) (D) 49 - - - 3,031 3,100
Ms. Wu Qimin (note b) REF T (i) 69 - - - - 69
Mr. Lam Yiu Por [note b) R 22 A (3D 751 - - - 391 1,142
Independent BUKHTES

non-executive directors
Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis FEREE W)

[note c) 15 - - - - 15
Mr. Yuan Boyin (note c) RIAREAE(MEC) 15 - - - - 15
Mr. Wu Haibing [note c) RELGE(MEc) 15 - - - - 15
Mr. Zhang Weilun [note c| REMREE(MisEc) 15 - - - _ 15

1,075 1,355 - 105 4,794 7,329
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12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

[continued)

Notes:

(a) Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing and
Mr. Long Weimin were appointed as executive
directors of the Company on 5 January 2015. Mr.
Liu Jian is the chief executive of the Group, and
his emoluments disclosed above include those for
services rendered by him as chief executive.

(b) Mr. Wei Zhe, Ms. Wu Qimin and Mr. Lam Yiu Por
were appointed as non-executive directors of the
Company on 17 April 2015.

(c)] Mr. Lee Kwok Tung Louis, Mr. Yuan Boyin, Mr. Wu
Haibing and Mr. Zhang Weilun were appointed
as independent non-executive directors of the
Company on 5 November 2015.

The executive directors” emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services in
connection with the management of the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

The non-executive directors’ emoluments shown
above were mainly for their services as directors
of the Company or its subsidiaries.

The independent non-executive directors’
emoluments shown above were mainly for their
services as directors of the Company.

There was no arrangement under which a
director or the chief executive waived or agreed
to waive any remuneration during the year.

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
certain directors were granted share options, in
respect of their services to the Group under the
share option scheme of the Company. Details
of the share option scheme are set out in note
35(al.

The discretionary bonus for executive directors
is determined by the management based on the
performance of a subsidiary of the Company and
the discretionary bonus for Mr. Lam Yiu Por,
a non-executive director, is determined by the
Board of Directors based on his performance for
the year ended 31 December 2016.

iR e B R T A
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12.EE - BETHRAEREEHFM »)

GEE

(a) BlEEfid MREzt  REALERER/RLEN2015F
1ASAEZERARARNNITES - FEEALERAKE
TR - EXRBRRZME 2R RIERITHRARE
HRBEAEME -

(b) BHEFRAE R+ MBI £ AER2015F4 7178
BEZEARARNIERITES -

(c) ZFEREE  RIARLE  RIEEAERREREER
2015F 1M ASABEZEAARRIELIFNITES -

LROHTEEHE T ERARSEREEFBEALRA]
RAEEERBFMIAT o

LEERTEEME T ERREFREIARARAE
MEAREEMmMA -

LREBIFFMITEEME T ERRFEEART]
BEEMAT -

VEEMNEETRESTRABRFAREXLRER
BEAIHB AL HE -

BE2015F12A3MBLLFEAR - ETESRERN
N ERER BB R EH AR B IRIGERE
Pt - BERCRERT BRI RN PR35 (a)

BN THATEENRBEAREEBREARR —
BB AR MEERETE - MBERTIFNTESME
MEEHNRIBEABETSRELBE216F
12A3BILEFEZ TIERRETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
ire RN
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
AND EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

[continued)

The five highest paid individuals of the Group
included three directors for the year ended
31 December 2015 and 2016. The remunerations
of the remaining two individuals for the year ended
31 December 2015 and 2016 are set out below:

STATEMENTS

1. - BeTHRAEREEFMH »)

HE2015F N2016F12A3MBILFE - A£ER
LEREHFATBRE=-ZRE%E - HE20159F %2016
F12A3NBULEFE S TWARNIFMEZIOT -

2016 2015
20165 20154F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARBTF T
Salaries and other benefits Fre NEAMmEF 2,008 879
Discretionary bonus B TEAT 867 -
Contributions to retirement RIRAE N ET B
benefit scheme 76 41
Share-based payments [BEENEN 7,950 6,228
10,901 7,148
Their emoluments were within the following bands: BE 2 BEETHIARABIAT -
2016 2015
20165 2015%F
No. of No. of
employee employee
EEAH EEAH
Hong Kong Dollars (“HK$")1,000,001 to 1,000,001 c([ T ))&
HK$1,500,000 (equivalent to 1,500,000 7T (FHE R A
RMB868,000 to RMB 1,302,000 R#868,000cE AR
(2015: RMB838,000 to RMB1,257,000)) 1,302,0007T) (20154 :
AR 838,000t E
AR#1,257,0007T) - 1
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001#7C%7,500,000
(equivalent to RMB6,076,000 to BTEERARK
RMB6,510,000 (2015: RMB5,865,000 6,076,000CE AR
to RMB6,284,000)) 6,510,0007T) (20154 :
AE#5,865,0007C %
AR ®6,284,0007T) = 1
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001% 7T 43,500,000
(equivalent to RMB2,604,000 to BLTEER
RMB3,038,000) AR#2,604,0007TF
AR %3,038,0007T) 1 -
HK$9,500,001 to HK$10,000,000 9,500,001 8 TE
(equivalent to RMB8,246,000 to 10,000,0007% 7T (AHE 7
RMB8,680,000) AR #58,246,0000F
AR %8,680,0007T) 1 -
2 2
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fre B TSR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ 201651283 1A LEE

12.DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S

AND EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

[continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the directors or the five highest paid
individuals (including directors and employees)
as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, no directors waived any emoluments
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and

1. - BeTHRAEREEFMH »)

HZE2016F K%2015F 1283 1HIEFE - REBW
ERARNESHAEERTAT(BREESRE
B)XNMEEBEMAREB R IMAREREH
RENSK B E - o EEENHZE2016F
K2015F 12 A31H ILFEARET S -

2015.
13.(LOSS) PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 13. 5 E (F18)FHE
2016 2015
20164 2015%F
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT AREET T
(Loss) profit for the year has been arrived R (18 ) FE& NG
at after charging: T EEMmMSH -
Directors’ remuneration (note 12) FEME (FI5E12) 12,697 7,329
Other staff cost: HAth B TRCA -
— salaries and other benefits —FraekEMmEF 282,927 165,985
— contributions to retirement benefit — RIREFFT &I
schemes 20,234 12,744
— share-based payments expenses of — KA BRI 7 5K
the Company Sz 4,927 9,836
— share-based payments expenses of NGO SRR BN
a subsidiary =53 7,683 5,298
Total staff costs 48 8 T RN 328,468 201,192
Auditors’ remuneration 1% S5 R 32 B 1,550 2,260
Depreciation for property, W - BEREBITE
plant and equipment 7,484 5,149
Amortisation of intangible assets A 2,559 56

FRERKEERRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire RN
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

14.DISTRIBUTIONS 14.2 Kk
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBT T
Dividends recognised as distribution FAERDIK RS -
during the year:
2015 final dividend - HK2.50 cents 2015F REIRR B —
per share FH%2.5078510 17,251 -
2015 special dividend - HK2.00 cents 20155 R B —
per share FH%2.0078510 13,800 -
2015 dividend declared by a subsidiary ~ 2015FKE AR 2Tk
iz & - 87,592

In March 2016, a final dividend of HK2.5 cents
per share and a special dividend of HK2.0
cents per share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2015 were declared by the directors
and approved in the Company’s annual general
meeting on 31 May 2016. Dividend amounted to
RMB31,051,000 (equivalent to HK$36,000,000)
had been paid to owners of the Company in July
2016.

No dividend has been proposed by the directors
since the end of the reporting period.

Dividends of RMB87,592,000 has been
distributed by Guangdong Zhong Ao to its then
equity interest holders during the year ended 31
December 2015, in which RMB54,073,000 have
been offset with amounts due from directors and
RMB33,519,000 was distributed in cash.

M2016F3A - EEHBEE2015F 12831 B 1EF
EEIRARAIEFR2.58 1 R 45 RIS F % 2.0
il - WH2016F5 A3 B ZREAFALBB - A
R #31,051,0007T (#8% $36,000,0005870) 2 f% &
BR2016F7ARN TARREEB A ©

BEHRRESTHERZZRE -

HE2015F12A3MBLEFE  BREARE
87,592,000/tEHERFRD R TEERERES
A Bt AR#ESL,073,0007T 2 1 E U 2 = OB
M AR#E33,519,0007C 2 AR E DK ©
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15.(LOSS) EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss])
earnings per share attributable to owners of the
Company is based on the following data:

iR e B R T A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

15.8KR(&EH)&EF

AEARREAANREERERAREE(BER)A
FTIER TS8R

2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBT ARBT T
(Loss) earnings: (BB BF -
(Loss) earnings for the purposes of ATEERERREE
basic and diluted (loss) earnings per (B8 &Mz (BE)
share, representing (loss) profit for BF(EARRAREE A
the year attributable to owners of the JEAEFE (BB FE)
Company (6,383) 10,911
Number of shares: BREHA :
Weighted average number of ordinary METEERERREE
shares for the purpose of (BER)BNAAT AR
basic and diluted (loss) earnings per hniEFg 8
share 798,271,066 578,454,795

The calculation of the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue during the year ended
31 December 2015 is based on the assumption
that the Reorganisation and the capitalisation
issue as set out in note 34(f) had been completed
on 1 January 2015.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the
computation of diluted loss per share does not
take into account the effect of the share options
of the Company and the shares of H/N=Z/{E
BEEBMR A FHangzhou Yidao Information
Technology Company Limited ("Hangzhou
Yidao") since their exercise would result in a
decrease in loss per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2015, the
computation of diluted earnings per share does
not assume the exercise of the share options
of the Company since the exercise price of the
share options is higher than the average market
price of the Company’s shares during the year
ended 31 December 2015 and does not take
into account of the effect of the Central Oscar
and Decision Holdings Subscription Shares as
defined in note 32 as its impact is anti-dilutive.
The computation also does not take into account
of the effect of the shares of Hangzhou Yidao
that will be transferred to the employees of
Hangzhou Yidao as set out in note 35(b) as its
impact is anti-dilutive.

SEHE2015F12A3MBIEFEMNEEHITE B
IEFEE  HERNBREBEANENET(FR
MIEE34(F)) B 7A20155F1 A1 85 ©

EE2016F12A3BILFE - st HEEREEER
Wt MAR R BIE RN ERNE ERRARA
AI(TMMNER D IR 2FE - HTHRETESE
HERERRD -

STEEZE2015F12A3 B IEFENFREEERT
WRRZARCNEREDETE - THRARER
BHNITEERNARRRNNEE2015F 12731
HIEFEHNTFHEMISER - st E &5t RCentral
Oscar & Decision HoldingsiR 88 B 15 (F & RHI =E
32)2 %28 - THNAEZEAREEER - 5ETR
mA MBI ERANMMNSIEEEEZNRD 2
2 (GFRKFESS (b)) THEAEFEAREEE
% o
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iR e B R A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND 16.9% - MENRRE

EQUIPMENT
Furniture,
Leasehold fixtures and Motor Construction
Buildings improvement equipment vehicles in progress Total
BE-
HEWE  EERE
i 2 1 SET RE  HEIR ait
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARETR AR%TR ARETR AR%TR ARET:R
CosT e
At 1 January 2015 1201551418 7967 1,197 14,104 7,318 - 30,586
Additions HE 76 449 5,622 616 - 6,763
Acquisition of a subsidiary WENBAR
[note 34(b)) (PEE36(b)) - - 16 - - 16
Disposals HE - - (527) (788) - (1,315)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE-RNBAR
(note 37) (PzE37) - - (16) - - (16)
At 31 December 2015 20158124318 8,043 1,646 19,199 1146 - 36,034
Additions "E 603 628 6,094 241 2,036 9,602
Acquisition of businesses BRKENERT
through acquisition of TEmEB (M 360a))
subsidiaries (note 36(al) 9,287 850 1,413 2,875 - 14,425
Disposals HE - - (1,035) (151) - (1,186)
At 31 December 2016 12016F12A318 17,933 3,124 25,671 10,11 2,036 58,875
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION ~ 2:ti7E
At 1 January 2015 20151 318 766 1,186 5,650 1,863 - 9,465
Provided for the year EERE 429 66 3,358 1,296 - 5,149
Eliminated on disposals R EREE - - (238) (347) - (585)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—-RNEAT
(note 37) (WzE37) - - (2 - - (2)
At 31 December 2015 #20156128318 1,195 1,250 8,768 2812 R4
Provided for the year EREHE 571 984 4,579 1,350 - 7,484
Eliminated on disposals BB 8 - - (725) (70) - (795)
At 31 December 2016 20165127318 1,766 2,236 12,622 4,092 - 20,716
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 December 2016 12016F12A318 16,167 888 13,049 6,019 2,036 38,159
At 31 December 2015 12015F12A318 6,848 394 10,431 4,334 - 22,007
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iR e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ 201651283 1A LEE

16.PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

The above items of property, plant and
equipment other than construction in progress,
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over
their estimated useful lives, as follows:

16.M% - BEKRRE &)

BTN - BlR - BEMREEE HUE
ORISR AT E A FE ARG EREWT ¢

Buildings Over the term of BF %20 HE
lease of 20 years
Leasehold 3-5years HEMEEE 3%E54F
improvement
Furniture, fixtures 3 -5years R1B - EFE RN 3E54E
and equipment e
Motor vehicles 5- 10 years g8 52104
17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 17.3REWE
RMB’000
ARBT T
At 1 January 2016 M20165F1 518 -
Additions NE 46,090
Addition from acquisitions of businesses REBBUEEH B R
through acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36(a)) B ER 2RNE (H5E36(a)) 90,229
Increase in fair value recognised RIBZER 2 N FEEM
in profit or loss 3,341
At 31 December 2016 7R2016F12H31H 139,660

The fair values of the Group’s completed
investment properties at 31 December 2016
have been arrived at on the basis of valuation
carried out by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited, a firm of
independent qualified professional valuers not
connected with the Group, who have appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant
location.

The valuations of completed investment
properties were arrived at by reference to
analysing the sales transactions of similar
properties in the relevant locations and
conditions, where appropriate. In estimating the
fair value of the properties, the highest and best
use of the properties is their current use.

AEEBRTREMER2016F12A31HHAF
BERMEBITEETGERERAGRA RSN
BETE - MEBTEETHELERERAA A %
HAREEY EEPENB LA BN EEGEEMT
Aﬁmzéﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁm@mEﬁMW%ﬁﬂﬁ
TEQ

B TREYHENGEDSEZREME MIREFRE
PWENHEER S DM (WEA)FTERSL - H1E
MERNFER  YENEEERERRAHERKA

FREREEMARAA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
aRE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE2016&F 12331 L FE

17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 17.1REWE ()

The following table gives information about how
the fair values of these investment properties
as at 31 December 2016 are determined (in
particular, the valuation techniques and inputs
used], as well as the fair value hierarchy

TRBUABMAEERERAMER2016512
F1318 2 T8 (5 B2 57 68 F B (HES B 88 A
Big)  URZEATELBRBATETBHA
EIREREFMBBNATEER(E—E=R)
R -

into which the fair value measurements
are categorised (Levels 1 to 3) based on the
degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements is observable.

Significant
unobservable inputs
Fair value as at (relationship of
31 December unobservable inputs
Investment properties 2016 Hierarchy Valuation techniques to fair value) Range  Sensitivity
R2016% EXATTERBAE
128318 (FUBEGAER
RENx Z0VE %8 #ERS ATEZBE) #E §BE
RMB'000
AEBTR

Completed residential 91,160 Level 2 Direct comparison method - based on ~ market unit price RMBB8,000-  Asignificant increase/

units located at Ningbo, R market observable transactions of per square metre RMB25,000 decrease in market
Zhejiang Province and similar properties and adjusted ~[the higher of the ~ AR8,0007.E unit price would
I IEES Gl to reflect the conditions of the market unit price, ~ AR%25,0007C result in significant
BRTIAEEN subject property. the higher of the increase/decrease
ERLRE-RETSRUMENAE fairvalue) in fair value.
RRAUELBEARBESNES STAKDRENER AN BRANEE
R o (THELERE n/RoRERA
& RTEER) FEAREN/ B
o

Completed commercial 48,500 Level 2 Direct comparison method - based on  market unit price
units located at Ningbo, it market ohservahle transactions of
Zhejiang Province and similar properties and adjusted

RMB16,000-  Asignificant increase/
per square metre RMB17,000 decrease in market
(the higher of the - AR 16,0000 unit price would

R ES T to reflect the conditions of the market unit price,  ARE17,0001C result in significant
RIBREN subject property. the higher of the increase/decrease
BRLEE-RETSENEN fair value] in fair value.
TERRHUELREARSE  BTARTREMER mFENERARE
BRELVA (BB n/BOEERA
5 ATEER) FEAEEN/ 7
o
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17.INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The investment properties are all situated in the
PRC under medium-term lease. They are not
held within a business model whose objective
is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time and therefore the presumption to
recover entirely through sale is not rebutted.
The Group has recognised deferred taxation
on fair value changes in investment properties
taking into account the land appreciation tax on
disposal.

At 31 December 2016, investment properties
of RMB14,386,000 (2015: nil) were pledged to
secure certain banking facilities granted to the
Group.

18.PAYMENT FOR ACQUISITION OF

PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has
made deposit of RMB27,952,000 (2015:
RMB59,504,000] in relation to the acquisition of
properties situated in the PRC to independent
property developers.

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, pursuant to the agreements entered into
between the Group and independent property
developers (“Agreements”], all of which are
customers of the Group, these customers agreed
to dispose of their properties to the Group for
the settlement of trade receivables due to the
Group. During the year ended 31 December
2016, pursuant to the Agreements, the Group
has transferred the carrying amounts of trade
receivables amounting to RMB7,447,000 (2015:
RMB6,665,000) to payments for acquisition
of properties, in addition, paid further cash
deposits of RMB6,234,000 (2015: RMB8,839,000)
for the acquisition of properties. During the
year ended 31 December 2016, the payment
for acquisition of properties amounting to
RMB45,233,000 (2015:nil) were transferred to
investment properties on completion of the
aforesaid acquisition of properties.

fre AR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

17.8EMZE (#)

18.

BREMERBUNPBEALREFHABOFE - £X
FRBNRR —REFENERREMEM SRR
DEBENENEBERSE - RIbEBIHEE 28K
Bl 2 BREARKE - AEECHIREMEN R FE
BHRARTEHRIA - ERt RO ENTIIRET -

2016128318 - AK¥14,386,0007T (2015
FENREDECER  UREAEEERNE
TRITRERMER -

W BB D S Y A3 R

M20165 128318 » AEBE S WEMRPEEY
WERBIMEZERE S H AR 27,952,000
(20154 : AR #59,504,00070)1%% °

REZE2016F 22015512 A31H IEEE - BER
SEHBUMERER(MWALAEERF)ILZ
i ((ZEH#])  ZERFRERAEERE
BETWE  UENBEXRAEEZE S RIRE -
REZE2016F12A3BILEE - BEZSHE
NEBEEEREEEARKT,447,00070(2015
& NR¥6,66500070) 28 5 B RGRIA W EE
MEZMAFK - BN E—FIHREEEARE
6,234,000, (20154 = AR#8,839,0007T) (U iE
W o NEZE20165F 128310 IEFE - WEYWE
2N FE A RE45,233,0007T (20154 : )BT
FRAT I R B RS S R B -

FRIREEERLT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

19.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. A EEENRER
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARBTT

Cost of investment, unlisted ENRA - FELET 2,070 900

Share of post-acquisition results, DMEWBEER
net of dividends received (MBRBEWIE) 2,293 145

4,363 1,045
Place of
establishment
and principal Proportion of ownership
Name of entity place of business interest held by the Group  Principal activities
PR 37 it 25 T FEEFEN
BREEHE TREEHE BEERERLH TEXK
2016 2015
20165 2015%F
% %

BRTHAEEENERBERAR the PRC 60 60  Provision of
Ningbo Disai Hotel Property (note a) property
Services management services management
Company Limited” ("Ningbo Disai") services

BERTEEEENEREERAR i (Fiita) REMEEERRS
-5 3=E-3))

BRKHEEHERRAA the PRC 35 - Provision of real
Ningbo Yongdu Property Sales (note b) estate agency
Company Limited* ("Yongdu Sales") services

BERXBEEHEARAA i (PEEb)  REEHERIERY
(IkEBHE D)

*  The English name is for identification purpose * BN AEEMER -
only.
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19.INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

[continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

According to the Articles of Association of Ningbo
Disai, decisions on relevant activities require
unanimous consent and approval from the equity
holders. Therefore, Ningbo Disai is regarded as a
joint venture of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group acquired 35% equity interest of Yongdu
Sales through the acquisition of Zhejiang
Yongcheng. Details of acquisition are set out in
note 36(a). According to the Articles of Association
of Yongdu, decisions on relevant activities require
unanimous consent and approval from the equity
holders. Therefore, Yongdu Sales is regarded as a
joint venture of the Group.

Joint ventures of the Group are considered to be
immaterial and the financial information of the
joint ventures are individually immaterial.

iR e B R T A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

19. R DEWNES &)

Fi5E -

(a)

(b)

RBEFEREBENAREIE - BEEFRFRERLRE
HEAAN—RRABRIE - Bt - EBRABREAAR
SEMAERK -

HZE2016F12A31BIEFE - REBB BN K
AU B K HD 8 B B0 35% % 4E - W iE BB RIS SN I
36(a) - RIBAEMENARER  BEEBHNRER
TALESZHEAN—REERIE - Hit - X&PHE
WRAREENEGEDE -

AEE SRR AT BEAT BARIT &%
S A EOENMBARNLTER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire BTSRRI A
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

20.GOODWILL 20.FH 8
RMB’000
ARBTT
COST AND CARRYING VALUES RARREE
At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 MR2015F1 A1 K&
20154 12A31H 41
Arising on acquisitions of businesses through X% @ WS I E A 71 EBUER
acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36(a)) EHE(MEE36(a)) 89,142
At 31 December 2016 7201612 H31H 89,183

For the purpose of impairment testing, the
goodwill has been allocated to a group of
communities managed by the Group collectively
as the property management cash-generating
units (“Property Management CGU").

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015, management of the Group determined that
no impairment of goodwill should be recognised
of its Property Management CGU.

The recoverable amount of the Property
Management CGU has been determined based
on a value-in-use calculation. The calculation
uses cash flow projection based on financial
budgets approved by management covering
a 5-year period and at a discount rate of 16%
(2015: 15%]) per annum. The cash flows beyond
the five-year period are extrapolated using a
growth rate of 2% (2015: 2%).

Cash flow projections during the budget period
for the Property Management CGU are based
on management’s estimate of cash inflows/
outflows including revenue, operating expenses
and working capital requirements. The
assumptions and estimation are based on the
Property Management CGU past performance
and management’'s expectation of market
development. The management of the Group
believes that any reasonably possible change
in the key assumptions of the value-in-use
calculation would not cause the carrying amount
to exceed its recoverable amount.

RTETRENR  BEE S IEASEEEN—H
HE - BRESYMEEERSELEM([HREE
REELEM]) -

REE2016F K2015F12A31TBILFE - AEEH
EEEHETEREEERREABNERET
R ERE °

MEEBRSEASBMHITRE B REEHAER
AEET  ZAEFEARBEEEEMERERT
Bz M TEE R EF16% (20154  15%) 2 8KIR
RERZESRETEE - AFHEEZEESRET
FA2% (20154 : 2%) 2R RHEHE -

BENEMEEERCELEMNRSRETRAT)
AEREREEHRALRAMHNM[ - 2FKEE
BREFAXREEESTR - BRREMAERNDEE
BERCELENUMNBEREREEBEMSER L
B - AREEEERREAEENEEZNEER
RZEMAEREESH TS EHRRERBEATK
BlIEH o
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iR e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

21.INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21.BEE
Property
management
contracts
VMEEEERE
RMB’000
ARBTT
cosT 5%
At 1 January 2015 and 31 December 2015 M2015F1 18 X
2015412 A31H 280
Acquired on acquisitions of businesses EEg el EEPNGIVE 3 E S

through acquisition of subsidiaries &S (KM15E36(a))

(note 36(a)) 108,759
At 31 December 2016 R2016%F12H31H 109,039
AMORTISATION e
At 1 January 2015 201551418 135
Charge for the year FNEEHE 56
At 31 December 2015 72015512 H318 191
Charge for the year FREEH 2,559
At 31 December 2016 20165124318 2,750
CARRYING VALUES AREE
At 31 December 2016 72016124318 106,289
At 31 December 2015 72015512 H31H 89

The above intangible assets have finite useful T EEEENFRERARYLNESERAES
lives and are amortised on a straight-line basis +RHEREE -

over five to fifteen years.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

22.DEFERRED TAXATION 22 ERETIR
The following is the analysis of the deferred tax HIBERRE NEIEERIBELSRHSTHT ¢

balances for financial reporting purposes:

2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARET T

Deferred tax assets RIERIEE E 16,892 9,894
Deferred tax liabilities ELEFIEAE (29,312) -
(12,420) 9,894
The following are the major deferred tax asset REE2016F X2015F12 831 B It FEERH =
(Liabilities) recognised and movements thereon EREAERIEBLE(AB)REEFHNT
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and
2015:
Allowance
on doubtful Fair value Withholding
debts on change of tax on
trade investment Intangible undistributed
receivables  properties assets earnings Total
REZEYR
HERE REWEN AMEDE
EENEE AT ESE EBYEE EANENH st

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARBTR AR®TR ARET:R

At 1 January 2015 R2015F1A18 7,282 - - - 7,282
Credit to profit or loss TABR 2,612 - - - 2,612
At 31 December 2015 R2015F12A31H 9,894 - - - 9,894
Acquisitions of businesses BB E AR

through acquisition of BERES

subsidiaries (note 36(a)) (Bi5E36(a)) 4,887 536 (27,190 - (21,767)
Credit (charge] to profit or loss R Bz A(F1K) 1,59 (835) 626 (1,932) (547)
At 31 December 2016 R2016F12A31H 16,375 (299) (26,564) (1,932) (12,420)
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22.DEFERRED TAXATION /(continued)

At 31 December 2016, the Group has
unused tax losses of RMB65,652,000 (2015:
RMB6,974,000) available for offset against
future profits. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of the tax losses due to
the unpredictability of future profit streams.
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations
in the PRC, the unrecognised tax losses at the
end of the reporting period will expire in the
following years:

iR e B R T A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

22 ERERIIE (%)

R2016%12A318 - AEEBEARFAREBRA
R #65,652,0007C (20154 © AR#6,974,0007T)
A AR SR A o R R RFE AR R T AT TR
B - WEAHABBERTAELEHREE - 1R
BHBARRARESR - REHRNRERTIAER

BRTIIFERE -

2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

2019 20194 719 548
2020 20204 10,766 6,426
2021 20214 54,167 -
65,652 6,974

At 31 December 2016, the Group has deductible
temporary differences of RMB4,800,000 (2015:
RMB8,308,000] in respect of the impairment loss
on other receivables. No deferred tax asset has
been recognised in relation to such deductible
temporary difference as it is not probable that
taxable profit will be available against while
the deductible temporary differences can be
utilised.

M20165F12A318 » A& E B EHE b fE W F AR
EEBHATENERZ5E A A R4800,000T
(20154 : AR#8,308,0007T) ° A FERTHFIH
NRATREFA MR SE AT IR T S 258 - M B ZE
AR E R EERERELEHIBEE -
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iR e B R A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

23.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

23.8 5 Rk Hth BURRIR

2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T ARBTIT
Trade receivables B 5 W GIE 205,323 110,789
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B RERERE (45,950) (39,576)
Total trade receivables SN IE B 159,373 71,213
Other receivables: E U ROA
Deposits paid to utilities suppliers MAREEMEERN
SRR S 12,721 3,356
Advance to staffs mE IR 11,983 9,266
Prepayments SENE 20,627 13,151
Payment on behalf of community REMBEFFPAAAEE
residents to utilities suppliers MR 26,799 10,257
Consideration receivable on disposal HEENBARARY
of a subsidiary EWRE = 3,031
Other tax recoverable BN g EIR TR 1,179 2,186
Others HAih 4,305 1,982
77,614 43,229
Less: Allowance for doubtful debts o REREME (4,800) (8,308]
Total other receivables H b U IE B R 72,814 34,921
Total HRET 232,187 106,134

Trade receivables are mainly arisen from
property management services income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

[continued)

Property management services income from
providing property management services are
required to be settled by property owners
and property developers within 45 days upon

iR e B R T A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

23.EZREMEWTIE &)

EIRYEZERBANGFBMAEHLRLSANR
REREMXEERGAELENMXEERE K
A > KEMEEERRBOMEREERBGIWA—BRR
MEERMEZRBEHGFTBMERIOAE90

the issuance of demand note. The settlement
pattern of the property management services
income from property management services
are normally within 30 days to 90 days after the
issuance of demand note to the property owners
and property developers.

The following is an aged analysis of trade
receivables net of allowance for doubtful debts
presented based on the date of demand note,
which approximated the respective revenue
recognition dates:

HR#E

AT mizgicmmE B (BRAE R Woas #E 57 B B34
2NN E B RUGRIRBR R EENRE DN

2016 2015

20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR%ET T ARBTIT

0 to 30 days 0£30H 31,393 16,324
31 to 90 days 31290H 32,355 16,971
91 to 180 days 912180H 34,306 15,689
181 to 365 days 1812365 H 42,404 17,803
Over 1 year —F L E 18,915 4,426
159,373 71,213

Credit limits attributed to customers are
reviewed once a year.

In determining the recoverability of a trade
receivable from property management services,
the Group considers any change in the credit
quality of the trade receivable from the date
credit was initially granted up to the end of
the reporting period and no impairment is
considered necessary for those balances which
are neither past due nor impaired as they have
good repayment history with the Group.

EFPEREERBESFEZ R -

FEEE R B MR E IR RS B 5 M WSIA AT Y E 1
B AEEZEEMSRBEEAREEHREHMK
BEHRUBHENEEEEEREMNES YR AKH
AR S EBHTRRE R EAEEE RIFER
LBV AERRFTHRIRUE
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= & 23
irE B R MR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE2016&F 12331 L FE

23.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23.E5 R HMEWIRIE &)

[continued)

For those trade receivables that are past due
in each residential communities managed
by the Group, the Group has considered the
aging, credit profile including default or delay
in payments, settlement records and cash
collections post year end in each residential
communities, impairment allowance is provided
mainly to certain communities located in
Eastern and Central region and Southern Region
of which the property management services are
provided. In the opinion of the management of
the Group, necessary impairment for doubtful
debts has been made in respect of the unsettled
balances of trade receivables.

Included in the Group's trade receivable balance
are receivables with aggregate carrying amount
of RMB118,026,000 (2015: RMB47,623,000] at
31 December 2016, which are past due as at the
end of the reporting period for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Aging of past due but not impaired
trade receivables

PRAREEREZ REEHEEAMZZFE SRR
REME - ARECEEREEHR KR - F8
[Est - BREERSERER - BENRERFERE
BIRE  DEBRURER - FhREMBEER
HYREERGOE THRFRRERE - AKE
EEERRERARENE B BURREHFTIRLBA
RERRIE °

R2016F12A31H  @EEEAARE
118,026,0007C (20154 + AR#¥47,623,00070) &Y
FEWERREFTARNEEE ZRINGIEL R - L5
BRI RS AR mE] - MASEY AR EERE
ESIEIEL S - AEEVERZSESHFETME
o

BB 30 SR E MY B 5 e RE R i

2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBFT

0 to 90 days 0E90H 22,401 9,705
91 to 180 days 91%180H 34,306 15,689
181 to 365 days 1815 365H 42,404 17,803
Over 1 year —F LA 18,915 4,426

118,026 47,623
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fre B TSR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ 201651283 1A LEE

23.TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 23.ES5 R HMEWRIRIE &)

[continued)

Movement in the allowance B RHMWEWGRERREENES
for doubtful trade and other
receivables
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTTT

Balance at the beginning of the year FH S 47,884 37,435
Allowance for doubtful debts recognised T HRRIERRE 13,434 13,785
Amount written off as uncollectible s A ER W B 2 IR (10,568) (3,336)
Balance at the end of the year FRE 50,750 47,884
At 31 December 2016, included in the allowance R2016F 12 A318 » 24562 A AR #50,750,000
for doubtful receivables are individually JC(2015%F + ARM47,884,00070) M{ERIERER
impaired trade and other receivables with an S REAEBRIBC T A YRR RERE - 28
aggregate balance of RMB50,750,000 (2015: ZERKESRNEERSL @ ZSEARTREEEIRK
RMBA47,884,000). With reference to the credit Bl o REBEWESZ S SRR EAERR -

profile of these receivables, these balances may
not be recoverable. The Group does not hold any
collateral over these balances.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

24.AMOUNT DUE FROM A RELATED
PARTY

Particulars of amount due from a related party
are as follows:

Name of related party

FARE T B8

Name of related party

STATEMENTS

24. BN — B B EE 75 B

FE M — 2 BARE 7 BUARFIB 0T ¢

BARE S B8

Maximum
amount
outstanding
during the year
ended
31 December
2016
BZE20164F
12A31H
LFFER
EaRISH

2016
2016%F
RMB’000
ARET R

2016
20164
RMB’000
ARET T

2015
20154
RMB’000
AREF T

BEMREEREM
ERRAA
(MM )

Guangzhou Xunhua
Electric Technology
Company Limited
(“Guangzhou Xunhua”)

178 178

Guangzhou Xunhua is established in the PRC
which in engaged in provision of electric
lightening services. It is controlled by Mr.
Liu Jian, the director and shareholder of the
Company.

The amount due from Guangzhou Xunhua is
non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-free and
settled during the year.

25.AMOUNTS DUE FROM NON-
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS OF
SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts are non-trade nature, unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

26.FINANCIAL ASSETS DESIGNATED

AS AT FVTPL

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the
Group has entered into structured deposit
contracts amounting to RMB2,500,000 with
banks and acquired a structured deposit
amounting to RMB50,000 through acquisition of
Zhejiang Yongcheng. The principal amount was
guaranteed but the return was not guaranteed by
the bank. The contract has been classified as at
financial assets designated as at FVTPL on initial
recognition. The expected return rate stated
in the contract ranged from 1.7% to 3.7% per
annum for the year ended 31 December 2016.

In the opinion of the management of the Group,
the fair value of the structured deposit at 31
December 2016 approximated their principal
amount.

27.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

The Group collects monies from certain
community residents to establish daily repair
and maintenance funds in accordance with
the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC.
All of the monies collected are required to
be kept in designated bank accounts under
the name of the relevant subsidiaries of the
Group although the monies collected and
the related interest income belong to the
community residents. Pursuant to the property
management agreements between the Group
and the community residents the withdrawal and
use of the funds is subject to approval by the
community residents. As the monies maintained
for daily repair and maintenance funds are not
controlled by the Group, they are not recognised
as bank balances of the Group. As at 31
December 2016, RMB9,321,000 (2015: nil) are
kept in daily repair and maintenance funds on
behalf of the community residents.

=
irat

upvE ey

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

26.

27.

EERRAFEFARENESRMEE

HZE2016F12A3181EFE - AEBEBITAI L
EBUEFEREL  BEARE?2500,0005T @ WiE
BUTEE AT T K A IS 4 B ME T SR A R #550,0007T ©
FITRBALBENMRELR %A HRVBHER
KoBEAREARATEFABENERHEE - &
DTEE 2016512 A31 8 IEFE &5 T8 B R
RN FEFF1.7%E3.7% °

AEFEERERS  HHEMFHR2016F 12431
ARAFEEEARSREER -

EEFRTERRBRITEHGREAS

AEBREBEEBRERAULANRNE THRHNER
WEBFURTBFHEBREES - BEATRER
REBERNEWABLEERE - WATWERER
BAFENAEEEEMBARTS THWETRITE
F o REAEERTREPII I NYESENZ
MR EEESAEMLRERILE - BRAE
EEATHEARABHIEREESCTENENR i)
BRBRTHBEAEENIRITES - B Z=2016
F12H318 - AEEREHEERRE ATH#E
MREESHARE 321,0007T (20154 : ) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e B R A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

27.PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND 27.C B BBRITERRBITEHRRIERE€»®)

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

[continued)

The bank deposits as at 31 December 2015
amounting to RMB62,834,000 were pledged to
banks to secure the short-term banking facilities
granted to the Group. The deposits has been
released in September 2016 upon the repayment
of bank borrowings.

Pledged bank deposits and bank balances
carry interest at prevailing market interest
rates which range from 0.01% to 1.5% (2015:
0.01% to 1.5%) per annum for the year ended 31
December 2016.

The pledged bank deposits and bank balances
and cash denominated in original currency are
as follows:

2015128318 AEBEZHEBARE
62,834,000 HSRTTIF R TERTT - MERE TAK
BrEHRTRE - AEERER2016FIAEE
RITRERRESHRE -

HE2016F12ANBLEEFE  SBRRITHERK
FRITHBIBRITMBN XL - MXNFEF
0.01%%1.5%(2015%F : 0.01%%1.5%) °

NRAEESEN D IMIFIRITFERRIBITES LI
LW

2016 2015
20164 20154

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBFIT

RMB AR 243,008 165,849
usD = 62,242 59,517
HK$ BT 137,223 286,575
442,473 511,941
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

28.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28.E5 R HMENRIE
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARETT

Trade payables B 5N FIE 36,575 25,139
Other payables: HAtbfETFRIE -
Receipts on behalf of community REFAERFEP B
residents 81,864 32,044
Receipts in advances B FRTE 78,323 36,854
Deposits received (note) m s AU ED) 51,917 29,252
Accrued staff costs fEEH B TR 79,859 15,142
Accrued listing expenses FERT LAY = 10,252
Contingent considerations RS AR(E
payable (note 33) (PFEE33) 22,101 -
Other tax payables H b L TE 8,502 769
Others Hih 9,652 5,243
Total other payables H b e B RS 332,218 129,556
Total #Er 368,793 154,695
Note:The balances represented the deposits 5T B R E RN B R AR E P %
paid by the community residents during the & e

period when their relevant property is under
refurbishment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

28.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 28.EZ R HMEMRIE (2)
[continued)
The credit period granted by suppliers to the HEFERAEERENEERNFIEE90H - %
Group ranges from 3 days to 90 days. The TARSHEHKRIRBEHEENWNE HENIE
following is an aged analysis of trade payables HIBRE AT ¢

presented based on the invoice date at the end of
each reporting period:

2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBETT

0 to 60 days 0% 60H 31,369 22,731
61 to 180 days 61£180H 2,738 1,530
181 to 365 days 181%£365H 1,252 416
Over 1 year 16 A 1,216 462

36,575 25,139

29. AMOUNT DUE TO A JOINT VENTURE 29. B —EEELENRE

The amount is non-trade nature, unsecured, ZFENBIIEZMNE BEA R EREKREXK
interest-free and repayable on demand. Eig o

30. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 30.FE{ i B A T 1= R IR R K18
SHAREHOLDERS OF SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts are non-trade nature, unsecured, BB IEE HME  EIEE - £ ENARENR
interest-free and repayable on demand. EiE -
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iR e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

31.BORROWINGS 31.fERK
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARBT T
Unsecured bank borrowings IR TR 126,618 9,640
Secured bank borrowings BIRFIRITER 2,330 20,000
128,948 29,640
Variable-rate borrowings FEER 103,618 29,640
Fixed-rate borrowings EEER 25,330 -
128,948 29,640
Carrying amount payable: JERTRRTEIE -
Within one year —FR 45,524 22,361
More than one year, but not exceeding BB —F - BETBBMF
two years 20,450 2,361
More than two years, but not exceeding BB - B TBBEE
five years 62,974 4,918
128,948 29,640
Less: Amount due within one year B ORBAEE TR —
shown under current liability FREENSE (45,524) (22,361)
Amount due after one year —FEI NS 83,424 7,279

TRERKEEERAT 183

2016 F£3§




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e B R A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

31.BORROWINGS (continued) 3. &M &)
As at 31 December 2016, all borrowings are M2016F12A31H » TEEREUAREE -
denominated in RMB except that unsecured MEAFE#103,618,0007T (20154 @ ) 7 MK IPE
borrowings amounting to RMB103,618,000 FTUAETTEHERR IS ©

(2015: Nil) are denominated in HK$.

The ranges of effective interest rates (equal REFBEZTNERMNEREE (HERETHME) A
to contracted interest rates) on the Group's T
borrowings are as follows:

2016 2015
20165 20154
Fixed-rate bank borrowings EEMER 4.35% to N/A
5.85% per
annum
BF4.35% NEH
£5.85%
Variable-rate borrowings FEEER
Benchmark borrowing rate of the R AR MBI EFRE%E N/A +0.23% to
People’s Republic of China F| =& +0.86% per
annum
T8 A BFE+0.23%
£+0.86%
Hong Kong Inter-Bank Offered Rate BRRITRERFEX + 1.5% per N/A
("Offered Rate”) (TRIZHFEE]) annum
BF+1.5% NE M
Bank borrowings of RMB2,330,000 (2015: RITEE AR 2330,0007T (20154 : AR
RMB20,000,000) have been secured by assets as 20,000,00070) E R EEEER - RWE17R27AT
disclosed in note 17 and 27, respectively. DRI E o
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32.FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

DESIGNATED AS AT FVTPL

On 3 February 2015, Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo,
Mr. Liang Bing, Mr. Long Weimin, the Company
and Qichang, the immediate and ultimate
holding company of the Company have, among
others, entered into share purchase agreements
and shareholders’ agreement (“Shareholders’
Agreement”), with two independent third
parties, namely, Central Oscar Holdings Limited
(“Central Oscar”) and E/BEHKEEERF
O (BR&ER) " E8EX” which subsequently
designated as Decision Holdings Limited
(“Decision Holdings”), being a wholly-owned
subsidiary of /&E#), to enter into a novation
agreement on 17 April 2015 to take up all the
rights and obligations of E/81E# under the
share purchase agreement. Pursuant to these
agreements, the Company agreed to issue and
allot to Central Oscar and Decision Holdings,
and Central Oscar and Decision Holdings agreed
to subscribe for 150 and 90 ordinary shares
(the "Central Oscar and Decision Holdings
Subscription Shares”), representing 15% and
9% equity interests in the enlarged share capital
of the Company with subscription price of
UsD20,000,000 and USD12,000,000 respectively
and the net proceeds of the above subscription
are equivalent to RMB193,194,000. The shares
were issued on 17 April 2015.

Pursuant to the Shareholders’ Agreement,
the Company has granted an option (the “Put
Option”] to each of Central Oscar and Decision
Holdings that in the event that an initial public
offering of the shares of the Company as set out
in the Shareholders’ Agreement (the “Qualified
IPO”) does not complete within five years from
the date of 17 April 2015 (i.e. 16 April 2020, the
Maturity Date) or the occurrence of an early
put option triggering event as stipulated in
the Shareholders’” Agreement, Central Oscar
and Decision Holdings will have the option
requiring Qichang to purchase all (but not
some] the Central Oscar and Decision Holdings
Subscription Shares then held by Central Oscar
and Decision Holdings at the USD amount equal
to the sum of the subscription amount paid by
Central Oscar and Decision Holdings plus a
return calculated at the rate of 10% per annum
minus any dividends or distribution received by
Central Oscar and Decision Holdings. Such put
option will lapse upon the closing of the Qualified
IPO.

Re M ERAMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

NREERBELAFEFABENEHEE

R2015F2H3H » BREE  RELXLE - RE%
A ERREE  ARAINME(BRARRINERE
REAEEIR AT EEMZ B 8 = J Central Oscar
Holdings Limited ([ Central Oscar|) & E/818%#
BEBBERL(ARER) ([ LBE®E )T (H
hEE) BRI E kR R B (TR ] - B8
1B E 12 75 & H 2 & {1 & 2 7 Decision Holdings
Limited ([ Decision Holdings ])/A20154 8178
FIVERRE  NARBLEEEARERBZTH
—RENREE - BREZEHE - AAFREEM
Central OscarXDecision HoldingsZ#1T &2 E -
ifl Central Oscar & Decision Holdings [A & % 5l
12 72 8% 8 20,000,000 3 7T 212,000,000 7T * R
BE150 2 90f% & 3@ A% ([ Central Oscar & Decision
HoldingsREEM (D 1) (9 BIh AR R B B AR A
15% K 9%Hess ) - FulRAE B IR PG SR IEF AR
EMAREE193,194,0007T © ZE R 2015F 4
RA17TB %17 -

BIER R - 227 5 BlMA Central Oscar &
Decision Holdings# i Bt ([ 30 BA%E L) - R
RARDO BB ARES (WRRGERAE [ &
BERAFEE DIUEARE2015F4A17THE Bk
AFERNTEH(BI2020F4 5168 - BIEIEHY) » 5%
RO RPHEBERRBENGTANEHF
B Central Oscar & Decision Holdings # /& i 1%
HERMEHE ZFRACentral Oscar & Decision
Holdings#E 8 2 8 (M 3E&f 9 ) Central Oscar &
Decision HoldingsR#ERRH - I LAFEZE 7 Central
Oscar M Decision HoldingsE M RBAHNFE TS
BT - BINEESF10%T 8 B R £ Central
Oscar & Decision Holdings U4 BX &9 {F fa] f% B 5k 5
ko BEARLIEBREERBERAAAREERE
ESVE
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irE MG EmRRM R
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

32.FINANCIAL LIABILITIES NREEARATFEFTABEZNEHERS

DESIGNATED AS AT FVTPL (continued)

Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr. Liang Bing, Mr.
Long Weimin, the directors and shareholders
of the Company, and certain companies
incorporated in the BVI which are holding
the entire equity interest of Qichang, certain
subsidiaries of the Company including Zhong
Ao Holdings, Zhong Ao HK, Guangdong Zhong
Ao, Guangzhou Baijin Guanjia Hotel Property
Management Company Limited, Hangzhou
Huachang Property Management Company
Limited (“Hangzhou Huachang”), Hangzhou
Lvdu Hubin Garden Property Services Company
Limited ("Hangzhou Lvdu”), Guangzhou Daojia
and Guangzhou Maiyue and the joint venture of
the Group including Ningbo Disai are jointly and
severally liable with Qichang for the obligations
of Qichang.

As the Group’s obligation to repay to Central
Oscar and Decision Holdings is contingent on
event which is outside control of the Group and
the Group does not have unconditional right to
avoid making payment when they exercise such
right in future, the Company has presented
the Central Oscar and Decision Holdings
Subscription Shares with the Put Option as a
whole as financial liabilities designated as at
FVTPL as at initial recognition date.

On 29 June 2015, Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo,
Mr. Liang Bing, Mr. Long Weimin, the Company
and Qichang have, among others, entered
into amendment to Shareholders” Agreement
(“Amendment”) with Central Oscar and Decision
Holdings. Pursuant to the Amendment, the
Company and certain subsidiaries and the joint
venture of the Group as set out above were
no longer jointly or severally liable for the
obligations of Qichang which were originally
required according to the Shareholders’
Agreement. As a result, the Central Oscar
and Decision Holdings Subscription Shares
which initially classified as financial liabilities
designated as at FVTPL of the Group were
then reclassified to the equity of the Company
at the fair value on 29 June 2015 amounting
to RMB198,980,000. The change of the fair
value of financial liabilities designated as at
FVTPL between initial recognition date and 29
June 2015 amounting to RMB6,343,000 was
recognised in profit or loss during the year
ended 31 December 2015.

(%)

ARBEERBRBIEELE RELL  REE
£BRARSLE  URETRRERZESEM
R BFRERE  ARAETHEAR(BREHR
B hRES  BERTR BMNASEFAL
MEERBRIF MMNESYEEEARAA
(THMES L) ~ N EHBEIERD KRB HR
REN(THIHARER ) - BEMNEIR R BEMEM) 22
BN DR ARASENAECX(BREERE
{%) CERRAREREEMERMENEAER
o

MR AL E [ Central Oscar &Decision Holdings
BROEASETAESBEZEGUIINNEMHME - M
EREFERITERBENS RSB EEEGG
RN - WARBERVIAHER B B Central
OscarXDecision HoldingsiREERL (9 & 32 h HR 28
BEJAEERRATVEFABRRNEREE -

R2015F6 A298 » BiEk 4 - REL LT - BRE
£ BAERLAE  KARIMENEECentral Oscar
K Decision Holdings#] 32 (H A8 1E) IR 3R &% &Y
BT (TMEET]) o n b XAt - RIEIEET - A A
MAEENETHBAR RZAEEMEINBREL
R R AR ERI RS NEGEEST -
Ei - 7A2015F 6 A29H - REB WA D EAIETE
BIEAFEFAEZNESBAEMCentral Oscar
N Decision HoldingsRIER D HE EMEE R F
BEOBEARNQRELZS  ©8ABARK198,980,000
I ° HE2015F12A318 » EH5EAIZAFETA
BENemaERVIRER B R201596 5298
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33.0THER LONG-TERM PAYABLE

On 26 July 2016, Zhong Ao Home Investment
Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company entered into an equity transfer
agreement and a joint venture agreement
(the “Agreements”) with ten individuals (the
“Vendors”) being the equity holders of Zhejiang
Yongcheng, in relation to the acquisition of 70%
equity interests in Zhejiang Yongcheng at an
aggregate consideration of RMB210,000,000. The
acquisition was completed on 11 October 2016
and Zhejiang Yongcheng became a subsidiary
of the Company thereafter. Details of the
acquisition mentioned above are set out in note
36(al.

Pursuant to the Agreements, the Group
will acquire from the Vendors remaining
30% non-controlling equity interests in
Zhejiang Yongcheng in four tranches by year
2020. The considerations (the “Contingent
Considerations”) are contingent and will
be adjusted based on the future financial
performance of the Zhejiang Yongcheng and
capped at RMB22,500,000 for each tranche.
The management of the Group have reviewed
the assumptions and profit projections at
the end of the reporting period and estimate
that the settlement amount of the Contingent
Considerations to be RMB22,500,000 for each
tranche. The variability in relation to acquisition
of remaining 30% non-controlling equity
interests in Zhejiang Yongcheng at Contingent
Consideration is treated as derivative financial
instruments. The management of the Group
consider that the fair value of the aforesaid
derivative financial instruments is insignificant
on initial recognition and 31 December 2016.

On initial recognition, the obligation in relation to
the Contingent Considerations was recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
at fair value of RMB80,630,000 by discounting the
estimated settlement amounts to their present
value at an effective interest rate of 5.51% per
annum as at 11 October 2016, with a corresponding
debit to the special reserve.

The Group recognised imputed interest of
RMB1,088,000 for the year ended 31 December
2016 in respect of the obligation in relation to the
Contingent Considerations. As at 31 December
2016, included in the obligation in relation to
the Contingent Considerations, the amount
of RMB22,101,000, which is due within one
year, is classified as current liabilities and the
remaining balance of RMB59,617,000, which is
due after one year, is classified as non-current
liabilities.

Re M ERAMEE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

.HMRHIENRE

R2016F7H26H » KRR Z2ENBRAAFEE
REEBRARETZENAL(IES ) (A
IXKMEREEB A LR EEERELEE
wE(TZEHE]) NEEEEAREBARE
210,000,000 7T Y BE 7T sk BR 70% A% 4 » Uk B8 =18
R2016F 10 A1 BT » M EBIT KK AR
”D\[ﬂ]E’JWE@\ﬂ o FIMINEEEBA B E MW
36(a) °

BIEZZWE - NEB N 2020F 512 UL XA
F 7 UEBE AT ok Ak 82 T #930% R4 I AE - R (B
(THARREBBHRAMEG - BRBE T KK A
KEAFSRIDARE X ERAAR22,500,000
TC o AEBEEEBE N RS BREMBR L EFTE
Bl WEHF RO IARBENSEEAA
[R#22,500,0007T ° FLIRSAAMIE BB T ok A &R
T30%IEIERARE 2 AT TIERITE SR T AR
o KREBEEBRARUITES R T ERVIEHE
ZRA20165FE12A31B 2 A EMT B8 -

RUIFHERE - BRAAKENETEAFEAR
#80,630,000TT AR & M IR KRR - T AR
72016510 A11 B 8 BEREF K5.51% M85 4
SRR EHRE - YR HIREEE LR -

HE2016F12A3MHIEFE - AEBRAARKE
ETRERE ST E ARY1,088,0007T ° 20164
12A31H » AAREBEETHAERN —FRINHOR
THARM22101,000nEARSAR - R—F%
g,ﬁﬁﬁ’\]ﬁ%%ﬁ/\ﬁ?ﬁgw,m7,00077:5\”%;@2%3'5%@3%

o
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iR e B R A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

34.SHARE CAPITAL 34. 87K
Number Nominal
of shares value
BAEE H{E
Notes HK$'000
P 5T FET
Ordinary shares of SARMEED.01E T
HK$0.01 each B E i
Authorised: SEE
On the date of incorporation AT B Ef 38,000,000 380
Increase on 5 November 2015 R2015F11A5BE M  (a) 7,962,000,000 79,620
At 31 December 2015 and 2016 720154 220165
128318 8,000,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRHBE:
On the date of incorporation ReEMA sz B HA (b) 100 -
Issue new shares to Pre-IPO MEXAFREERR
investors BEBRITHRG (c) 240 -
Issue new shares to Qichang MRS BT (d) 660 -
Issue of new shares upon initial R & XA &3
public offering 1T % (e) 200,000,000 2,000
Capitalisation issue B AR EAT (f) 599,999,000 6,000
At 31 December 2015 72015512 A31H 800,000,000 8,000
Shares repurchased and % 157 B [B] B 5 85
cancelled (g) (5,456,000) (55)
At 31 December 2016 2016512 A31H 794,544,000 7,945
Amount
&5
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Shown in the consolidated financial statements RGREHEHRRED
At 31 December 2015 M2015%12A31H 6,594
At 31 December 2016 R2016%F12A31H 6,549
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34.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e

On 5 November 2015, the authorised share capital
of the Company increased from HK$380,000 to
HK$80,000,000 by the creation of an additional
7,962,000,000 shares.

At the date of incorporation, 100 shares of
HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued to Qichang
at par.

As set out in note 32 above, the Company agreed
to issue and allot to Central Oscar and Decision
Holdings, and Central Oscar and Decision
Holdings agreed to subscribe for 150 and 90
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 in the Company
with a subscription price of USD20,000,000 and
USD12,000,000 respectively on 3 February 2015.
Such shares were accounted for as financial
liabilities designated as at FVTPL pursuant to the
terms of the instruments as at initial recognition
date.

Pursuant to the Amendment mentioned in note 32,
Central Oscar and Decision Holdings Subscription
Shares were reclassified from financial liability
designated as at FVTPL to equity of the Company
as at 29 June 2015 and the difference between
the par value and fair value of Central Oscar and
Decision Holdings Subscription Shares were
included in the share premium of the Company.

On 17 April 2015, 660 additional shares of HK$0.01
each of the Company were further allotted and
issued to Qichang at par.

On 25 November 2015, 200,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each of the Company were
issued at a price of HK$1.88 each by way of
global offering. On the same date, the Company’s
shares were listed on the SEHK. The proceeds
of HK$2,000,000 (equivalent to RMB1,649,000)
representing the par value of the shares of
the Company, were credited to the Company’s
share capital. The remaining proceeds of
HK$374,000,000 (equivalent to RMB308,251,000),
before share issue expenses, were credited to
share premium account.

VPN

ERa BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

4. 7A (%)
st -

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

72015 11 A5 H @38 & H) 18 3% 7,962,000,000
AR A& ) - B A A B A IR 7K F2 380,000 % s 3 i =
80,000,000 7T °

Rz BH - 1000 B AREE0.01B TR DB IZ
HEREREITTRE -

BN eI FE32FTEL - R2015F2A3H - ARFRE
M Central Oscar & Decision Holdings® 77 & Al 2 -« if
Central Oscar M Decision Holdings B &/ BliZ R IEE
20,000,000 7t 512,000,000 7 * 7R A 2 7150 &
90AREIE0.01/E TR iR - BRAMRGN BN UIH R B
HRBETENGRIIBRRIETE RRATEFABRNE
REE -

MR b SCHE EE32 P A9 £ T - 7R 2015F 6 A29H -
Central Oscar & Decision Holdings iR A% 17 B 15 7€ &
BRATEFABRNERABENDOBERNARIARE
% * Central Oscar K& Decision HoldingssR 8 M%7 A E
BERAFEZBNEETARTRRRMNEELR -

201564 178 « NAF 660 FREEC.01ETH
FINR D EHE —PIREERERFEITTRE -

2015411 258 » 72 &) 200,000,000 f% & f% @ (&
0.0 LK E BRI ERIEEH X UFK1.888TLH
BT -RAB  NARMNBRMRERAM LT - HE
AN B %19 EE /Y T 5 30E 2,000,00058 7T (FEE R
AR#1,649,00070) 5t AR R BIRAR o BrIR 10 21T
2 BTEY 8T AT 18 5K I8 374,000,00058 Tt (HEE R AR
308,251,0007T) 5T AR5 B AR ©

FRIREEERLT
2016 F£3§
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VPN

aRE BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE2016&F 12331 L FE

34.SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

4.7 (%)

(f) Pursuant to the written resolutions passed () RIEAQRMARER2015F11 BA5HBBHEE RS
by all shareholders of the Company dated 5 Z A RNEEEEREREKATRMEEERERARATR
November 2015, the directors of the Company ERIRBERITIROMEER%  BAATRM HEE
were authorised to capitalise HK$6,000,000 7 HEBR X EE6,000,0005 T (FHZE N AR 4,945,0007T)
(equivalent to RMB4,945,000) standing to the BFRER - BB FEZE FIBEEEST599,999,0000%
credit of the share premium account of the FREEOVETHANT TBAY « UIEARDFIRE %
Company by applying such sum in paying up e 0 46 SR B 2 51| AN B ISCER 4 1 0 B BR I 1 S5 B B A AR
in full at par of 599,999,000 ordinary shares of NEEIREE P SRR EE R 39T o AATIHERIRBER
HK$0.01 each of the Company for allotment and 2015411 A25H 526K ©
issue to the shareholders of the Company on
the register of members of the Company as at
the close of business in proportion to their then
existing respective shareholdings in the Company,
conditional on the share premium account of the
Company being credited as a result of the issue
of shares by the Company pursuant to the global
offering. The Company’s global offering was
completed on 25 November 2015.

(g) During the year ended 31 December 2016, lg) MEE2016F12A3NBILFERE B H6E &FH

5,456,000 shares were repurchased and cancelled
and other 372,000 shares were repurchased but
not yet cancelled and were recognised as treasury
shares at 31 December 2016, which have been
cancelled in January 2017.

During the year, the Company repurchased its
own shares through the SEHK as follows:

5,456,000/% 8% 15 - R E372,0000 0% 17 2 B8 BB i K 5
SHAW 2016 F 12 A3 BERBEFR D « ZFEFK
PER2017F1 A7EH -

FR - ARRIEBEEHIMBEEASWL B - &
BT

HK$0.01 each Aggregate
Month of of the No. of ordinary consideration
repurchased Company price per share paid
ANEBREE
0.01ETH
BENAH BER SREBROHER ERNRELE
Highest Lowest
&S BIE
HK$ HK$ HK$
August 2016 1,442,000 1.17 1.10 1,630,820
20168
September 2016 4,014,000 1.29 1.1 4,880,440
2016597
November 2016 298,000 1.22 1.14 357,760
20165118
December 2016 74,000 1.24 1.19 89,440
2016F128
5,828,000 6,958,460
Equivalent to RMB EEARE 5,995,000
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fre B TSR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ 201651283 1A LEE

35.SHARE OPTIONS 35. (8 R
(a) The Company - Pre-1PO Share (Q)AAT—BR A MBEABRES
Option Scheme gl

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
("Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a
resolution passed by the Company on 20
April 2015 for the purposes of providing
incentives to directors and eligible
employees of the Group, and will expire on
17 April 2021. Under the Scheme, the board
of directors of the Company is authorised to
grant options to the directors and eligible
employees to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

Details of the share options granted under
Scheme is as follows:

BRAFEEAEIRETEI([F8)) iR E
AAFIR2015F4 20 B BBHIRERZHEW
NAAEBHNEERAERESRMEEAE
B - WER2021 54 17 8w - IRt E
ARRIEESERERTESRAEKERR
Bt - EBZEALRBAQRRD -

RIBT B DB FELT

Exercise price

Category of grantees Date of grant per share Vesting period Exercisable period
ARAER Rt A8 BRITEE BES AT T

Directors 20 April 2015 HK$1.72 20/4/2015 - 30/6/2016  1/7/2016 - 17/4/2021
ok 201554 H20R 1.72% 7T 20/4/2015 - 30/6/2017  1/7/2017 - 17/4/2021
20/4/2015 - 30/6/2018  1/7/2018 - 17/4/2021

Employees 20 April 2015 HK$1.72 20/4/2015 - 30/6/2016  1/7/2016 - 17/4/2021
EE 201554 H20R 1.72% 7T 20/4/2015 - 30/6/2017  1/7/2017 - 17/4/2021
20/4/2015 - 30/6/2018  1/7/2018 - 17/4/2021

10 July 2015 HK$1.72 10/7/2015 - 30/6/2016  1/7/2016 - 17/4/2021

2015%7H 108 1.72% 7T 10/7/2015 - 30/6/2017 ~ 1/7/2017 - 17/4/2021

1 1 1

10/7/2015 - 30/6/2018  1/7/2018 - 17/4/202
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ire RN
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

35.SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 35. 0B IR ()
(a) The Company - Pre-IP0 Share Q) RAAT—BXR A HBEABRES
Option Scheme (continued) g =)
The following table discloses movements TEREENAFEREZNEE A WERE
of share options held by directors and ZH) -

employees during the year:

Granted Outstanding

Outstanding during Outstanding at Lapsed at31

Category of at 1 January the year 31 December during  December
grantees Date of grant Vesting period 2015 2015 2015 the year 2016
20155 20155 #2016

AEA 1R18 20155 12A318 £ 12A318
£5 RHES BES HAATE BRE  HATE BAR  HARR
‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000

) T T T T

Directors 20 April 2015 20/4/2015 - 30/6/2016 - 15,695 15,695 - 15,695
E% 201564 A208 20/4/2015 - 30/6/2017 - 8,688 8,688 - 8,688
20/4/2015 - 30/6/2018 - 917 917 - 917

- 25,300 25,300 - 25,300

Employees 20 April 2015 20/4/2015 - 30/6/2016 - 10,211 10,211 (4.700) 551
&8 201564 A208 20/4/2015 - 30/6/2017 - 9,894 9,894 (5818) 4,076
20/4/2015 - 30/6/2018 - 11,314 11,314 (1,848) 9,486

10 July 2015 10/7/2015 - 30/6/2016 - 6,841 6,841 (2,856) 3,985

2015474108 10/7/2015 - 30/6/2017 - 7,682 7,682 (3,750) 3932

10/7/2015 - 30/6/2018 - 8,758 8,758 (2,482) 6,276

- 54,700 54,700 (21,454) 33,246

Total - 80,000 80,000 (21,454) 58546
@it
Exercisable at the end

of the year - 25,191
RERT T
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ 201651283 1A LEE

35.SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 35.[BRE )
(a) The Company - Pre-IPO Share (Q)ARAR—BRAFRBRENBRES
Option Scheme (continued) gl @

Binomial Option Pricing Model had been
used to estimate the fair value of the options
at the respective grant dates. The estimated
fair value of the options granted on 20 April
2015 and 10 July 2015 is RMB22,502,000 and
RMB18,697,000, respectively. The variables

BREDRAZENEEEENGTENS
BEBHNATE - BERHEBRENR2015F4
RA208 &2015F7 10 AMEEATEDRIA
AR#22,502,0007T & AR #18,697,0007T °
STEERENATERFERANEERNER T
BERAREREREGTET - BRENE

BEEETIERRNEHMNE - ZEANE
ABBIT

o

and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based
on the management of the Company’s best
estimate. The value of an option varies with
different variables of certain subjective
assumptions. The inputs into the model are

as follows:

20 April 2015 10 July 2015

201548208 2015F7AH10H

Underlying share price EE g HK$1.7287C  HK$2.27%7T
Exercise price TEE HK$1.72/87C  HK$1.728 7T
Expected volatility TEHRR IR 35.60% 42.01%
Expected life TEHA R A 5 yearstF 5 years®F
Risk-free rate 32 [ g ) 2R 0.98% 1.21%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B & 1.60% 1.21%

HE2016F12A3MBIEFE - AEBERARAF
R B AR T RR 48 S A R #68,345,0007T (2015
£ AR¥14,630,0007T) °

The Group recognised the total expense of
RMB8,345,000 (2015: RMB14,630,000]) for the
year ended 31 December 2016 in relation to
share options granted by the Company.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

35.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(b) A subsidiary of the Company

35. R ()
(b) R AT —KHEL T

On 17 July 2015, Hangzhou Yidao, a
subsidiary of the Company which is
principally engaged in the provision of
software and information technology
services, Guangdong Zhong Ao, the
immediate holding company of Hangzhou
Yidao, and Mr. Luo Tao, the representative
of the employees of Hangzhou Yidao entered
into an agreement ("Equity incentive -
Hangzhou Yidao Agreement”). Pursuant
to the Equity incentive - Hangzhou Yidao
Agreement, up to 33% equity interest of
Hangzhou Yidao will be transferred to
the employees of Hangzhou Yidao (“Yidao
Employees”) who are responsible for the
development and operation of Hangzhou
Yidao at nil consideration by 30 April 2018
upon satisfaction of certain performance
targets of Hangzhou Yidao. On or before
30 April 2019, the Yidao Employees have
the right to require Guangdong Zhong Ao
to repurchase all of the equity interests in
Hangzhou Yidao that they received pursuant
to the Equity incentive - Hangzhou Yidao
Agreement at a total cash consideration of
RMB22,000,000.

This share-based payment transaction with
cash alternative at the option of grantees
is a compound financial instrument, that
included a cash-settled component and an
equity-settled component.

R2015F 78178 - FUNZER (KR BIRH B
AE - FERERERFLREMBRHERE)
EBRFR(MMNEINNEEIERAR) RESE
EMMNEZEIMEBRE)FTH (IR
B—mNZ 25 ) o RIEREZE—MNE
Bl ERMMNERETERBEZ > MM
S H = E33% M ARG 2018F 4 A30B BT
TREERZEENMNEINNHREREENMN
MNEEEE(TZEEE]) - K2019F4A308
H2H SHESEHERERPRBELHR
B RSB — N E B s W BB A N E EI A
2ERE - MR BREAARE22,000,000
5o

ERARBRSBENBEOHNARZREAS
MIE ERASEESY LEaEERS)
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iR e B R T A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

35.SHARE OPTIONS (continued)
(b) A subsidiary of the Company

[continued)

Details of the share-based payment
arrangement under Equity incentive -
Hangzhou Yidao Agreement are as follows:

Category of grantees

AR ANER

KRB

Date of grant

35. R e)
(b) DB — KM B AT (%)

R B —MM S 2 1528 N e D %
BERFIBIAT

Vesting period
BB

Yidao Employees
SIES

17 July 2015

201574178

17/7/2015 - 30/4/2018

Vesting conditions to be satisfied before 30
April 2018 are as follow:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

the online to offline ("020") applications
developed by Hangzhou Yidao
shall cover at least 300 residential
communities, with over 200 activated
users of each of such residential
communities;

total subscribers of the 020 applications
developed by Hangzhou Yidao shall be
more than 800,000, with not less than
250,000 monthly residential active user
("MAU”] that log in the account at least
once a month; and

the quarterly gross merchandise
volume ("GMV”) paid through the
020 applications developed by
Hangzhou Yidao shall be not less than
RMB3,500,000.

7220184 4 A30 B AER RSB IE M0 T

(i)

(ii)

BN ERIF MR LR T (1020])) &
AREARBESZLI00EETEHRE - G
EFEHRBEBB200ZEHEARP

MMM EEFEN020EMBERNEREE
A% 7°800,000%  BAKIEARS —
RevgAEEERERP (TMAU]) RAR
250,000% : K&

(i) @A/ E R M020 & M2 AT X

MNFFRESE([GMV) TMEIRARK
3,500,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

35.SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 5. R E )

(b) A subsidiary of the Company (b) DBV — KK B AT (%)
[continued)
Binomial Option Pricing Model had been Eeem T AR -_BEHErBE
used to estimate the fair value of the FEAFE EALRIANGITAFEES
compound financial instrument. The AR#22,535,0007T © JhiiE1E B WWER A B M sk
estimated fair value of the compound Bi& - URESTIHES LRI A ANFE
financial instrument is RMB22,535,000 BAR®E19327,000C ' B T2 BARE
which represented the goods or services 3 208,000t A A M T ARSEETDW
received from the Employees. The fair NEE - FEEEERITANATFERFERDN
value of the cash-settled compound 55(&{%1 C IIIREARATEIE B REMKETE
financial instrument is RMB19,327,000, c AR T AMBERESE T TEEBRHNE
and the remaining amount is fair value %{ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁ o ZIEA MWW ABIEAT -

of equity-settled component of the
compound financial instrument amounting
to RMB3,208,000. The variables and
assumptions used in computing the fair
value of the compound financial instrument
are based on the management of the
Company’s best estimate. The value of
compound financial instrument varies with
different variables of certain subjective
assumptions. The inputs into the model are

as follows:
17 July 2015
72015F7H17H
Underlying share price of 33% equity MM Z233%Mx IR AR B A% RMB7,359,000
interest of Hangzhou Yidao AR%7,359,0007T
Repurchase price of 33% equity interest /NS 233% A% K @ (B RMB22,000,000
of Hangzhou Yidao AR#22,000,0007T
Expected volatility TEHRR I8 59.40%
Expected life TEHER B A A 3.8 years4F
Risk-free rate £ L g ) 2 0.90%
Expected dividend yield TEHARR B & 0.00%
The Group recognised share-based ﬁ12016¢12ﬂ315¢¢f§* C REE M
payment expense of RMB7,683,000 (2015: FHHRMD NI RLHBERROMRAIAR
RMB5,298,000) and imputed interest of ei‘i@7,683,0007ﬂ(2015¢ © AR#5,298,000T)
RMB1,233,000 (2015: RMB122,000) for the RHEEF S A R®1,233,0007T (20154F = A
year ended 31 December 2016 in relation R#122,0007T) - EHURESBFENARE
to the share-based payment arrangement 7,135,0007T (20154 : AR5,276,0007T )
of Hangzhou Yidao, in which RMB7,135,000 REBE % TARK,781,0007T(2015%F -
(2015: RMB5,276,000) was recognised as AE@?MA 0007T) AR B E 7 S0 i RE 2 1
the liabilities for the cash-settled portion B o

and the remaining of RMB1,781,000 (2015:
RMB144,000) was charged to the equity for
equity-settled portion.
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fre B TSR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ 201651283 1A LEE

36.ACQUISITION/DEEMED 36.W 5 RAEWEHE AR
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
(a) Acquisitions of businesses (a) BBWEKE L AWBER
through acquisition of
subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BZE20165F12A31BLEE
Place of Equity Interest
Name of subsidiary acquired establishment Consideration  Acquisition date acquired Principal activities
EHENBLARER Kb RE KEAH ChiEEs TEEK
RMB’000
ARBTR
Eastern Harbour Engineering  Hong Kong 12,066 5 February 70% Investment holding
Management Company & 2R58 REER
Limited* [Eastern Harbour”)
(note i)
ERRABEIRERERAA
(TR 7i8% ) (Rt
Hangzhou Gaodi Property PRC 500 27 April 100% Provision of property
Services Company Limited* LA278 management services
("Hangzhou Gaodi") REENFERRE

RMBENEREERAF
(Mmssl)

Zhejiang Yongcheng (note i PRC 210,000 11 October 70% Provision of property
LKAk (B3 E 10A118 management services
RENEERRY
* The English name is for identification * XA EEYEER -

purpose only.

Note: MaE

(i Eastern Harbour hold 100% equity (i BHEERE LERENEEEERAT
interest in Shanghai Yidong Property 100%[5HE - BB EYESERAERATNSE
Management Company Limited, which JRL YR TR RS TS o

is engaged in provision of property
management services.

(ii) Zhejiang Yongcheng has a number of (ii) HOT KR EZEHBAT - MitERatyy
subsidiaries, that are also engaged SIRE o TEHB AT T SEBEHRMIEELS ©

in provision of property management
services. Details of the principal
subsidiaries are set out in note 45.

Eastern Harbour, Hangzhou Gaodi and WES SR 788 - MINS P MoKk g s
Zhejiang Yongcheng were acquired so as BRAEBENYEESIREL -

to continue the expansion of the Group's
property management operation.

FRIEKEEMARAT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

36.ACQUISITION/DEEMED 36. BB RIEWEMB AT (2)

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

[continued)

(a) Acquisitions of businesses
through acquisition of
subsidiaries (continued)

() BBWEMEBARWBER2)

Consideration transferred EEENAE
2016
20164
RMB’000
ARET T
Cash consideration paid ERNBEeNRE 222,566

Assets acquired and liabilities

recognised attributable to the Group at

the date of acquisition

RUERHERANSIEERECWEE

ERERE

2016
20165
RMB’000
ARBTR
Net assets attributable to BEMEAEREROEEFE
the Group acquired
Property, plant and equipment Y - B kB 14,425
Investment properties REME 90,229
Intangible assets (note i) | E (MEED 108,759
Interests in a joint venture R—EEELENER 1,170
Deferred tax assets EIERRIBE &= 5,423
Inventories ERSS 1,413
Trade and other receivables (note ii) B 5 I F At JE W sk I8 (B 5% 154,625
Amounts due from non-controlling equity  EUHT B A T EHE A AE 25
holders of subsidiaries A ARIE 17,964
Financial assets designated at EEREATER ABED
FVTPL TREE 50
Bank balances and cash RITEBR MRS 37,163
Trade and other payables B 5 Rk EAMEFRIE (155,082)
Amounts due to non-controlling equity FESTB B~ )
holders of subsidiaries FEERR IR R AR (5,930)
Amount due to a joint venture B —EE&E R ERIE (2,850)
Tax liabilities MIBAE (22,083)
Borrowings EEN (25,330]
Deferred tax liability RLERIAEE (27,190)
Non-controlling interests of WK K FE IR 21
Zhejiang Yongcheng (2,362)
190,394

198 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.ACQUISITION/DEEMED
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

[continued)

(a) Acquisitions of businesses
through acquisition of
subsidiaries (continued)

Assets acquired and liabilities
recognised attributable to the Group at
the dates of acquisitions [continued]

(i)

(ii)

For the year ended 31 December 2016,
intangible assets of RMB104,616,000 in
relation to the acquisition of Zhejiang
Yongcheng and RMB4,143,000 in relation
to the acquisition of Eastern Harbour
have been recognised by the Group
based on the valuation performed
by a firm of independent qualified
professional valuers based on certain
estimates, including growth rates,
discounts rates and expected future
net cash inflows generated from the
expected service charges to be earned
less relevant costs to be incurred. The
intangible assets which are the property
management contracts have estimated
future useful lives of five to fifteen years
and amortised on a straight line basis
over the estimated useful lives.

The fair value of trade and other
receivables at the date of acquisition
amounted to RMB154,625,000. The gross
contractual amounts of those trade and
other receivables acquired amounted
to RMB174,276,000. The best estimate
at acquisition date of the contractual
cash flows not expected to be collected
amounted to RMB19,651,000.

iR e B R T A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

36. BB RIEWEMB AT (2)

(a) BBWIEK B RWERE @)

RUERHERANEIEEREEWEE
EREE#E)

(i)

(ii)

REZE2016F12A31H IEFE - BRWKEE
AT oK 2 B & E AR 104,616,000
TTRERREBRASEZBEEEARE
443000 EEAREERER  EER—
MBS A G BEAEMTRES bt
(BEHER - B R BRI Z BH R
BB REELEZ BRI ATE 2R
RILGREFRE) MER Z51E - 25 &
FHEEEMEEELY  AlEsTRKRER
HAREE+TRE  UNNAEGERG
B R R o

REERZ B 5 R E M ERRIRZ A
B R AR®154,625,0000T ° B W 2%
LEHLEMEBYEGIAZ ANBBRAAR
#174,276,0007T © TAFHE AR E 2 &
HReRNKE R R ZEBFTRARE
19,651,0007T °

Goodwill arising on acquisitions W EE e
2016
20165
RMB’000
ARET
Consideration transferred EHEERE 222,566
Non-controlling interests IR A 56,970
Less: Fair value of net assets attributable i : B REAEEEEEE
to the Group acquired FEATE (190,394)
Goodwill arising on acquisitions W EE S 89,142
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

36.ACQUISITION/DEEMED 36.1 08 BEWBHEB AT w)
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

[continued)

(a) Acquisitions of businesses () BBWEMEBARWBER2)
through acquisition of
subsidiaries (continued)

Goodwill arising on acquisitions WEELENEEE)

[continued)

Goodwill arisen on the acquisition of WEEMT B A RIEARE  ARWINEEF HRK
subsidiaries the represented the future BRge h RFaEE B EE A K EE R R
profitability of the acquiree and the JE o

anticipated future operating synergies from
the acquisition.

None of the goodwill arising on the B B E A AP B FEH R R R & o
acquisitions are expected to be deductible

for tax purposes.

Net cash outflow arising on KWEEEEENESRLFE
acquisitions

2016
20164
RMB’000
AR¥F

Cash consideration paid ENEREeRE (222,566)
Less: Bank balances and cash acquired B EERUSIRITABRKE S 37,163

(185,403)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.ACQUISITION/DEEMED
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

[continued)

(a) Acquisitions of businesses
through acquisition of
subsidiaries (continued)

Impact of acquisitions on the results of
the Group

Revenue and profit generated by the

- % 2
iR e MR RER M T
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

36. BB RIEWEMB AT (2)

(a) BB U BB L R AB RS ()

WiEHAREXEA

E/
o7

RAEE - BB ARSI IE 77 EE A r s o

acquirees during the current year since FLET -
acquisitions are as follow:
2016
2016%F
RMB’000
AR¥EF T
Revenue Wz 109,838
Profit for the year FEAE 14,097
Had the above acquisitions been completed i o I BE A 20161 A1 B2 » NEER
on 1 January 2016, the Group's revenue and HZE20165F12 A31 B IEFE o das Mg M i
profit for the year ended 31 December 2016 FORNE
would be as follow:
2016
2016%F
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Revenue W =5 863,421
Profit for the year FEAE 25,741

FRERKEEER2T 201
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR B BRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

36.ACQUISITION/DEEMED 36.1058 REWBKIE A R ()
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
[continued)
(b) Acquisitions of assets and (b)BBRERBATKBEERERS
liabilities through acquisition of
subsidiaries
For the year ended 31 December 2016 B E2016F12831BLEE
Equity
Place of interest
Name of subsidiary acquired establishment Consideration Acquisition date acquired Activities principal
BERENEARER K% fRE  WEAH BliEgE TTEK
RMB’000
ARBTR
Aidaojia Information Hong Kong - 25 January 2016 100% Inactive
Technology Company Limited &% (notea)  2016%1A258 gmE
(“Aidaojia Information”] (Kista)

EHREANRARLA
(TR35EA])

For the year ended 31 December 2015 BZ2015F12831BILEE
Equity
Place of interest
Name of subsidiary acquired establishment Consideration Acquisition date acquired Activities principal
BRENEATEH B 5 fRE  WERH BHEER TEXEK
RMB’000
ARBTR
Guangzhou Maiyue PRC - 15 April 2015 75% Inactive
BMEH P (noteb) 201554 F15H LEe%
(Hiztb)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fre B TSR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ 201651283 1A LEE

36.ACQUISITION/DEEMED 36. BB RIEWEMB AT (2)

ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

[continued)

(b) Acquisitions of assets and

(b)EBKENBLRKVBEERAR

liabilities through acquisition of (&)

subsidiaries (continued)

Notes: MaE -

(a] The consideration was less than RMB1,000. (a) KRELNVARE1,0007T °

(b) Guangzhou Maiyue was established by Mr. (b) BEMBBIAAQARBRRFERIELEEHEB T

Liu Jian, a shareholder and a director of the
Company with an independent third party on
26 September 2014 which is inactive from its
date of establishment. Mr. Liu Jian and the
other shareholders hold 75% and 25% equity
interests in Guangzhou Maiyue respectively.
On 15 April 2015, Guangzhou Suiya, a
subsidiary of the Company, Guangzhou
Maiyue and its shareholders entered into
a series of structured contracts. After
considering the fact and circumstances, the
management of the Group concludes that the
Group has power to control over Guangzhou
Maiyue, therefore the Group classified
Guangzhou Maiyue as a subsidiary since 15
April 2015.

FEZ 201459826 B/ » s ARIEHEMKT B
R EYELE  AELEREMBREDRF
BRENMBHT5% K% 25% 4 - 201548158 -
BMEH(AQAMBRAR) - BEMNEBERER
RV —RINGEREER - KEEEEREER
N AREEEESLNEREAREHENE
WAL MALEB2015F4A158BEE
BB EAMBAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR e B R A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

36.ACQUISITION/DEEMED
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES

[continued)

(b) Acquisitions of assets and
liabilities through acquisition of
subsidiaries (continued)

Assets and liabilities recognised at the
dates of acquisitions

36. 8B RIEWEMB AT (2

(b BEBUWEHBLARWEEERAE

(%)

RUERNEIANEERARE

2015
20154
RMB'000
AREEFTT
Net assets acquired EWEEERE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE&EE 16
Other receivables H fth JE Y FRIE 1
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR KIS 341
Other payables HAth 5/ (100)
258
Consideration paid ERRE -
Net assets acquired BB EEFE 258
Non-controlling interests IR R (64)
194
Net cash inflows arising on acquisitions WEBEEEENIREESRASE
2015
20154
RMB'000
AREFT
Cash consideration paid ENEHEERE -
Less: Bank balances and cash acquired B EEVSIRITA R
S 341
341
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37.DEEMED DISPOSAL OF

SUBSIDIARIES

For the year ended 31 December 2015

As disclosed in note 36(b), on 15 April 2015,
through the structured contracts entered
into among Guangzhou Suiya, Guangzhou
Maiyue and its shareholders (Mr. Liu Jian and
an independent third party), Mr. Liu Jian, a
shareholder and a director of the Company holds
75% equity interest of Guangzhou Maiyue, which
was then consolidated by Guangzhou Suiya, a
subsidiary of the Company. On 26 October 2015,
a termination agreement on these structured
contracts was entered into among Guangzhou
Suiya, Guangzhou Maiyue and its shareholders
with nil consideration, resulting the structured
contracts were no longer effective since then.
The management of the Group concludes that
the Group no longer has power to control
over Guangzhou Maiyue and the consolidated
financial statements of the Group has ceased
to consolidate the financial statements of
Guangzhou Maiyue after 26 October 2015
accordingly.

Net assets of Guangzhou Maiyue at
the date of disposal

= & 23
ire R AR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

37. R EHEKE AT

HZE2015F 128318 L EE

BLANHIEE36(bIFTHEEE - F2015F4A15H + AA A
[RRFEFZNEAEBBHEMNER  BEMNER
MERR(BRZEER—RBUFE=T7)EI LN
BUESRZEAEINEBNTS%EE - ENEBHERE
BEAA R R B A R EINFETE - 702015410 A 26
B EMNEE BEMNESRERREATRERTLZ
LEBUHESRAMNKIERE - Bt - &BUHERTH
AR AEBEREE T AEBTHEIFEENE
MA ISR - MASELSRS B BIREN20155F10
RA26 B EHFABINEBR T BHRE -

REERHNENEREEFE

RMB’000
ARBTR
Net assets disposed of: EHEEETE
Property, plant and equipment M - BWERRE 14
Bank balances and cash RITEBRER S 118
Other payables Hh e~ 5K1A (19)
113
Consideration received B R E =
Net assets disposed of EHEEEFHE 113
Non-controlling interest FEE R (28)
Loss on deemed disposal recognised in ERERERNRIE
profit or loss HEEE 85
Net cash outflow arising on disposal HEELERESRHEFE
Bank balances and cash disposed of EHERITEBRER S (118)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
frRe B TSR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ 201651283 1A LEE

38.MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 38.FEHIHEHEXSH

During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the carrying amounts of trade receivables
amounting to RMB7,447,000 (2015:
RMB6,665,000) have been offset as payments for
acquisition of properties.

During the year ended 31 December 2015,
amounts due from directors amounting to
RMB54,073,000 have been settled by the
dividends of Guangdong Zhong Ao declared and

HE2016F12A3BILEEE - EHERKHIE
ZEEHEEARETL47,000T(2015F 1 AR
6,665,0007T) EF RSB 2 30T A

REZE2015F 128318 IEFE - BIREERHEA
R#54,073,000 T EAERFPERET IR &S IK FA
RRABEERRRIEEE  BRErgt BEEER
BRARLENERBEE -

distributed to Mr. Liu Jian, Ms. Chen Zhuo, Mr.
Liang Bing and Mr. Long Weimin, the directors
and shareholders of the Company.

39.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 39.¢@mMITH
(a) Categories of financial ()& ITAEHA
instruments
2016 2015
201645 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET ARET T
Financial assets SEEE
Loans and receivables (including ERMERFIE(BIERE
cash and cash equivalents) RESZEY) 643,804 598,394
Financial assets designated as at BERRATEF ABZR
FVTPL WEmEE 2,550 -
Financial liabilities SRMEE
Amortised cost SR A 470,695 146,712
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR SRR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ 201651283 1A LEE

39.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 39. R T E (%)
(b) Financial risk management (b) AR EEEEREE

objectives and policies

The Group’s financial instruments include
trade and other receivables, amount due
from a related party and non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, financial
assets designated at FVTPL, pledged bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade
and other payables, amount due to a joint
venture, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders of subsidiaries, and other
long-term payables. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes.

The management of the Group monitors and
manages the financial risks relating to the
operations of the Group through internal
risk assessment which analyses exposures
by degree and magnitude of risks. The risks
included market risk (including interest rate
risk and foreign currency risk], credit risk
and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below and
remained unchanged during the year. The
management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures
are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Market risk
(i] Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation
of the prevailing market interest rate on
pledged bank deposits, bank balances
and on variable-rate bank borrowings.

The Group currently does not use
any derivative contracts to hedge its
bank borrowings to interest rate risk.
However, the management will consider
hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

The Group’s exposures to interest rates
on financial liabilities are detailed in
the liquidity risk management section
of this notes. The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is concentrated on the
fluctuation of the Offered Rate.

The management considered that
interest rate risk in fixed-rate
borrowings is insignificant.

AEE 2R TABEE S MEMEKFR -
FEM — 2 AR T N M B R R SF AR BB R R
BERBEAFEHABRENEREE  CHEM
RITIFR - RITEREBRS - BH MEMEN
A BN —REEREIA  BNHEAR
FEERBCRAR B RBENTR - ZFE2R
TAMNFBERAEMERE -

ARER BB T 55 8 A BB R Y 5 (B o3 A7 LR
RENEE)BERE N EEEA KB AN
MHER - ZFRREE : mEER(BEF
xR RINERE) FERRKRABE SR
B o A BAADRUE % 3 B RO BR R T3
ARFRTEZE - TR EHZFERMROHE
?g%‘E&Esfff-sL‘A@%‘ﬁ%i@ﬁ%ﬁ&ﬂi@ﬁéﬁxi@%%
}j o

™5 EkR
(i) FIRmEEE

A4 B AT B IR TR - RITES
K7 B RITIE B 2 AT 0 R R B
ErRERBAEMS -

ARER B3R 5 30 S AE AT DTE B AV A K
HIRTTRERO N K@ o A - HBE -
EREGERETEANEER o

BRAANKEMAZO SR EAEMNRERF
BER AT RDECRARER & o K
SEzRSRENERBREFRRAEFE
KHRF -

ERERARELBRZFERARY TE
% o

FREREEMARAA

2016 F£3§




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRE BTSRRI R

For the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE2016&F 12331 L FE

39.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continved) 39. BT B (4#)

(b) Financial risk management (b)) BEKREEEERKE &)

objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued) ™% kR ()

(i) Interest rate risk (continued) (i) FIZE@EB(E)
Sensitivity analysis R E ST
Pledged bank deposits and bank DR ER TR MR T8
balances
The sensitivity analysis below has been TXHBREST IR ITEH R EIKBE
determined based on the exposure to TEZINHEH RE SN X E R mE
interest rates for the bank balances F o WNMEEEIEABERMNRE - (F
and pledged bank deposits at the end of FACOEE BRI ILR - TV EIREE A XA
the reporting period. A 50 basis points A s B EH M EL( -

increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’'s assessment of the
reasonably possible change of interest

rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points fMA = T RS0EES - MEMTE
higher/lower and all other variables S GENE  KREFBREE20165F12
were held constant, the Group's losses AR EENERERD 1EiARE
for the year ended 31 Decemebr 1,659,0007C (20154F © F5EE 0054 A
2016 would decrease/increase by R #1,920,0007T) °

RMB1,659,000 (2015: profit increase/
decrease by RMB1,920,000).

Variable-rate bank borrowings 2 ERITIEE

The sensitivity analysis below has been TXRE DN T2 SR 1TE RN RE
determined based on the exposure HREH M ZREmMET - BRAEE
to interest rates for the variable-rate BIBABERFEE - 5 HS0EE B MY
bank borrowings at the end of the W W EIBERNERNSIE R e B E
reporting period. A 50 basis points HE R o

increase or decrease is used when
reporting interest rate internally to key
management personnel and represents
management’'s assessment of the
reasonably possible change of interest

rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points HRIZ EF T ES0EEE - MEMATE
higher/lower and all other variables HEEEIE  KEFRBREE20165F12
were held constant, the Group’s loss for A3MBIEEEMNEBREIEN B ARE
the year ended 31 December 2016 would 389,0007T (20154 : FIER A EINAR
increase/decrease by RMB389,000 #111,0007T) ©

(2015: profit decrease/increase by

RMB111,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
fre B TSR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ 201651283 1A LEE

39.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continved) 39. &R T E (&)
(b EEREEEEREE®)

(b) Financial risk management
objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued) ISR (#)
lii] Foreign currency risk (i) SME E B2

The Group’s exposure to currency risk
mainly attributable to other receivables,
bank balances, borrowings and other

A E2 (B H e 10 ME BB = B2k B B FE IR
IR~ RITHER  BREEMEN IR
AAREERRERNINEHE -

payables which are denominated in
the foreign currencies of the relevant
entities of the Group.

AEBEINEHEN SR EENEREE
REBEHROREES &N T

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets and monetary liabilities at the
end of each reporting period are as

follows:

2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFIT

Assets BE
usD ETT 62,242 59,517
HK$ BT 137,702 287,127

Liabilities 8E
usDb ETT - 3,434
HK$ BT 105,091 4,118

The Group currently does not enter into
any derivative contracts to minimise the
currency risk exposure. However, the

AREE B A BT SLAEADT A S K LAORIE
SMNERBR o AT - AABEREREER
BREZNLPEASNERR

management of the Group will consider
hedging significant currency risk should
the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire BTSRRI A
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

39.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continved) 39. BT B (4#)

(b) Financial risk management (b EERREEEERKE &)

objectives and policies (continued)

Market risk (continued) 5 Lk (4

lii] Foreign currency risk (continued) lii) SMER B (&)
Sensitivity analysis BURMES T
The sensitivity analysis below has been THBEBRESTHIREEEBZEE
determined based on a 10% increase/ AR HAEBINEFEBZE10% M E
decrease in functional currency of F o 10%AERMTESIERE A BERNBRSE
respective entities (i.e. RMB) against GNEE TR K B IR B RTAR INEE R A IR BT
the relevant foreign currencies. 10% is BESAE R 2B RRELL R - FUREDNT
the sensitivity rate used when reporting EOENIINEHEZ AN EKER -
foreign currency risk internally to key A A R B R I2 10% 2 SINE (8 R & B) 7 &
management personnel and represents WEZRER - RS T EIEEMER
management's assessment of the B - RITES - BRREMENRIE -

reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items
and adjusts their translation at the
end of each reporting period for a 10%
change in foreign currency rates. The
sensitivity analysis includes other
receivables, bank balances, borrowings
and other payables.

If currency rate of USD had been 10% E‘JE%Q WETHENEBEEENREAGN
strengthened/weakened to RMB for CHETTH ARBEHERFAE,BE
respective USD denominated monetary 0% NEEBE2016F12A31B IEF
assets and liabilities, the Group's EHEEBER LD AR 4668,000
losses for the year ended 31 December T (20154 « @ FIG MR D AR
2016 would be decrease/increase by 4,206,0007T) °

RMB4,668,000 (2015: profit increase/
decrease by RMB4,206,000).

If currency rate of HK$ had been 10% MEBEBNB LA ENEKEENRAEM
strengthened/weakened to RMB for T MBTHARBHEERAE RAE
respective HK$ denominated monetary 10% @+ AREBEE2016F 128318 EF
assets and liabilities, the Group's EHEEBER D 8N AR 2,446,000
loss for the year ended 31 December JC (20154  SEFIE mn,m b ARE
2016 would be decrease/increase by 21,226,0007T) °

RMB2,446,000 (2015: profit increase/
decrease by RMB21,226,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR e MR
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZ 201651283 1A LEE

39.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continved) 39. &R T E (&)
(b EEREEEEREE®)

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk

At the end of each reporting period, the
Group’'s maximum exposure to credit
risk which will cause a financial loss to
the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties is arising
from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position
at the end of the reporting period.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual trade debt at the
end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
management of the Group consider that the
Group’'s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group had no concentration of credit
risk in respect of trade receivables,
with exposure spread over a number
of customers, who are residents in the
residential communities managed by the
Group under lump sum basis.

FERR

REREHR  AEEAZHRREERRE
AXGHFHAERTEEMERAEEHE
MEER - TDRERRERREA B NE
IS RCREMEENKEE -

RREFERR AEEEEERAERRE
B ARERERENVRAETTE) - IWEIBHMETS - It
Sh  REBENSREHRENS @R E HER
RS - AERETARE B EL -
WEVRERRE - Bt E - AREERERR
AEBWEERBREAKRE -

HEZREFIRME - AEERARSARET
BEFH L ZEEPRAKERHEEMNER
BEER MAKEYEEHEERR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ire BTSRRI A
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

39.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continved) 39. &R T E (&)
(b EEREEEEREE®)

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (continued)
Credit risk (continued)

The Group's credit risk on liquid funds is
limited because the counterparties are
banks with high credit ratings and good
reputation established in the PRC.

Other than concentration of credit risk
on liquid funds which are deposited with
several banks with high credit ratings, the
Group do not have any other significant
concentration of credit risk.

Liquidity risk

In the management of liquidity risk,
the Group’s management monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the Group’s
remaining contractual maturity for its
financial liabilities based on the agreed
repayment terms. The tables have been
drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The table includes both
interest and principal cash flows. To the
extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from
the interest rate at the end of each reporting
period.

EERMEE)

HRZSUFHRTERERSEENRAR
BRENRT HARBRDESWEERR
BRR e

BiERRZEARSEENRNRITHRDE
SREEPEERRI  AEBELEEFAIEM
BEAEPEERR

REE T EE

REERBESRERIH  AREEEEER
REFRSRRSEEVREEER/TEH
KFE - ARAKEXRGLERRES WK
RERERBOTE -

REE £ R FIEE b7

TRAVAREBERBEERGRINECRAE
RIEHH - TRIOBRESHMBENRITERR
ERERD > MEEFLMBEIREAEEZA
TRRORERRNE - ZREBEMNEREAE
RERE - WASRERFDME - QIRRR
SERASREHROFE -
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39.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(b) Financial risk management

objectives and policies (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

Liquidity and interest risk tables

9. T E %)
(b) R EEEEREE &)

REBESER(E)

REELRFIEERE(E)

[continued)
Weighted
average Total
effective  Repayable  Lessthan 3monthsto  1yearto undiscounted  Carrying
interestrate  ondemand 3 months 1year Syears  cash flows amount
il 357} AR ARRE
ERAE EXEEE OHRMER 3EARIE 125 RELH KEfE
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETR ARETR ARMTr AR®Tn ARETR AR¥T:R
As at 31 December 2016 20165125318
Trade and other payables EHREMENTE - 38,105 221,762 - - 259,867 259,867
Amount due to non-controlling  ERHERFEER
shareholders of asubsidiary ~ RAHE c 12 - - - 12 12
Amount dueto ajointventure  ER-Bagt%5E - 150 - - - 150 150
Borrowings fa3t 2.69% - 3,017 49,689 100,852 153,558 128,948
Payable for Contingent FRRELENTE
Considerations 5.51% - - 22,500 67,500 90,000 81,718
38,207 224,719 72,189 168,352 503,587 470,695
As at 31 December 2015 R2015512A31A
Trade and other payables EHRAMENTA - 10490 106,582 - - Nm nnm
Borrowings &3 5.51% - 10,822 12,066 8,472 31,360 29,640
10,490 117,404 12,066 8,472 148,432 146,712
The amounts included above for variable Y2 B FRNBEE RN SRS RES TG
interest rate financial liabilities are subject SR REE) - YN RBENSES

to change if changes in variable interest
rates differ to those estimates of interest
rates determined at the end of each

reporting period.

EHRED -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

39.FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continved) 39. BT B (4#)

(c) Fair values (c) A&
Fair values of the Group’s financial AEETRHEERSHEBBENATERT
assets and financial liabilities are YEBE:
determined as follow:
The management of the Group estimates the REBEEBRIBELRESRENTIZE K
fair value of its financial assets and financial KRGt ESREENSHBENATE - A&
liabilities measured at amortised cost have BE 18 [8 7 E&ﬁ&fﬁﬁ%$)\ﬁ§ﬂﬁ%mﬁ§§&%
been determined based on the discounted BAEREEEENTERSE

cash flows analysis. The carrying amounts
of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost approximate to
their fair value.

Fair values of the Group’s financial ENREMNEERATEFEZEESH
assets that is measured at fair value on EEZAYE

a recurring basis

Financial assets designated as at FVTPL are BEAKRAFEFAEZ S EER2016F
measured at fair value at the year ended 31 12ANBILEFEZAFERFE - HoBAFE=
December 2016. It is categorised at level 3 BAFESER -

fair value hierarchy.

40.0PERATING LEASES 0.X&EHE
The Group as lessee KEEEREAEA
2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBT T

Minimum lease payments paid under BELEBNBRFARE
operating leases in respect of rented MEENHKERAS
premises during the year 3,937 2,483
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40.0PERATING LEASES (continued)

The Group as lessee (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had commitments for future minimum lease
payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of office premises and staff
dormitories which fall due as follows:

iR e B R T A

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

L0.K8EHE (#)

AEBEEEABAE)

RIS - A RSN T ER B E s RA
NELIE Y SR e RN b € T T Dot Z=E0F S
FEERSEENT :

2016 2015

20165 20154

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET ARET T

Within one year —F X 4,280 1,982
In the second to fifth years inclusive F_EFERF

(BREEREME) 13,876 283

18,156 2,265

Operating lease payment represent rentals
payable by the Group for its office premises and
staff dormitories. Leases are negotiated and
rentals are fixed for terms of one to five years.

The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had contracted with tenants or residential
communities for the following future minimum
lease payments:

KEHENRIEAEERENAENENEIES
ENES - HOKEREEMES I —20F
MEMMET -

AEBESHAA

RIERR - AEEEEABALEERATL - B
BEAESIEEENKDT

2016 2015

20154 20164

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARBTFT

Within one year —F R 831 -

Property rental income represents rentals
receivables by the Group for investment
properties. Leases are negotiated and rentals
are fixed for terms of one year.

MEMEREAEERREMERE ZHEE - L
KENEENEETREE @ RY—F -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

41.CAPITAL COMMITMENTS L. ERESE
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTFT
Consideration committed in respect MEFT B RRERA B TR
of acquisition of property, plant and KEBENBEDE
equipment contracted for but not B KR A ERE
provided in the consolidated financial
statements 2,176 1,661
42.RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLAN 42 RREFEHE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme for all qualifying employees in Hong
Kong. The Group contributes 5% of relevant
payroll costs to the Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme, subject to @ maximum amount of
HK$1,500 per month for each employee which
contribution is matched by employees.

The employees of the PRC entities are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme
operated by the government of the PRC. The
Group is required to contribute 12% to 34% of
the total monthly basic salaries of its current
employees to the retirement benefit scheme
to fund the benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the specified contributions.

The total costs charged to consolidated financial
statements of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2016 were amounted to
RMB20,427,000 (2015: RMB12,849,000).

AEBRBEMACEREERLBHMERES
8| - AEBEIRBAF & XA5%MRIE 58I R
(BREEBAZR=MHRER5008T) - M
HEEB HREA -

TEEENEB/TERFEHNBERERRARRE
FEEINE - AEEBZEBAIREESARLAFH S
FEERRY12% 2 34% MR KR FI AT B A B2 TR AR
FEE - AREABARKEHFENERRTRE
AR E B R -

HZE2016F12A3BIEFE st AGEEBERY K
MR LA AN B ARYE20,427,0007T (20154 : A
R #12,849,0007T) °
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For

43.PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group
had pledged the following assets to banks as
securities against general banking facilities
granted to the Group:

- % 2
ire R AR
the year ended 31 December 2016 B ZE2016&F 12831 L FE

LI EERKF

RBERR  AREERARVTEBRTINEE - R
REEER —RBTRE 2 KR m

2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T AREFT
Investment properties wEYE 14,386 -
Pledged bank deposits EHEAIRITIFR = 62,834
14,386 62,834
44 .RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES LLBBB T IE
(a) Related parties transactions (Q)BEBAERS
During the years, the Group entered into IS

the following significant transactions with
related parties as follows:

ZEFE  AEBBEBB A VA TEAR
5

Related parties Relationship Transactions 2016 2015
B 5 B& x5 20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARETT
Guangzhou Xunhua Company controlled  Provision of services
[ 3R EE by Mr. Liu Jian, a to the Group
shareholder and M7 & BB (RS
director of the
Company
RARRRRREES
BEEEHE QA - 1,012
Ms. Chen Zhuo A shareholder and Provision of rental
PRE 2+ director of the services to the Group
Company M B E R
RRBIBRRFES 9 12
Mr. Liu Jian A shareholder and Provision of rental
Bz e director of the services to the Group
Company A7 5k B R AR & AR
ARRBRRFES - 50
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44 .RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES LB R E )
[continued)
(b) Operating lease (b) REHE
At the end of the reporting period, Ms. Chen REBEHIKR » FRELZ T AT ER A H
Zhuo had commitments for future minimum HEEHEBE TN ARFERE N ZURED|H
lease payments under non-cancellable BRI

operating leases in respect of office
premises which fall due as follows:

2016 2015
20164 20154
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®T R ARBTT

Within one year —FR = 9
(c) Compensation of key () TEEBEEASHMH

management personnel

The remuneration of key management E;‘Eﬁ§£016¢&2015¢12ﬂ31 HIEFEER

personnel during the years ended 31 EERABHMMAT :

December 2016 and 2015 was as follows:

2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AREBTT

Short-term employee benefits 2 HE B2 A 10,869 3,309
Post-employment benefits BEER 1212 A 269 146
Share-based payments [N 12,569 11,022
23,707 14,477
The remuneration of key management TEEBASHFMNIIKRXZEAARBELRT SIS
personnel is determined by reference to BIBEETE o
the performance of individuals and market
trend.
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45.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(a) General information of principal
subsidiaries

L5 ANBEEMB AT ZFHE

(a) TEMBE ATz —REHR

Details of the Group’s principal subsidiaries
at the end of the reporting period are set out

RBEMR - ARAETEMBE AR 2150

—

below:

Issued and fully

Place of paid share/ Equity interest
incorporation/ registered attributable Principal
Name of subsidiary establishment capital to the Group activities
BRTR
AL BrRE/
NEER B3 3t 3 AMER FRERERAEE TEXK
2016 2015
2016 20155
% %
Directly held:
EEER:
Zhong Ao Holdings BVI UsD1 100 100 Investment holding
th R ABRAES 1% REER
Indirectly held:
BiEEA
Zhong Ao HK Hong Kong HKD1 100 100 Investment holding
hRER BA 1B RERK
Eastern Harbour Hong Kong HKD2 70 - Investment holding
RAEE & 287 REEKR
Guangzhou Xuji PRC HKD77,500,000 100 100 Investment holding
EMEE h 77,500,000/ ¢ RERK
Guangdong Zhong Ao PRC RMB35,335,689 100 100 Provision of property
BERHAE HE ARE management
35,335,6897T services
RENFEE RS
Hangzhou Lvdu PRC RMB2,500,000 100 100 Provision of property
MmN EEE HE AR¥2,500,0007C management
services
RENFEERG
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45.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

[continued)

L5.ARNBEEMB AT ZFHE &)

(a) FEMBRARAIZ—KRER %)

(a) General information of principal
subsidiaries (continued)

Issued and fully

Place of paid share/ Equity interest
incorporation/ registered attributable Principal
Name of subsidiary establishment capital to the Group activities
BRITR
T/ BRRE/
REER B 3L 4t 2 HEfEAE AEBEEERAERE TEER
2016 2015
2016F 20155
% %
Hangzhou Huachang PRC RMB1,000,000 100 100 Provision of property
MmMNES i N management
1,000,0007C services
RENFEE RS
Hangzhou Yidao PRC RMB1,000,000 100 100 Provision of online to
MINEE H N offline services
1,000,0007T RS FRE T RS
Shanghai Yidong PRC RMB3,000,000 70 - Provision of property
BabisleTd HE AR management
3,000,0007T services
REDFEERS
Hangzhou Gaodi PRC RMB500,000 100 - Provision of property
TASES HE AR management
500,0007% services
RENFEE RS
Zhejiang Yongcheng PRC RMB11,000,000 70 - Provision of property
TR HE AR management
11,000,0007T services
RENFEE RS
Ningbo Reston Hotel PRC RMB5,000,000 70 - Provision of property
Property Management HE N management
Services Company Limited 5,000,0007¢C services
(Note) REMFEERS
EREHEAEEDERS
BRAF(FE)
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45.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

[continued)

(a) General information of principal
subsidiaries (continued)

=
fra

BTSRRI RE

For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

L5.ARNBEEMB AT ZFE &)

() TEMBLR 2 —RER &)

Issued and fully

Place of paid share/ Equity interest
incorporation/ registered attributable Principal
Name of subsidiary establishment capital to the Group activities
BRTR
TR BRRE/
ARAR ki TEMER rEERGRAER FEEHR
2016 2015
20165 20155
% %

Ningbo Yongxing Property ~ PRC RMB1,000,000 79 - Provision of property
Management Company g AR® management
Limited (Note) 1,000,0007C services

ERBENEER REDRER RS
BRRA(F)

Ningbo Yongdu Elevator PRC RMB1,500,000 60 - Provision of
Engineering Company FE AEE engineering
Limited (Note) 1,500,0007T services and sales

ERokBERLRE of engineerin spare
BEDR (KEE) parts

RETRRBRHE
IREH

Ningbo Hign-tech Zone PRC RMB100,000 70 - Provision of catering
Yongcheng Catering i AR™100,0007T services
Services Company Limited REZRRY
[Note)

ERBMRKRER RS
BRAR(F)

Ningbo Jiangbei Yongdu PRC RMB200,000 62 - Provision of
Weak Current Engineering  HE AR200,0007T engineering
Company Limited (Note) services and sales

BRI k#H5ETR of engineering
BRAR (M) spare parts

RETRRBERHEE
IRZH
Note:  The companies are owned by Zhejiang Fizr :  REATEINI KK (RERNKEZ AT E

Yongcheng, a company acquired during
the year.

*  The English name is for identification purpose
only.

*

B

WX BRERBR -
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45.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL L5.RNTFEEMEB AT ZHE #)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

[continued)

(a) General information of principal (a) EEMBATZ2—RER (&)
subsidiaries (continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of TRV EER AT B EAEFEENEE
the Group which, in the opinion of the ZAREBRBAR  c EFRANNEHMHTBEAR
Directors, principally affected the results or Al HIBEHEBRERITE -

assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.
(b) Details of non-wholly owned b EEERFERERZIZENE
subsidiaries that have material NAEIFHE

non-controlling interests

Portion of ownership
interests and voting rights

Place of held by non-controlling Profit allocated to Accumulated non-
Name of company  establishment interest non-controlling interests controlling interests
FERERFSHEARER
REEB B30 B RERRRELH AETFHERES 2 EH Rt FERER
2016 2015 2016 2015 31/12/2016  31/12/2015

20165 201545

20165 20154 20164 2015F  12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREBTT AR®TR AR®T:R

Zhejiang Yongcheng PRC 70% - 2,433
AT i
Individually 598 (298] 6,194 249
immaterial
subsidiaries with
non-controlling
interests
RAFEREROR
GIEE VNG

58,094 -

3,031 (298] 64,288 249
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45.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL L5.RNTFEEMEB AT ZHE #)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

[continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned b EEERFERERZIZENS
subsidiaries that have material YNCIEES 1))
non-controlling interests
[continued)

Summarised financial information of WL KRB A E R an R -
Zhejiang Yongcheng is set out below:

Zhejiang Yongcheng and its IR REKE AR
subsidiaries
2016
20164
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Current assets REEE 170,535
Non-current assets FEMBEE 108,248
Current liabilities nRBBE 170,471
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AR aE/#HA AELEZR 74,072
Non-controlling interests of ALK 2 FE R 2
Zhejiang Yongcheng 31,745
Non-controlling interests of ALK BT B A B2 FE1E it e
Zhejiang Yongcheng's subsidiaries 2,495
Fair value adjustment arisimg from WA I KB EE A 2 A P AR B
acquisition of Zhejiang Yongcheng 23,854
Non-controlling interests FEFE AR M o5 PR AR 58,094
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 12331 AL EE

45.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL L5.RNTFEEMEB AT ZHE #)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

[continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned b EEERFERERZIZENS
subsidiaries that have material YNCIEES 1))
non-controlling interests
[continued)

Zhejiang Yongcheng and its WL K REME AR (&)
subsidiaries [continued)

2016
20165
RMB’000
AR®T
Revenue Wzs 82,472
Expenses Fx 8,189
Profit for the year FENHE 9,143
Profit attributable to owners of the Company AN EEA A JE(E % T 6,307
Profit attributable to the non-controlling ALK PR IR AR M 2
interests of Zhejiang Yongcheng FEAE R 2,703
Profit attributable to the non-controlling T oK A KT B A A
interests of Zhejiang Yongcheng's FEIR IRAE = R A % A
subsidiaries 133
Fair value adjustment arising from WA T KR EE A 2 AN FERE
acquisiton of Zhejiang Yongcheng (403)
Profit attributable to the FEFE AR M R FEAE R
non-controlling interests 2,433
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45.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL L5.RNTFEEMEB AT ZHE #)
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

[continued)

(b) Details of non-wholly owned b EEERFERERZIZENS
subsidiaries that have material YNCIEES 1))
non-controlling interests

[continued)

Zhejiang Yongcheng and its AT KA R EHE AR (&)
subsidiaries [continued)

Year ended
2016

Bz
20165
LFE
RMB’000
ARET

Net cash inflow from operating activities KRR MAFE 35,112
Net cash inflow from investing activities BEFDHREMAFE 12,449

Net cash outflow from financing activities & RIS R R (3,019)

Net cash inflow HWERAFE 44,542

TRERKEERAT 225

2016 F£3§




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
frRe B TSR M EE
For the year ended 31 December 2016 EZE2016F 1231 BILFE

46.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 46. 7N T B FEIROR R R = 3R 3R
POSITION AND EQUITY OF THE
COMPANY
2016 2015
20165 20154
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Non-current Assets FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EWBRARNEKE 95,410 28,391
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note)  FEURHIE A mIFIE (BIEF) 358,238 105,068
453,648 133,459

Current Assets REEE
Other receivables o e Wk I8 43 461
Bank balances and cash IRITHEB LIRS 98,043 339,276
98,086 339,737
Current Liabilities RBEE

Other payables H A e 5RIA 3,071 7,451
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAHBT B A B3R 19,119 18,532
Borrowing due within one year R—FERIE 2 ER 20,194 -
42,384 25,983
Net Current Assets RBEETFE 55,702 313,754
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBARG 509,350 447,213

Non-current Liabilities FRBEE
Borrowing due after one year R—FEIEZER 83,424 -
Net Assets EEFHE 425,926 447,213

Capital and Reserves EXRRE
Share capital LN 6,549 6,594
Reserves & 419,377 440,619
Total Equity e 425,926 447,213

Note:  The amounts are unsecured, interest free and MeE s WEREAEKER - T B RFEHNREEARE
expected to be realised within 5 years from STOF MBI - 0 B k3R 4 K R DA B IR R =K
the end of the reporting period, and therefore 4L9%ETE ©

measured at amortised cost at an effective
interest rate of 4.9% per annum.
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46.STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL L6. DT IEARR R e IR TR (42)
POSITION AND EQUITY OF THE
COMPANY /(continued)
Movement in the Company’s equity AATEREE
Captial Share
Share  Treasury Share redemption option  Accumulated
capital shares  premium reserve reserve losses Total

B EBRS RfeR EARERE BREEE  ROEA it
RMBOO0 ~ RMB'000  RMB00D  RMB000  RMBOO0  RMBO0D  RMB'00O
ARBTL ARETT ARETT ARRTn ARETR ARBTn ARETR

At the date of incorporation  #2015%1 A5Aff
on 5 January 2015 KA - - - - - ;

Loss and total comprehensive ERFER2ER X

expense for the year &% - - - - - (4,490) (44,490)
Capitalisation issue of shares  EZ{t&4TM ) 4,945 - (6,945) - - - -
Issue of new shares pursuant 1R BRERTHIR

to the public offering 1,649 - 308,251 - - - 309,900
Expenses incurred in RETROMES

connection with issue of i35

shares - - (31,807) - - - (31,807)

Reclassification of financial ~ BEFEARAFEA
liabilities designated as at ~ EZMERBEER

FVTPL 2R - - 198,980 - - - 198,980
Recognition of equity-settled  BZLEREEANRIR

shared-based payments ES - - - - 14,630 - 14,630
At 31 December 2015 #2015%128318 6,59 - 470,479 - 14,630 44,490) 447,213
Profit and total EEHERZERA

comprehensive income for 1%

the year - - - - - 7414 7414
Shares repurchased and BR R RN

cancelled (45) - (5,554) 45 - (45) (5,599)
Shares repurchased but not  SEEIEMATERH

cancelled - (3l (393) - - - (396)
Distribution pag - - (31,051) - - - (31,051)
Recognition of equity-settled  FELVEREEMRIA

shared-based payments I - - - - 12,701 - 12,701
Share option lapsed BRELN - - - - (4,356) - (4,356)
At 31 December 2016 RO014E128318 6549 B 43480 By B 659
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Results 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
E | 20126 20134 20145 20154 20165
(RMB'000) (RMB’000) (RMB'000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(ARETL) (AREFRT) (AREFR) (AREFRT) (AE%ETR)

Revenue Wz 197,449 290,276 361,202 420,155 635,146
Cost of sales and services SHE M RFSA AR (159,877) (212,352) (240,491) (280,067) (478,408)
Gross profit EF 37,572 77,924 120,711 140,088 156,738
Other income H A 4,494 1,481 3,155 1,467 7,867
Other gains and losses Ebliz R ER (6,172) (9,381) [16,328) (4,019) (2,171)
Change in fair value of RENELTEE

investment properties - - - - 3,341
Change in fair value of financial 157 A& AT EA

liabilities designated as at fair ~ BEMERAEH

value through profit or loss ATEE - - - (6,343] =
Administrative expenses THRRAX (14,344) (19,852) (21,472) (51,002) (99,675)
Other expenses Hif% - - - - (9,837)
Selling and distribution expenses $5& k7 % (2,438) (3,413) (3,765) [7,615) (29,450
Share of results of associates ~ [E(EHL DRI %R - (424) (670) - -
Share of results of joint ventures [EfEAEMEEE - - (98] 243 2,148
Finance costs B A - - (5) (1,572) (4,705)
Listing expenses FHR% - - (3,980) (35,881) -
Profit before tax W it A A 19,112 46,335 77,548 35,366 24,256
Income tax expenses FERHES (6,316) (13,265) [21,650) (24,753) (27,608)
(Loss) profit for the year EE(FR)FH 12,79 33,070 55,898 10,613 (3,352)
Assets and liabilities 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
EEREE 20124 20134 20145 20154 20165

(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(ARETRT) (AR%®FT) (AR®F) (AR%®Fn) (AREETT)

Non-current assets E - 14,347 29,830 73,391 92,580 422,498
Current assets MENEE 99,585 147,788 205,653 618,253 678,651
Total assets mEE 113,932 197,618 279,044 710,833 1,101,149
Current liabilities RBER 95,011 144,627 173766 196541 466,319
Non-current Liabilities ERBERE - - 9,639 12,555 184,764
Total liabilities BEE 95,011 144,627 183,405 209,096 651,083
Net assets BEFE 18,921 52,991 95,639 501,737 450,056

228 ZHONG AO HOME GROUP LIMITED

ANNUAL REPORT 2016




PRIAXRSBBIIR2GE

Zhong Ao Home Group Limited



	封面

	內封面

	目錄
	公司資料
	主席報告
	財務摘要
	環境、社會及管治報告
	管理層討論與分析
	董事及高級管理層簡介
	企業管治報告
	董事會報告
	獨立核數師報告
	綜合損益及其他全面收益表
	綜合財務狀況表
	綜合權益變動表
	綜合現金流量表
	綜合財務報表附註
	財務概要
	封底


